
 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 1 of 4 

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY 

The Sunset City  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order – Mayor 

a. Pledge of Allegiance 

b. Roll Call and Ascertain Quorum 

c. Invocation         

 

Any prayer/invocation that may be offered before the start of regular Council business shall be 

the voluntary offering of a private citizen, for the benefit of the Council and the citizens present. 

The views or beliefs expressed by the prayer/invocation speaker have not been previously 

reviewed or approved by the Council, and the Council does not endorse the religious beliefs or 

views of this, or any other speaker. A list of volunteers is maintained by the Town Clerk’s Office 

and interested persons should contact the Town Clerk’s Office for further information. 

 

B. Call to the Public – Mayor 

A.R.S. 38-431.01 states the Public Body may make an open call to the public during a public 

meeting, subject to reasonable time, place and manner restrictions, to allow individuals to 

address the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the Public Body.  At the conclusion 

of an open call to the public, individual members of the Public Body may respond to criticism 

made by those who have addressed the Public Body, may ask staff to review a matter or may 

ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. However, members of the Public Body shall not 

discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters 

are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 

C. Consent Agenda - Mayor 

 

All items listed in the Consent Agenda are considered routine matters and will be enacted by 

one motion of the Council. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Member 

of the Town Council requests that an item or items be removed for discussion. Council Members 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN COUNCIL  

MEETING NOTICE 

Thursday, September 25, 2025, 6:00 pm 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

500 N. GONZALES BLVD.  

HUACHUCA CITY, AZ 85616 

The meeting room will be open by 5:30 PM 

 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 2 of 4 

may ask questions without removal of the item from the Consent Agenda. Items removed from 

the Consent Agenda are considered in their normal sequence as listed on the agenda, unless 

called out of sequence.  

 

C.1 Consider approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on September 11, 2025. 

C.2 Consider approval of the Payment Approval Report. 

       

D. Unfinished Business before the Council – Mayor 

 

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen, who wishes, may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

Mayor at any time. 

  

E.   New Business Before Council - Mayor 

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen who wishes may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

Mayor at any time.  

 

E.1 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Approval of the renewal of Microsoft Office 

licenses for the Town. 

 

E.2 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey/Ruben Villa]: Preliminary (unaudited) financial 

report for fiscal year 2024-25 (July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2025). All Town revenues, expenditures and 

enterprise funds may be discussed. 

 

E.2 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey/Ruben Villa]: Approval of fiscal year 2024-25 

budget amendments. All Town revenues, expenditures and enterprise funds may be discussed. 

 

E.3 Discussion and/or Action [Police Chief Berry]: RESOLUTION NO. 2025-15 - A RESOLUTION 

OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 

EXECUTION OF A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF ARIZONA FOR GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF 

HIGHWAY SAFETY FUNDING FOR ENHANCED DUI/IMPAIRED DRIVING ENFORCEMENT 

THROUGHOUT THE TOWN.  

 

E.4 Discussion and/or Action [Police Chief Berry]: RESOLUTION NO. 2025-16 - A RESOLUTION 

OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 

EXECUTION OF A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF ARIZONA FOR GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF 

HIGHWAY SAFETY FUNDING FOR ENHANCED TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT ON HIGHWAY 90 WITHIN THE 

TOWN.  

 

E.5 Discussion and/or Action [Dr. Johnson]: RESOLUTION NO. 2025-17 - A RESOLUTION OF THE 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, APPROVING A REVISED FEE SCHEDULE 

FOR BUILDING PERMITS AND ASSOCIATED BUILDING REVIEW SERVICES.  

 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 3 of 4 

E.6 Discussion and/or Action [Dr. Johnson/Town Attorney]: First Reading of ORDINANCE NO. 

2025-03 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, 

APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE TOWN CODE, CHAPTER 15.65 “BUILDING PERMIT FEES,” 

REMOVING SECTION 15.65.020 “ALTERNATE BUILDING VALUATION FEE SCHEDULE.” This 

amendment will make it clear in the Town Code that the only applicable building permit fee 

schedule is the one approved by Resolution 2025-17.  

 

E.7 Discussion and/or Action [Dr. Johnson]: Approval of costs for weed abatement at 

abandoned residential property, 200 Pima Street, in the amount of $2,427.00. 

 

E.8 Discussion and/or Action [Dr. Johnson]: Approval of costs for weed abatement at 

abandoned residential property, 303 Apache Street, in the amount of $397.50. 

 

E.9 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Scheduling the Town Manager’s performance 

review and contract renewal discussions. The Town Manager’s contract is due to expire on 

November 19, 2025.  

 

E.10 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: PROCLAMATION NO. 2025-16 - A 

PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR, DECLARING OCTOBER 5 THROUGH 11 AS “FIRE PREVENTION 

WEEK” IN THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY. 

 

E.11 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: PROCLAMATION NO. 2025-17 - A 

PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR, DECLARING OCTOBER 2025, AS DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 

AWARENESS MONTH IN THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY.   

 

E. Reports of Current Events by Council 

 

F.  Adjournment 

 

Posted at 5:00 PM on September __, 2025, at the following locations: 
Town Hall Bulletin Board 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd.  

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Town Hall Lobby 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616  

Town Website 

https://huachucacityaz.gov  

Huachuca City U.S. Post 

Office 

690 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Huachuca City Library  

506 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Huachuca City Police 

Department 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

 
Ms. Brandye Thorpe 

Town Clerk 

 
Note:  This meeting is open to the public.  All interested people are welcome to attend. A copy of agenda 

background material provided to the Councilmembers, with the exception of confidential material 

relating to possible executive sessions, is available for public inspection at the Town Clerk’s Office, 500 N. 

Gonzales Blvd., Huachuca City, AZ 85616, Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or online at 

www.huachucacityaz.gov 

 

Individuals with disabilities who need a reasonable accommodation to attend or communicate at a town 

meeting, or who require this information in alternate format, may contact the Town at 456-1354 (TTY 456-

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ
https://huachucacityaz.gov/
http://www.huachucacityaz.gov/


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 4 of 4 

1353) to make their needs known.  Requests should be made as early as possible so there is sufficient time 

to respond. 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 1 of 4 

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY 

The Sunset City  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A. Call to Order – Mayor 

a. Pledge of Allegiance 

b. Roll Call and Ascertain Quorum 

B. Roll Call. 

Roll Call. 

Present: Johann Wallace, Cynthia Butterworth, Danielle Cardella, Christy Hirshberg, Nallely 

Arreola, Debra Trate, Geovona Thompson (online), Town Manager Suzanne Harvey (Not 

voting), Town Clerk Brandye Thorpe (not voting), Town Attorney Thomas Benavidez (Not 

voting). 

Absent:        

 

c. Invocation         

 

Any prayer/invocation that may be offered before the start of regular Council business shall 

be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, for the benefit of the Council and the citizens 

present. The views or beliefs expressed by the prayer/invocation speaker have not been 

previously reviewed or approved by the Council, and the Council does not endorse the 

religious beliefs or views of this, or any other speaker. A list of volunteers is maintained by the 

Town Clerk’s Office and interested persons should contact the Town Clerk’s Office for further 

information. 

 

B. Call to the Public – Mayor 

A.R.S. 38-431.01 states the Public Body may make an open call to the public during a public 

meeting, subject to reasonable time, place and manner restrictions, to allow individuals to 

address the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the Public Body.  At the conclusion 

of an open call to the public, individual members of the Public Body may respond to criticism 

made by those who have addressed the Public Body, may ask staff to review a matter or may 

ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. However, members of the Public Body shall not 

discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters 

are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 

MEETING MINUTES OF THE  

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN COUNCIL  

September 11, 2025 AT 6:00 PM  

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

500 N. GONZALES BLVD.  

HUACHUCA CITY, AZ 85616 

 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 2 of 4 

Andre Newcob speaks about the Broadway curve and fee for October meeting. 

C. Consent Agenda - Mayor 

 

All items listed in the Consent Agenda are considered routine matters and will be enacted by 

one motion of the Council. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Member 

of the Town Council requests that an item or items be removed for discussion. Council Members 

may ask questions without removal of the item from the Consent Agenda. Items removed from 

the Consent Agenda are considered in their normal sequence as listed on the agenda, unless 

called out of sequence. 

 

C.1 Consider approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on August 28, 2025. 

C.2 Consider approval of the Payment Approval Report. 

C.3 Consider approval of the disposal of a 2014 Ford F550 VIN 1FD0W5HT0EEB19747 

through direct sale to Willcox. 

 

 

Motion: Items listed on the Consent Agenda Action: Open for discussion and/or Action, moved 

by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Debra Trate. 

 

 

Motion: Approval of the items on the Consent Agenda, Action: Approve, moved by Johann 

Wallace, Seconded by Cynthia Butterworth. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

     

D. Unfinished Business before the Council – Mayor 

 

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen, who wishes, may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

mayor at any time. 

 

 

E.   New Business Before Council - Mayor 

 

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen, who wishes, may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

Mayor at any time.  

 

E.1 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: Adoption of Resolution No. 2025-14, 

approving an intergovernmental agreement with the City of Sierra Vista for animal care 

services. 

 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 3 of 4 

Motion: Item E.1 Action: Open for discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg.  

 

Chief Berry and Council discuss. 

 

Motion: Resolution No. 2025-14, approving an intergovernmental agreement with the City of 

Sierra Vista for animal care services Action: Adopt, moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by 

Christy Hirshberg. 

 

E.2 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: Update on Rural Transportation Summit: The 

Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization [SVMPO] is hosting the annual Arizona 

Transportation Policy Summit, October 15-17, 2025.  This event brings policy makers from 

around the State to discuss transportation issues of concern.  The 2025 Summit will also feature 

future developments and technologies for movement of people and goods. For additional 

information, visit https://www.azrts.org/ 

 

Motion: Item E.2 Action: Open for discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Cynthia Butterworth. 

 

Manager Harvey, Karen Lamberton and Council discuss. 

 

E.3 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Adoption of Proclamation No. 2025-15, 

declaring September 26, 2025, as “Mesothelioma Awareness Day.” 

 

Motion: Item E.3 Action: Open for discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

F. Reports of Current Events by Council 

 

Councilmember Butterworth- SVMPO/TAC meeting yesterday. Food distribution on the 19th. 

Councilmember Cardella- Was at the school today for the 9/11 ceremony. 

Councilmember Trate- No report 

Mayor ProTem Hirshberg- No report 

Councilmember Arreola- Was at the school for the 9/11 ceremony as well. 

Councilmember Thompson- Plans to attend the summit. 

Mayor Wallace- Did Good Morning Sierra Vista earlier this week. Blackstar Orbital update. 

Hispanic Chamber Mixer next week. 9/11 remembrance today. Charlie Kirk was assassinated. 

 

G.  Adjournment 

 

Motion: To Adjourn, Action: Adjourn, Moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Christy 

Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Approved by Mayor Johann R. Wallace on September 25, 2025. 

 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 4 of 4 

        ____________________________________ 

        Mr. Johann R. Wallace 

Mayor 

   

 

 

Attest: _________________________________________ 

 Ms. Brandye Thorpe, 

 Town Clerk 

 

 

 

Seal: 

 

 

 

 

Certification 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Minutes of the Meeting for 

the Huachuca City Town Council held on September 11, 2025. I further certify that the meeting 

was duly called and a quorum was present. 

 

 

 

        ____________________________________ 

        Ms. Brandye Thorpe, 

        Town Clerk 

  

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     1

Report dates: 9/10/2025-9/30/2025 Sep 23, 2025  02:38PM

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

Arcy Land LLC

10880 Arcy Land LLC 9112025 Water Refund 09/11/2025 75.00 75.00 51-21350

10880 Arcy Land LLC 9112025 Sewer Refund 09/11/2025 1.80 1.80 52-21350

          Total Arcy Land LLC: 76.80 76.80

AT&T

1398 AT&T 1063-9/4/25 Library Landline 09/04/2025 42.70 42.70 10-62-271

          Total AT&T: 42.70 42.70

Benavidez Law Group, P.C.

1667 Benavidez Law Group, P.C. 76683 Attorney Fees 09/10/2025 9,669.00 9,669.00 10-42-220

          Total Benavidez Law Group, P.C.: 9,669.00 9,669.00

BOK Financial

10426 BOK Financial 1137-2025 2025 Landfill Assurance 09/12/2025 143,212.22 143,212.22 55-11121

          Total BOK Financial: 143,212.22 143,212.22

Caselle, Inc

1745 Caselle, Inc INV-10517 Management Software 09/02/2025 1,012.08 1,012.08 10-48-210

1745 Caselle, Inc INV-10517 Software License- Water 09/02/2025 56.23 56.23 51-40-480

1745 Caselle, Inc INV-10517 Software License- Sewer 09/02/2025 60.72 60.72 52-40-480

1745 Caselle, Inc INV-10517 Software License- LF 09/02/2025 71.97 71.97 55-40-480

          Total Caselle, Inc: 1,201.00 1,201.00

Caterpillar Financial Services Corp.

10620 Caterpillar Financial Services Cor 37319757 Payment For 816K Compactor an 08/08/2025 6,764.69 6,764.69 55-40-705

          Total Caterpillar Financial Services Corp.: 6,764.69 6,764.69

CC's Enhanced Exteriors

10881 CC's Enhanced Exteriors 534 Deposit Refund 09/11/2025 200.00 200.00 55-21350

          Total CC's Enhanced Exteriors: 200.00 200.00

CenturyLink

4280 CenturyLink 2648-9/7 Local Phone Service - Town Hall 09/07/2025 347.44 347.44 10-43-271

4280 CenturyLink 9728-9/7 Local Phone Service - Police Dept 09/07/2025 184.70 184.70 10-51-271

4280 CenturyLink 6652-9/7 Local Phone Service - Library 09/07/2025 95.04 95.04 10-62-271

          Total CenturyLink: 627.18 627.18

Cintas Corporation No. 445

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4242591522 Office Supplies 09/08/2025 30.76 30.76 10-43-460

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4242591321 Uniforms- PW 09/08/2025 8.72 8.72 10-57-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4242591321 Uniforms- Road User 09/08/2025 26.16 26.16 23-40-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4242591321 Uniforms- Water 09/08/2025 26.16 26.16 51-40-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4242591321 Uniforms- Sewer 09/08/2025 26.16 26.16 52-40-410



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     2

Report dates: 9/10/2025-9/30/2025 Sep 23, 2025  02:38PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4242591381 Landfill Supplies 09/08/2025 5.49 5.49 55-40-290

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4242591381 Landfill Uniforms 09/08/2025 32.56 32.56 55-40-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4242591522 Uniforms- LF 09/08/2025 104.79 104.79 55-40-410

          Total Cintas Corporation No. 445: 260.80 260.80

City of Sierra Vista

1702 City of Sierra Vista 5529 Fuel AD 09/08/2025 12.75 12.75 10-43-475

1702 City of Sierra Vista SVMPO026-00 RTAC Membership Dues 08/27/2025 70.30 70.30 10-43-640

1702 City of Sierra Vista 5529 Fuel PD 09/08/2025 1,145.48 1,145.48 10-51-475

1702 City of Sierra Vista 5529 Fuel PW 09/08/2025 187.41 187.41 10-57-475

1702 City of Sierra Vista 5529 Fuel HC 09/08/2025 321.44 321.44 10-65-475

1702 City of Sierra Vista 5529 Fuel Post Bus 09/08/2025 1,023.40 1,023.40 65-40-475

          Total City of Sierra Vista: 2,760.78 2,760.78

COX Business

10695 COX Business 8301-9/1/25 Internet Town Hall 09/01/2025 1,000.00 1,000.00 10-48-481

10695 COX Business 8601-9/1/25 Library Internet-Erate 09/01/2025 200.00 200.00 10-62-481

          Total COX Business: 1,200.00 1,200.00

Discount Tire

1982 Discount Tire 2002018 4 new tires Eagle LS2 09/09/2025 821.84 821.84 10-51-470

1982 Discount Tire 2002018 Istallation and Maintenance  09/09/2025 100.00 100.00 10-51-470

1982 Discount Tire 2002018 warranty certificates 09/09/2025 165.72 165.72 10-51-470

1982 Discount Tire 2002018 Tax 09/09/2025 78.21 78.21 10-51-470

          Total Discount Tire: 1,165.77 1,165.77

Elizabeth Jean Post

10879 Elizabeth Jean Post 09162025 Water Refund 09/16/2025 25.00 25.00 51-21350

10879 Elizabeth Jean Post 09162025 Credit 09/16/2025 134.08 134.08 51-21350

10879 Elizabeth Jean Post 09162025 Sewer Refund 09/16/2025 15.00 15.00 52-21350

          Total Elizabeth Jean Post: 174.08 174.08

Empire Southwest, LLC

2220 Empire Southwest, LLC 4002047 lines leaking in 816 compactor 06/13/2025 5,653.35 5,653.35 55-40-610

          Total Empire Southwest, LLC: 5,653.35 5,653.35

Erick Windom

10878 Erick Windom 09182025 Water Refund 09/18/2025 60.17 60.17 51-21350

          Total Erick Windom: 60.17 60.17

ESG Corp

10787 ESG Corp 47618 COBRA Monthly 09/10/2025 40.95 40.95 10-43-122

          Total ESG Corp: 40.95 40.95

Jack Furrier Tire & Auto Care

10395 Jack Furrier Tire & Auto Care 326597 Full synthetic Oil change Labor 09/09/2025 69.99 69.99 10-51-470

10395 Jack Furrier Tire & Auto Care 326597 Waste oil disposal fee 09/09/2025 2.25 2.25 10-51-470

10395 Jack Furrier Tire & Auto Care 326597 3 quarts Kendall GT 0w20 09/09/2025 23.97 23.97 10-51-470

10395 Jack Furrier Tire & Auto Care 326597 Tax 09/09/2025 8.03 8.03 10-51-470



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     3

Report dates: 9/10/2025-9/30/2025 Sep 23, 2025  02:38PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

10395 Jack Furrier Tire & Auto Care 325213 4 new tires and oil change 08/04/2025 1,900.57 1,900.57 65-40-480

          Total Jack Furrier Tire & Auto Care: 2,004.81 2,004.81

Legend Technical Services of Arizona Inc

10774 Legend Technical Services of Ariz 2514128 GW Monitoring 08/29/2025 40.00 40.00 51-40-510

          Total Legend Technical Services of Arizona Inc: 40.00 40.00

Mobile Beacon

10242 Mobile Beacon A-037108-2025 Renewal of 24 lines and six new li 09/05/2025 2,880.00 2,880.00 10-69-806

10242 Mobile Beacon MB-197503 Renewal of 24 lines and six new li 09/08/2025 774.00 774.00 10-69-806

          Total Mobile Beacon: 3,654.00 3,654.00

Principal Life Insurance Co

4121 Principal Life Insurance Co 8/1/25-8/31/25 Dental 07/18/2025 889.99 889.99 10-22510

4121 Principal Life Insurance Co 9/1/25-9/30-25 Dental 08/18/2025 889.99 889.99 10-22510

4121 Principal Life Insurance Co 8/1/25-8/31/25 Life Insurance- Employee Benefit 07/18/2025 745.95 745.95 10-22530

4121 Principal Life Insurance Co 9/1/25-9/30-25 Life Insurance- Employee Benefit 08/18/2025 734.35 734.35 10-22530

4121 Principal Life Insurance Co 8/1/25-8/31/25 Vision 07/18/2025 193.59 193.59 10-22540

4121 Principal Life Insurance Co 9/1/25-9/30-25 Vision 08/18/2025 193.59 193.59 10-22540

          Total Principal Life Insurance Co: 3,647.46 3,647.46

Reliable Safety, LLC

10317 Reliable Safety, LLC 2546 Service of fire extinguishers at tow 09/02/2025 94.00 94.00 10-43-610

10317 Reliable Safety, LLC 2547 5 Fire Extinguisher Services for Li 09/05/2025 90.00 90.00 10-57-500

10317 Reliable Safety, LLC 2548 3 Fire Extinguisher Services for C 09/05/2025 54.00 54.00 10-57-500

10317 Reliable Safety, LLC 2549 4 Fire Extinguisher Services for A 09/05/2025 97.00 97.00 10-57-500

10317 Reliable Safety, LLC 2545 Annual Fire extinguisher service 09/02/2025 67.50 67.50 10-65-480

10317 Reliable Safety, LLC 2545 Annual Fire Extinguisher service 09/02/2025 67.50 67.50 65-40-480

          Total Reliable Safety, LLC: 470.00 470.00

Ruben A. Villa

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-048-091425 Consulting Services- Admin 09/14/2025 1,347.58 1,347.58 10-43-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-048-091425 Consulting Services- Magistrate 09/14/2025 112.33 112.33 10-45-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-048-091425 Consulting Services- Road User 09/14/2025 168.50 168.50 23-40-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-048-091425 Consulting Services- Water 09/14/2025 1,010.58 1,010.58 51-40-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-048-091425 Consulting Services- Sewer 09/14/2025 757.02 757.02 52-40-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-048-091425 Consulting Services- Landfill 09/14/2025 673.99 673.99 55-40-650

          Total Ruben A. Villa: 4,070.00 4,070.00

S.S.V.E.C

3920 S.S.V.E.C 6100-8/1-9/1 City Hall 09/05/2025 1,009.55 1,009.55 10-43-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 9100-8/1-9/1 Sign Meter 09/05/2025 66.31 66.31 10-43-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 1200PD-8/1-9/ Police Dept 09/05/2025 347.54 347.54 10-51-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 1200FD-8/1-9/1 Fire Dept 09/05/2025 347.55 347.55 10-53-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 8300-8/1-9/1 City Pool 09/05/2025 538.43 538.43 10-58-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2300-8/1-9/1 Community Center 09/05/2025 196.10 196.10 10-60-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 6200-8/1-9/1 Keeline Park Skyline 09/05/2025 50.99 50.99 10-60-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 7200-8/1-9/1 Tennis Courts 09/05/2025 181.57 181.57 10-60-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 1100-8/1-9/1 Library 09/05/2025 813.08 813.08 10-62-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 1300-8/1-9/1 senior Center 09/05/2025 284.25 284.25 10-68-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2200-8/1-9/1 streetlight master 09/05/2025 2,262.76 2,262.76 23-40-340



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     4

Report dates: 9/10/2025-9/30/2025 Sep 23, 2025  02:38PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

3920 S.S.V.E.C 0500-8/1-9/1 Well at Howard St 09/05/2025 1,091.33 1,091.33 51-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 1400-8/1-9/1 skyline Well 09/05/2025 878.60 878.60 51-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 1800-8/1-9/1 Well at Cochise 09/05/2025 768.59 768.59 51-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 6000-8/1-9/1 Gila St Well 09/05/2025 653.98 653.98 51-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 00500-8/1-9/1 Hunt Rd Sewer Pond 09/05/2025 94.60 94.60 52-40-340

          Total S.S.V.E.C: 9,585.23 9,585.23

USA BlueBook

4278 USA BlueBook INV00809063 2in Commercial Meter 08/26/2025 736.28 736.28 51-40-460

4278 USA BlueBook INV00818729 Gaskets for Commercial Meters 09/04/2025 73.23 73.23 51-40-460

          Total USA BlueBook: 809.51 809.51

Verizon Wireless

4343 Verizon Wireless 6122901106 Cell Phone 09/07/2025 2,211.12 2,211.12 10-48-275

          Total Verizon Wireless: 2,211.12 2,211.12

Wells Fargo Remittance Center

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 walmart 07/13/2025 18.64 18.64 10-43-460

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 2014 Brush truck Title 07/13/2025 26.00 26.00 10-43-470

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 finance charges 07/13/2025 274.66 274.66 10-43-483

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Town Clerk Conf Reg 07/13/2025 200.00 200.00 10-43-660

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Duralast Battery w/3 year warrant 07/13/2025 210.03 210.03 10-51-470

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Award Cere-Wild Horse PAss 07/13/2025 336.74 336.74 10-51-660

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Arizona Narcotic Officers Associat 07/13/2025 450.00 450.00 10-51-660

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 7/20/25-7/23/25 Hotel Stay Sherat 07/13/2025 525.76 525.76 10-51-660

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Stackable CPR Dummies-Laerdal  07/13/2025 1,902.01 1,902.01 10-51-660

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 plastic for firework boxes 07/13/2025 32.54 32.54 10-57-500

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 5lbs 3inch Screws for firework box 07/13/2025 29.29 29.29 10-57-500

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Muratic Acid City Pool 07/13/2025 34.69 34.69 10-58-460

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 City Pool Umbrellas 07/13/2025 91.12 91.12 10-58-460

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Muratic Acid -  Home Depot 07/13/2025 34.69 34.69 10-58-460

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Photo electric for Tennis Court, 4x 07/13/2025 329.85 329.85 10-60-460

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 4th of July Food 07/13/2025 544.81 544.81 10-60-530

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 July 4th poster and flyers 07/13/2025 101.25 101.25 10-60-530

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Summer Splash food items. 07/13/2025 1,152.95 1,152.95 10-69-808

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Summer Splash Food and Supplie 07/13/2025 61.32 61.32 10-69-808

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Sloan Rebuild Kit 07/13/2025 30.26 30.26 51-40-460

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Home Depot/ Toilet Spud, Garden  07/13/2025 97.62 97.62 51-40-460

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Marking Paint 07/13/2025 73.45 73.45 51-40-460

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Marking Paint 07/13/2025 48.97 48.97 52-40-460

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 port a Pot 07/13/2025 63.00 63.00 55-40-340

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 water pump and the serpentine be 07/13/2025 167.04 167.04 55-40-470

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Refund 07/13/2025 33.21- 33.21- 55-40-470

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 water pump broke causing the ser 07/13/2025 57.09 57.09 55-40-610

4377 Wells Fargo Remittance Center 6/12-7/13/25 Stickerburr Roller 07/13/2025 1,499.97 1,499.97 80-40-805

          Total Wells Fargo Remittance Center: 8,360.54 8,360.54

          Grand Totals:  207,962.16 207,962.16



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     5

Report dates: 9/10/2025-9/30/2025 Sep 23, 2025  02:38PM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

           Dated: ______________________________________________________

           Mayor: ______________________________________________________

  City Council: ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

City Recorder: _____________________________________________________

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.



Date 9/24/25
Account Manager Shelby

VSL Specialist Mike Buckley

Channel Price Sheet Month Sept

Unless otherwise noted, All Quotes expire upon current month's end

Microsoft Part # Description Level Quantity Price Extended Price Extended Price Extended

AAL-45735 M365 G5 GCC Sub Per User D 40 616.97$        24,678.80$          616.97$          24,678.80$        616.97$        24,678.80$         
EP2-04124 Intune Suite for Gov Sub Per User D 40 108.24$        4,329.60$            108.24$          4,329.60$          108.24$        4,329.60$           
NMH-00001 Intune Device P1 GCC Sub Per Device D 20 20.30$          406.00$               20.30$            406.00$             20.30$          406.00$              
7KB-00001 Defender Endpoint P2 GCC Sub Per User D 20 54.37$          1,087.40$            54.37$            1,087.40$          54.37$          1,087.40$           

Total 30,501.80$          Total 30,501.80$        Total 30,501.80$         

Three Year Total 91,505.40$          

No Tax Referenced
State of Arizona Master Agreement- 8505135

EA Renewal - 7863527
11/1/2025  Start Date

Terms and Conditions of sales and services projects are governed by the terms at: 
http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx

Customer to make three annual payments to CDW•G

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3

Online Services

Notes

Annual Payment

CDW Government, LLC
Microsoft Enterprise 6.6 Agreement Pricing

Enterprise Quote
for

Town of Huachuca City

http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx


TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY 
Memorandum 

To:   Mayor and Council 

Through:  Suzanne Harvey, Town Manager 

From:   Ruben A. Villa, Consultant 

Date:   September 19, 2025 

Subject:  Fiscal Year 2025 – Revenues and Expenditures with Comparison to 
Budget 

Overview 
This report covers the 12-month period ending June 30, 2025 (FY25). At this point, 100% 
of the fiscal year has elapsed. These figures are preliminary, unaudited, before budget 
proposed budget amendments, and subject to change pending auditor adjustments. 
 
The first two digits of each account number indicate the fund number (e.g., 10 = General 
Fund, 51 = Water Fund). 

Fund Summary – FY25 
Fund YTD 

Revenues 
Annual 
Budget 

Revenues 

% of 
Budget 
Earned 

YTD 
Expenditures 

Annual 
Budget 

Expenditures 

% of 
Budget 
Spent 

General Fund 
(10) 

2,506,644 3,407,841 73.6% 2,232,402 3,407,841 65.5% 

DHS Grant – 
Vehicle (11) 

305,561 300,000 101.9% 216,620 300,000 72.2% 

DHS Grant – BP 
OT (12) 

58,697 250,000 23.5% 52,516 250,000 21.0% 

DHS Grant – 
DUI (13) 

1,079 100,000 1.1% 13,087 100,000 13.1% 

RICO Fund (16) 0 10,000 0% 0 10,000 0% 

Trust Fund (20) 139,124 174,300 79.8% 128,467 174,300 73.7% 



Volunteer 
Firefighter 
Pension (22) 

74 – – 599 – – 

Road User (23) 303,727 297,413 102.1% 146,514 297,413 49.3% 

Water 
Infrastructure 
Sust. (26) 

0 140,000 0% 0 140,000 0% 

Mindful 
Metering Grant 
(27) 

0 537,600 0% 0 537,600 0% 

State HURF – 
Skyline (28) 

2,070,821 2,101,044 98.6% 2,101,423 2,101,044 100% 

Grant 
Opportunity 
(29) 

34,999 525,000 6.7% 0 525,000 0% 

Water Fund 
(51) 

628,760 615,540 102.2% 426,550 615,540 69.3% 

Sewer Fund 
(52) 

326,214 323,000 101.0% 280,775 323,000 86.9% 

Garbage Fund 
(54) 

169,402 205,000 82.6% 179,321 205,000 87.5% 

Landfill Fund 
(55) 

1,641,978 1,872,716 87.7% 1,963,227 1,872,716 104.8% 

Transit Services 
(65) 

283,448 261,588 108.4% 253,627 261,588 97.0% 

Fort Huachuca 
Contracts (67) 

538,586 700,000 76.9% 538,089 700,000 76.9% 

Capital Projects 
(80) 

602,508 600,000 100.4% 525,588 600,000 87.6% 

Fire Protection 
Grant (82) 

524,383 448,125 117.0% 412,383 448,125 92.0% 

Holiday Fund 
(86) 

18,163 20,203 89.9% 1,887 20,203 9.3% 



*Figures include interfund transfers and are before proposed budget amendements* 

Highlights – Key Budget Items (>$5,000) 
1. City Sales Tax (10-31-250, General Fund) – $543,987 collected vs. $402,903 

budgeted (135%). 
2. Interest Earnings (10-36-100, General Fund) – $192,452 vs. $115,200 budgeted 

(167%). 
3. Landfill Tipping Fees (55-30-210, Landfill Fund) – $255,972 vs. $209,300 budgeted 

(122%). 
4. Police Fuel Expense (10-51-475) – $19,131 vs. $13,500 budgeted (142%). 
5. Police Vehicle Expense (10-51-470) – $17,940 vs. $10,000 budgeted (179%). 
6. Water Fund – Bank Fees (51-40-483) – $7,566 vs. $1,000 budgeted (757%). 
7. Water Fund – Water Tests (51-40-510) – $7,883 vs. $3,000 budgeted (263%). 
8. Sewer Fund – Professional Services (52-40-650) – $44,077 vs. $33,700 budgeted 

(131%). 
9. Landfill – Equipment Maintenance (55-40-610) – $256,511 vs. $170,000 budgeted 

(151%). 
10. Landfill – Post-closure Costs (55-40-725) – $232,654 vs. $100,000 budgeted (233%). 

Notable Variances / Anomalies 
- Landfill Fund (55): Expenditures exceeded budget (105%) due to equipment 
maintenance and post-closure cost adjustments. 
- General Fund Police Department: Overages in vehicle expense and fuel costs. 
- Water Fund & Sewer Fund: Significant overages in bank fees, water testing, and 
professional services. 
- State HURF – Skyline Project (28): Construction spending exceeded the original 
budgeted amount by $216K (111%). 
- Fire Protection Grant (82): Revenues exceeded budget due to higher-than-anticipated 
grant receipts. 
- Holiday Fund (86): Donations exceeded budget (184%) but spending remains very low 
(9%). 

Back to School 
(87) 

5,248 8,231 63.8% 1,657 8,231 20.1% 

ARPA Fund (88) 467,665 467,665 100% 392,744 467,665 84.0% 



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:20AM       PAGE: 1

TAXES

10-31-100 AUTO LIEU TAX 12,971.87 104,083.13 102,251.00 (             1,832.13) 101.8

10-31-200 REAL PROPERTY TAXES 21,158.80 117,199.84 113,684.00 (             3,515.84) 103.1

10-31-240 FRANCHISE TAXES 2,876.01 17,408.06 20,000.00 2,591.94 87.0

10-31-250 CITY SALES TAXES 105,829.77 543,986.53 402,903.00 (         141,083.53) 135.0

10-31-260 STATE SALES TAXES 28,751.39 245,468.76 241,796.00 (             3,672.76) 101.5

TOTAL TAXES 171,587.84 1,028,146.32 880,634.00 (         147,512.32) 116.8

LICENSES AND PERMITS

10-32-100 BUILDING PERMITS 3,703.25 17,967.78 16,500.00 (             1,467.78) 108.9

10-32-110 BUSINESS LICENSES .00 8,279.14 7,500.00 (                779.14) 110.4

10-32-120 P&Z FEES 2,000.00 3,800.00 2,500.00 (             1,300.00) 152.0

TOTAL LICENSES AND PERMITS 5,703.25 30,046.92 26,500.00 (             3,546.92) 113.4

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE

10-33-100 STATE REVENUE SHARING 28,363.72 340,364.64 340,349.00 (                  15.64) 100.0

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 28,363.72 340,364.64 340,349.00 (                  15.64) 100.0

CHARGES FOR SERVICE

10-34-140 AUCTION PROCEEDS 5,851.00 10,021.50 16,500.00 6,478.50 60.7

10-34-160 ANIMAL CONTROL FEES/FINES 145.00 1,068.00 700.00 (                368.00) 152.6

10-34-170 ADMIN GARBAGE FEES 1,643.53 16,825.18 16,000.00 (                825.18) 105.2

10-34-530 CITY BUS FEES/DONATIONS .00 .00 1,050.00 1,050.00 .0

TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICE 7,639.53 27,914.68 34,250.00 6,335.32 81.5

FINES

10-35-100 POLICE FINES .00 72,749.44 83,000.00 10,250.56 87.7

10-35-110 IMPOUND FEES 535.00 5,080.00 5,000.00 (                  80.00) 101.6

10-35-112 TOWING FEES 100.00 2,909.19 2,000.00 (                909.19) 145.5

10-35-120 LIBRARY FEES & FINES 95.00 3,786.39 4,500.00 713.61 84.1

10-35-125 IMPOUND ADMIN FEES 150.00 2,610.00 1,500.00 (             1,110.00) 174.0

TOTAL FINES 880.00 87,135.02 96,000.00 8,864.98 90.8



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:20AM       PAGE: 2

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

10-36-100 INTEREST 7,111.52 192,451.89 115,200.00 (           77,251.89) 167.1

10-36-200 UNREALIZED GAIN 7,260.73 8,184.06 .00 (             8,184.06) .0

10-36-300 MISC. POLICE REVENUE (               5,414.75) 22.45 9,000.00 8,977.55 .3

10-36-400 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-36-466 DONATIONS - LIBRARY 150.00 3,398.50 3,000.00 (                398.50) 113.3

10-36-467 DONATIONS - ANIMAL CONTROL .00 10.00 1,000.00 990.00 1.0

10-36-468 DONATIONS - SUMMER SPLASH .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-36-469 DONATIONS - POLICE .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-36-470 DONATIONS - COMMUNITY EVENTS .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-36-500 PARKS & REC FACILITY RENTAL 100.00 2,105.00 2,500.00 395.00 84.2

10-36-505 PARK PROJECT REVENUE .00 4,300.00 .00 (             4,300.00) .0

10-36-515 SUMMER SPLASH REVENUE 810.00 3,670.00 2,500.00 (             1,170.00) 146.8

10-36-900 MISCELLANEOUS 372.73 4,284.08 20,000.00 15,715.92 21.4

10-36-902 WORKERS' COMP REIMBURSEMENTS .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-36-904 WILDLAND REVENUE .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

10-36-905 INSURANCE CLAIMS REFUNDS .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

10-36-910 LANDFILL LAND LEASE 46,000.00 552,000.00 552,000.00 .00 100.0

10-36-971 TOWER LEASE .00 .00 12,596.00 12,596.00 .0

10-36-999 DAILY CASH REC OVER/SHORT ACCT .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 56,390.23 770,425.98 768,896.00 (             1,529.98) 100.2

TOWN GRANTS

10-37-457 LIBRARY GRANT .00 18,000.00 50,000.00 32,000.00 36.0

10-37-458 SENIOR CENTER GRANT .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

10-37-480 SUMMER SPLASH GRANT .00 2,650.00 5,000.00 2,350.00 53.0

10-37-908 GRANTS - IT .00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .0

10-37-909 BUILDING REGULATION GRANT .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-37-913 USDA EQUIPMENT GRANT .00 .00 60,000.00 60,000.00 .0

10-37-919 CITY BUS GRANT .00 .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .0

10-37-920 GENERAL ADMIN GRANT .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0

10-37-921 POLICE GRANT 5,842.41 11,261.12 180,000.00 168,738.88 6.3

10-37-922 SRO PROGRAM REIMBURSEMENTS 19,982.30 67,145.85 74,844.00 7,698.15 89.7

10-37-925 MISC GRANTS .00 .00 150,000.00 150,000.00 .0

10-37-963 E-RATE .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

10-37-965 SCBA GRANT .00 .00 200,000.00 200,000.00 .0

10-37-968 PUBLIC WORKS GRANT .00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

10-37-969 COURT GRANT .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

TOTAL TOWN GRANTS 25,824.71 99,056.97 974,844.00 875,787.03 10.2



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:20AM       PAGE: 3

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

10-39-965 TRANSFERS IN-TRANSIT SERVICES 1,799.17 21,590.04 21,590.00 (                      .04) 100.0

10-39-966 TRANSFERS IN-FT HUACHUCA CONTR 11,224.71 37,185.56 50,000.00 12,814.44 74.4

10-39-998 TRANSFERS IN FROM FUND BALANCE 5,398.17 64,778.04 214,778.00 149,999.96 30.2

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 18,422.05 123,553.64 286,368.00 162,814.36 43.2

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 314,811.33 2,506,644.17 3,407,841.00 901,196.83 73.6



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:20AM       PAGE: 4

COUNCIL

10-42-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,725.00 10,896.43 14,400.00 3,503.57 75.7

10-42-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 291.94 1,092.82 1,133.00 40.18 96.5

10-42-220 ATTORNEY FEES 10,341.00 46,761.50 45,000.00 (             1,761.50) 103.9

10-42-290 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 23.93 800.00 776.07 3.0

10-42-292 EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION/RECOGNIT 803.09 803.09 2,000.00 1,196.91 40.2

10-42-530 COMMUNITY RELATIONS .00 1,224.99 1,000.00 (                224.99) 122.5

10-42-640 MEMBERSHIPS 1,624.00 8,650.00 10,000.00 1,350.00 86.5

10-42-660 TRAVEL AND TRAINING 25.00 745.00 3,500.00 2,755.00 21.3

TOTAL COUNCIL 14,810.03 70,197.76 77,833.00 7,635.24 90.2

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

10-43-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 10,911.21 114,649.57 147,581.00 32,931.43 77.7

10-43-105 OVERTIME 8.00 1,116.33 1,158.00 41.67 96.4

10-43-122 MISCELLANEOUS PAYROLL 967.66 609.79 600.00 (                    9.79) 101.6

10-43-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2,157.61 21,985.04 26,778.00 4,792.96 82.1

10-43-222 MISCELLANEOUS 420.24 536.81 .00 (                536.81) .0

10-43-250 ADVERTISING 852.69 1,635.83 4,800.00 3,164.17 34.1

10-43-271 TELEPHONE 594.66 5,504.37 5,000.00 (                504.37) 110.1

10-43-280 INSURANCE 5,430.80 15,825.55 18,200.00 2,374.45 87.0

10-43-300 PRINTING 164.60 3,442.15 400.00 (             3,042.15) 860.5

10-43-340 UTILITIES 1,854.11 11,714.58 13,000.00 1,285.42 90.1

10-43-366 INMATE LABOR 322.94 2,473.76 2,100.00 (                373.76) 117.8

10-43-440 POSTAGE 10.10 934.12 1,000.00 65.88 93.4

10-43-460 SUPPLIES 388.66 7,410.05 6,500.00 (                910.05) 114.0

10-43-462 PEST CONTROL 312.00 390.00 650.00 260.00 60.0

10-43-465 EMPLOYMENT TESTING/BACKGROUND 307.20 1,270.57 1,300.00 29.43 97.7

10-43-470 VEHICLE EXPENSE .00 552.64 600.00 47.36 92.1

10-43-475 FUEL EXPENSE 54.15 663.69 500.00 (                163.69) 132.7

10-43-483 BANK FEES 1,575.09 7,317.80 .00 (             7,317.80) .0

10-43-610 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

10-43-640 MEMBERSHIP .00 1,072.00 1,300.00 228.00 82.5

10-43-650 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3,923.55 52,489.12 60,000.00 7,510.88 87.5

10-43-660 TRAVEL AND TRAINING 350.97 513.71 4,500.00 3,986.29 11.4

10-43-690 ELECTION SUPPLIES .00 3,284.74 3,000.00 (                284.74) 109.5

10-43-703 CODIFYING/DIGITIZING .00 3,846.00 3,000.00 (                846.00) 128.2

10-43-705 DEBT:CAP LEASE EXP 28,321.50 63,712.34 34,100.00 (           29,612.34) 186.8

10-43-840 CAPITAL OUTLAY - EQUIPMENT 173.88 2,032.32 3,000.00 967.68 67.7

TOTAL GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 59,101.62 324,982.88 339,167.00 14,184.12 95.8



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:20AM       PAGE: 5

MAGISTRATE

10-45-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 5,551.21 50,329.02 65,568.00 15,238.98 76.8

10-45-105 OVERTIME .00 398.68 1,019.00 620.32 39.1

10-45-120 PROSECUTION FEES .00 13,417.50 12,000.00 (             1,417.50) 111.8

10-45-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,352.50 14,403.91 13,843.00 (                560.91) 104.1

10-45-221 COURT APPT ATTORNEYS .00 3,370.00 9,000.00 5,630.00 37.4

10-45-250 CONTRACT LABOR-PRO TEM .00 490.00 1,500.00 1,010.00 32.7

10-45-290 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 257.85 200.00 (                  57.85) 128.9

10-45-480 COMPUTER EXPENSE .00 2,545.68 2,500.00 (                  45.68) 101.8

10-45-650 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 327.06 4,392.61 5,000.00 607.39 87.9

10-45-660 TRAVEL/TRAINING 656.64 1,131.64 1,000.00 (                131.64) 113.2

TOTAL MAGISTRATE 7,887.41 90,736.89 111,630.00 20,893.11 81.3

IT

10-48-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES .00 .00 5,760.00 5,760.00 .0

10-48-101 CONTRACT LABOR .00 .00 7,000.00 7,000.00 .0

10-48-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS .00 .00 453.00 453.00 .0

10-48-210 SUBSCRIPTIONS & SOFTWARE LIC 2,024.16 47,057.83 45,000.00 (             2,057.83) 104.6

10-48-275 CELL PHONE 4,028.13 24,754.05 20,000.00 (             4,754.05) 123.8

10-48-450 EQUIPMENT 5,778.21 10,586.93 7,500.00 (             3,086.93) 141.2

10-48-481 INTERNET 1,000.00 14,792.05 11,000.00 (             3,792.05) 134.5

10-48-804 SOFTWARE LICENSING .00 1,499.28 1,500.00 .72 100.0

TOTAL IT 12,830.50 98,690.14 98,213.00 (                477.14) 100.5



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:20AM       PAGE: 6

POLICE

10-51-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 41,170.30 370,317.23 391,989.00 21,671.77 94.5

10-51-101 RESERVE POOL .00 5,786.00 20,800.00 15,014.00 27.8

10-51-105 OVERTIME 446.34 9,021.72 15,444.00 6,422.28 58.4

10-51-110 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 396.43 3,938.77 6,000.00 2,061.23 65.7

10-51-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 8,446.75 100,959.34 122,179.00 21,219.66 82.6

10-51-135 PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT 12,732.10 105,904.62 136,441.00 30,536.38 77.6

10-51-222 SEACOM/CCSO CONTRACT 20,487.50 81,950.00 81,950.00 .00 100.0

10-51-230 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 45.00 383.50 1,600.00 1,216.50 24.0

10-51-231 PSPRS ATTORNEY .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-51-271 TELEPHONE 190.25 2,243.76 2,500.00 256.24 89.8

10-51-290 OFFICE SUPPLIES 94.98 927.74 1,500.00 572.26 61.9

10-51-295 PRINTING 177.95 996.12 1,500.00 503.88 66.4

10-51-340 UTILITIES 698.88 5,841.32 7,000.00 1,158.68 83.5

10-51-366 INMATE LABOR 35.89 250.68 500.00 249.32 50.1

10-51-440 EVIDENCE .00 1,364.02 1,000.00 (                364.02) 136.4

10-51-460 MAINTENANCE AND SUPPLIES .00 489.98 1,500.00 1,010.02 32.7

10-51-462 PEST CONTROL 312.00 390.00 500.00 110.00 78.0

10-51-463 ACO SUPPLIES .00 1,410.98 1,300.00 (                110.98) 108.5

10-51-465 EMPLOYMENT TESTING/BACKGROUND .00 2,210.00 3,500.00 1,290.00 63.1

10-51-466 WEAPONS AND AMMUNITION 519.30 3,795.45 3,500.00 (                295.45) 108.4

10-51-467 SV CONTRACT PAYMENT .00 .00 5,500.00 5,500.00 .0

10-51-470 VEHICLE EXPENSE 6,470.22 17,939.53 10,000.00 (             7,939.53) 179.4

10-51-475 POLICE FUEL EXPENSE 2,839.45 19,130.93 13,500.00 (             5,630.93) 141.7

10-51-505 TOW FEES 521.11 3,695.24 3,000.00 (                695.24) 123.2

10-51-620 EQUIP REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE .00 2,067.12 2,500.00 432.88 82.7

10-51-640 MEMBERSHIP .00 .00 725.00 725.00 .0

10-51-660 TRAVEL AND TRAINING 2,069.77 4,680.60 7,500.00 2,819.40 62.4

10-51-665 COMMUNITY RELATIONS 394.88 459.88 1,000.00 540.12 46.0

10-51-705 CAPITAL LEASE 73.70 828.87 1,500.00 671.13 55.3

10-51-800 DONATIONS - POLICE EXPENSES .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

10-51-801 DONATIONS - ANIMAL CONTROL EXP .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-51-804 SOFTWARE LICENSING .00 4,081.91 4,500.00 418.09 90.7

10-51-810 JAIL FEES .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

10-51-841 VEHICLE LEASE (                      1.00) 19,583.00 26,994.00 7,411.00 72.6

10-51-850 NEW EQUIPMENT .00 22,489.67 3,000.00 (           19,489.67) 749.7

10-51-856 BODY WORN CAMERA PROG. .00 584.06 3,500.00 2,915.94 16.7

TOTAL POLICE 98,121.80 793,722.04 895,922.00 102,199.96 88.6



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 7

FIRE

10-53-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES .00 .00 4,500.00 4,500.00 .0

10-53-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS .00 .00 536.00 536.00 .0

10-53-340 UTILITIES 818.36 7,778.61 8,500.00 721.39 91.5

10-53-450 EQUIPMENT/SUPPLIES .00 632.64 5,000.00 4,367.36 12.7

10-53-462 PEST CONTROL 312.00 390.00 .00 (                390.00) .0

10-53-470 VEHICLE EXPENSE .00 3,555.71 16,900.00 13,344.29 21.0

10-53-475 FUEL EXPENSE 6.91 173.75 2,000.00 1,826.25 8.7

10-53-516 PRESUMPTIVE CANCER COVERAGE .00 4,029.93 5,000.00 970.07 80.6

10-53-610 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE .00 .00 2,615.00 2,615.00 .0

10-53-841 CAPITAL OUTLAY - PROJECTS .00 .00 17,000.00 17,000.00 .0

TOTAL FIRE 1,137.27 16,560.64 62,051.00 45,490.36 26.7

BUILDING REGULATION

10-54-360 CONTRACT LABOR 4,725.00 56,175.00 57,500.00 1,325.00 97.7

10-54-472 MEMBERSHIP .00 405.00 .00 (                405.00) .0

10-54-760 BLDG REGULATION SUPPLIES .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-54-801 ABATEMENT .00 3,105.00 17,000.00 13,895.00 18.3

TOTAL BUILDING REGULATION 4,725.00 59,685.00 75,500.00 15,815.00 79.1

PUBLIC WORKS

10-57-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 583.44 12,901.08 14,791.00 1,889.92 87.2

10-57-105 OVERTIME 5.36 760.05 640.00 (                120.05) 118.8

10-57-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 167.97 3,109.26 5,776.00 2,666.74 53.8

10-57-271 TELEPHONE (                    34.47) 597.11 500.00 (                  97.11) 119.4

10-57-340 UTILITIES .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

10-57-366 INMATE LABOR 147.30 1,007.27 1,400.00 392.73 72.0

10-57-410 UNIFORMS & BOOTS 52.20 559.53 310.00 (                249.53) 180.5

10-57-460 MAINTENANCE AND SUPPLIES 506.02 3,255.95 1,700.00 (             1,555.95) 191.5

10-57-470 VEHICLE REPAIR/MAINT 43.57 328.61 1,500.00 1,171.39 21.9

10-57-475 FUEL EXPENSE 71.35 1,555.13 3,000.00 1,444.87 51.8

10-57-476 DIESEL 216.27 740.69 500.00 (                240.69) 148.1

10-57-500 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 15,773.26 29,769.50 30,000.00 230.50 99.2

10-57-540 SMALL TOOLS .00 1,741.41 1,500.00 (                241.41) 116.1

10-57-610 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE .00 714.78 6,500.00 5,785.22 11.0

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 17,532.27 57,040.37 70,117.00 13,076.63 81.4



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 8

CITY POOL

10-58-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 5,909.53 12,959.08 15,000.00 2,040.92 86.4

10-58-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 756.84 1,472.44 1,344.00 (                128.44) 109.6

10-58-340 UTILITIES 964.70 4,852.74 7,000.00 2,147.26 69.3

10-58-460 MAINTENANCE AND SUPPLIES 468.59 2,645.41 5,200.00 2,554.59 50.9

10-58-660 CERTIFYING 1,005.00 1,240.00 2,400.00 1,160.00 51.7

TOTAL CITY POOL 9,104.66 23,169.67 30,944.00 7,774.33 74.9

SUMMER SPLASH

10-59-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 4,194.08 6,705.49 8,040.00 1,334.51 83.4

10-59-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 587.72 985.94 721.00 (                264.94) 136.8

10-59-460 SUPPLIES .00 286.61 300.00 13.39 95.5

10-59-800 DONATIONS - SUMMER SPLASH EXP .00 422.60 5,000.00 4,577.40 8.5

TOTAL SUMMER SPLASH 4,781.80 8,400.64 14,061.00 5,660.36 59.7

PARKS & RECREATION

10-60-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES .00 .00 3,907.00 3,907.00 .0

10-60-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS .00 .00 491.00 491.00 .0

10-60-340 UTILITIES 771.94 5,345.75 6,000.00 654.25 89.1

10-60-460 SUPPLIES 841.36 5,225.83 2,500.00 (             2,725.83) 209.0

10-60-505 PARK PROJECT EXPENSE .00 3,617.35 .00 (             3,617.35) .0

10-60-530 COMMUNITY RELATIONS/JULY 4TH 5,495.97 8,849.96 10,000.00 1,150.04 88.5

10-60-800 DONATIONS - COMM EVENTS EXP .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

TOTAL PARKS & RECREATION 7,109.27 23,038.89 24,898.00 1,859.11 92.5



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 9

LIBRARY AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

10-62-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 12,229.24 109,696.49 100,556.00 (             9,140.49) 109.1

10-62-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2,297.18 21,703.93 19,364.00 (             2,339.93) 112.1

10-62-271 TELEPHONE 224.76 1,760.91 1,500.00 (                260.91) 117.4

10-62-300 PRINTING 196.28 960.58 800.00 (                160.58) 120.1

10-62-340 UTILITIES 1,410.58 7,329.90 7,500.00 170.10 97.7

10-62-366 INMATE LABOR 435.35 2,769.12 2,200.00 (                569.12) 125.9

10-62-460 SUPPLIES 1,154.18 2,202.07 2,850.00 647.93 77.3

10-62-462 PEST CONTROL 312.00 390.00 450.00 60.00 86.7

10-62-476 FUEL 2.91 182.67 200.00 17.33 91.3

10-62-481 INTERNET 400.00 1,660.00 5,000.00 3,340.00 33.2

10-62-620 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINT .00 .00 350.00 350.00 .0

10-62-640 MEMBERSHIP .00 105.00 200.00 95.00 52.5

10-62-650 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES .00 1,250.00 2,000.00 750.00 62.5

10-62-660 TRAVEL AND TRAINING .00 125.00 500.00 375.00 25.0

10-62-703 COMMUNITY RELATIONS .00 175.87 200.00 24.13 87.9

10-62-705 CAPITAL LEASE 73.70 828.87 800.00 (                  28.87) 103.6

10-62-800 DONATIONS - LIBRARY EXP 2,271.08 3,724.02 3,000.00 (                724.02) 124.1

TOTAL LIBRARY AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 21,007.26 154,864.43 147,470.00 (             7,394.43) 105.0

CITY BUS

10-65-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 5,530.87 12,813.29 15,596.00 2,782.71 82.2

10-65-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3,018.76 3,921.37 1,967.00 (             1,954.37) 199.4

10-65-475 FUEL EXPENSE 609.12 4,208.98 4,000.00 (                208.98) 105.2

10-65-480 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE .00 9,633.87 5,000.00 (             4,633.87) 192.7

TOTAL CITY BUS 9,158.75 30,577.51 26,563.00 (             4,014.51) 115.1

ACTIVITY CENTER

10-68-290 SUPPLIES 141.94 625.93 1,100.00 474.07 56.9

10-68-340 UTILITIES 530.56 3,030.77 3,000.00 (                  30.77) 101.0

10-68-450 EQUIPMENT .00 .00 600.00 600.00 .0

10-68-462 PEST CONTROL 312.00 390.00 500.00 110.00 78.0

10-68-463 EQUIPMENT REPAIR .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

TOTAL ACTIVITY CENTER 984.50 4,046.70 6,200.00 2,153.30 65.3



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 10

TOWN GRANTS

10-69-803 IT GRANT EXP .00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .0

10-69-804 MISC GRANT EXP .00 .00 150,000.00 150,000.00 .0

10-69-805 BUILDING REGULATION EXP .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-69-806 LIBRARY GRANTS EXP 4,004.68 21,780.38 50,000.00 28,219.62 43.6

10-69-807 SENIOR CENTER GRANT EXP .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

10-69-808 SUMMER SPLASH GRANT EXP 1,284.30 1,824.35 5,000.00 3,175.65 36.5

10-69-810 E-RATE GRANT EXP .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

10-69-815 PUBLIC WORKS GRANT EXP .00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

10-69-816 COURT GRANT EXP .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

10-69-817 SUMMER SPLASH DONATION EXP .00 (                      .01) .00 .01 .0

10-69-819 GENERAL ADMIN GRANT EXP .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0

10-69-845 POLICE GRANT EXP .00 .00 180,000.00 180,000.00 .0

10-69-849 BUS LINE EXP .00 .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .0

10-69-850 SCBA GRANT EXP .00 .00 200,000.00 200,000.00 .0

10-69-851 USDA EQUIPMENT GRANT .00 .00 60,000.00 60,000.00 .0

TOTAL TOWN GRANTS 5,288.98 23,604.72 900,000.00 876,395.28 2.6

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

10-70-990 CONTINGENCY 2,978.51 10,576.31 22,494.00 11,917.69 47.0

10-70-995 CONTINGENCY - URS SET ASIDE .00 .00 64,778.00 64,778.00 .0

TOTAL NON-DEPARTMENTAL 2,978.51 10,576.31 87,272.00 76,695.69 12.1

TRANSFERS

10-90-980 TRANSFERS OUT TO CAPITAL PROJ 110,629.19 442,507.76 440,000.00 (             2,507.76) 100.6

TOTAL TRANSFERS 110,629.19 442,507.76 440,000.00 (             2,507.76) 100.6

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 387,188.82 2,232,402.35 3,407,841.00 1,175,438.65 65.5

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (             72,377.49) 274,241.82 .00 (         274,241.82) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

POLICE - DHS GRANT - VEHICLE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 11

REVENUE

11-30-700 DEMA GRANT FUNDS .00 305,560.72 300,000.00 (             5,560.72) 101.9

TOTAL REVENUE .00 305,560.72 300,000.00 (             5,560.72) 101.9

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 305,560.72 300,000.00 (             5,560.72) 101.9



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

POLICE - DHS GRANT - VEHICLE

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 12

EXPENDITURES

11-40-810 DHS AUTHORIZED EXPENSES .00 216,619.52 300,000.00 83,380.48 72.2

TOTAL EXPENDITURES .00 216,619.52 300,000.00 83,380.48 72.2

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 216,619.52 300,000.00 83,380.48 72.2

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 88,941.20 .00 (           88,941.20) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

POLICE - DHS GRANT - BP OT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 13

REVENUE

12-30-800 DHS STONEGARDEN 16,096.79 58,696.63 250,000.00 191,303.37 23.5

TOTAL REVENUE 16,096.79 58,696.63 250,000.00 191,303.37 23.5

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 16,096.79 58,696.63 250,000.00 191,303.37 23.5



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

POLICE - DHS GRANT - BP OT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 14

EXPENDITURES

12-40-105 STONE GARDEN OVERTIME 663.09 6,708.48 .00 (             6,708.48) .0

12-40-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (                  856.63) 6,483.31 .00 (             6,483.31) .0

12-40-131 OVERTIME .00 955.50 .00 (                955.50) .0

12-40-135 PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT 267.58 10,141.24 .00 (           10,141.24) .0

12-40-810 AUTHORIZED EXPENSES .00 .00 243,660.00 243,660.00 .0

12-40-840 MILEAGE 772.68 28,226.99 6,340.00 (           21,886.99) 445.2

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 846.72 52,515.52 250,000.00 197,484.48 21.0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 846.72 52,515.52 250,000.00 197,484.48 21.0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 15,250.07 6,181.11 .00 (             6,181.11) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

POLICE - DHS GRANT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 15

REVENUE

13-30-700 GOHS (DUI TASK FORCE) 1,078.77 1,078.77 100,000.00 98,921.23 1.1

TOTAL REVENUE 1,078.77 1,078.77 100,000.00 98,921.23 1.1

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 1,078.77 1,078.77 100,000.00 98,921.23 1.1



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

POLICE - DHS GRANT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 16

EXPENDITURES

13-40-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,410.74 1,673.01 .00 (             1,673.01) .0

13-40-135 PUBLIC SAFETY RETIREMENT .00 479.75 .00 (                479.75) .0

13-40-810 DHS AUTHORIZED EXPENSES (               1,267.41) 10,934.61 100,000.00 89,065.39 10.9

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 143.33 13,087.37 100,000.00 86,912.63 13.1

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 143.33 13,087.37 100,000.00 86,912.63 13.1

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 935.44 (           12,008.60) .00 12,008.60 .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

RICO FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 17

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

16-36-950 RICO REVENUE (ASSET FORFEITURE .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

RICO FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 18

EXPENDITURES

16-40-850 RICO AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

TRUST FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 19

REVENUE

20-30-200 FINES AND BAILS 15,285.11 139,124.15 174,000.00 34,875.85 80.0

20-30-300 BONDS .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

20-30-500 JCEF .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

TOTAL REVENUE 15,285.11 139,124.15 174,200.00 35,075.85 79.9

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

20-36-900 MISCELLANEOUS .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 15,285.11 139,124.15 174,300.00 35,175.85 79.8



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

TRUST FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 20

EXPENDITURES

20-40-200 FINES AND BAILS 27,538.28 128,467.25 174,000.00 45,532.75 73.8

20-40-400 RESTITUTION .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

20-40-401 BOND .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

20-40-500 JCEF .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 27,538.28 128,467.25 174,300.00 45,832.75 73.7

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 27,538.28 128,467.25 174,300.00 45,832.75 73.7

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (             12,253.17) 10,656.90 .00 (           10,656.90) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

VOL FIREFIGHTER PENSION FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 21

REVENUE

22-30-100 INTEREST REVENUE 4.98 73.94 .00 (                  73.94) .0

TOTAL REVENUE 4.98 73.94 .00 (                  73.94) .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 4.98 73.94 .00 (                  73.94) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

VOL FIREFIGHTER PENSION FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 22

EXPENDITURES

22-40-790 DUE TO FIREMEN PENSION .00 599.00 .00 (                599.00) .0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES .00 599.00 .00 (                599.00) .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 599.00 .00 (                599.00) .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 4.98 (                525.06) .00 525.06 .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

ROAD USER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:21AM       PAGE: 23

REVENUE

23-30-300 GAS TAX REVENUES - HURF 30,250.85 168,727.29 162,413.00 (             6,314.29) 103.9

TOTAL REVENUE 30,250.85 168,727.29 162,413.00 (             6,314.29) 103.9

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

23-39-998 TRANSFERS IN FROM FUND BALANCE 11,250.00 135,000.00 135,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 11,250.00 135,000.00 135,000.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 41,500.85 303,727.29 297,413.00 (             6,314.29) 102.1



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

ROAD USER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 24

ROAD USERS

23-40-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,990.17 32,421.20 47,654.00 15,232.80 68.0

23-40-105 OVERTIME 10.71 138.00 1,238.00 1,100.00 11.2

23-40-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 484.26 6,655.17 13,842.00 7,186.83 48.1

23-40-340 UTILITIES 4,563.94 29,331.61 30,000.00 668.39 97.8

23-40-410 UNIFORMS & BOOTS 182.27 1,678.55 930.00 (                748.55) 180.5

23-40-460 MAINTENANCE AND SUPPLIES .00 5,026.75 5,000.00 (                  26.75) 100.5

23-40-475 FUEL .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

23-40-490 ROAD REPAIR .00 3,998.91 97,249.00 93,250.09 4.1

23-40-610 EQUIPMENT REPAIR .00 7,962.53 9,000.00 1,037.47 88.5

23-40-650 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 490.59 7,089.56 7,500.00 410.44 94.5

23-40-660 TRAVEL .00 112.00 .00 (                112.00) .0

23-40-831 CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 52,099.70 80,000.00 27,900.30 65.1

TOTAL ROAD USERS 7,721.94 146,513.98 297,413.00 150,899.02 49.3

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 7,721.94 146,513.98 297,413.00 150,899.02 49.3

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 33,778.91 157,213.31 .00 (         157,213.31) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

WATER INFRASTRUCTURE SUST

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 25

GRANT REVENUE

26-30-101 GRANT REVENUE .00 .00 112,000.00 112,000.00 .0

TOTAL GRANT REVENUE .00 .00 112,000.00 112,000.00 .0

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

26-39-951 TRANSFERS IN FROM WATER FUND .00 .00 28,000.00 28,000.00 .0

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS .00 .00 28,000.00 28,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 .00 140,000.00 140,000.00 .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

WATER INFRASTRUCTURE SUST

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 26

EXPENDITURES

26-40-840 AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES .00 .00 140,000.00 140,000.00 .0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES .00 .00 140,000.00 140,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 140,000.00 140,000.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

MINDFUL METERING GRANT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 27

GRANT REVENUE

27-30-101 GRANT REVENUE .00 .00 448,000.00 448,000.00 .0

TOTAL GRANT REVENUE .00 .00 448,000.00 448,000.00 .0

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

27-39-951 TRANSFERS IN FROM WATE FUND .00 .00 89,600.00 89,600.00 .0

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS .00 .00 89,600.00 89,600.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 .00 537,600.00 537,600.00 .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

MINDFUL METERING GRANT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 28

GRANT EXPENDITURES

27-40-840 AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES .00 .00 537,600.00 537,600.00 .0

TOTAL GRANT EXPENDITURES .00 .00 537,600.00 537,600.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 537,600.00 537,600.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

STATE HURF - SKYLINE PROJECT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 29

REVENUE

28-30-998 TRANSFERS IN FROM FUND BALANCE 172,568.42 2,070,821.04 2,070,821.00 (                      .04) 100.0

TOTAL REVENUE 172,568.42 2,070,821.04 2,070,821.00 (                      .04) 100.0

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

28-39-980 TRANSFERS IN FROM CAPITAL PROJ .00 .00 30,223.00 30,223.00 .0

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS .00 .00 30,223.00 30,223.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 172,568.42 2,070,821.04 2,101,044.00 30,222.96 98.6



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

STATE HURF - SKYLINE PROJECT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 30

STATE HURF EXPENDITURES

28-40-805 DESIGN .00 .00 215,821.00 215,821.00 .0

28-40-810 CONSTRUCTION .00 2,101,423.00 1,885,223.00 (         216,200.00) 111.5

TOTAL STATE HURF EXPENDITURES .00 2,101,423.00 2,101,044.00 (                379.00) 100.0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 2,101,423.00 2,101,044.00 (                379.00) 100.0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 172,568.42 (           30,601.96) .00 30,601.96 .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GRANT OPPORTUNITY

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 31

GRANT REVENUE

29-30-800 GRANT REVENUE CDBG .00 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 .0

29-30-862 GRANT REVENUE - LIBRARY 10,000.00 10,000.00 .00 (           10,000.00) .0

TOTAL GRANT REVENUE 10,000.00 10,000.00 500,000.00 490,000.00 2.0

SOURCE 39

29-39-998 TRANSFERS IN FROM FUND BALANCE 2,083.33 24,999.96 25,000.00 .04 100.0

TOTAL SOURCE 39 2,083.33 24,999.96 25,000.00 .04 100.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 12,083.33 34,999.96 525,000.00 490,000.04 6.7



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GRANT OPPORTUNITY

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 32

GRANT EXPENDITURES

29-40-840 AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES .00 .00 500,000.00 500,000.00 .0

29-40-841 AUTH EXP - LIBRARY COX GRANT .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

TOTAL GRANT EXPENDITURES .00 .00 525,000.00 525,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 525,000.00 525,000.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 12,083.33 34,999.96 .00 (           34,999.96) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 33

REVENUE

51-30-200 WATER SALES 38,191.47 422,189.18 409,940.00 (           12,249.18) 103.0

51-30-202 RC: RECONNECT FEE 40.00 600.00 1,000.00 400.00 60.0

51-30-300 CONNECTION FEES 105.00 1,605.00 1,500.00 (                105.00) 107.0

51-30-400 PENALTIES & FORFEITURES .00 10,766.01 7,000.00 (             3,766.01) 153.8

51-30-900 WATER ADMIN FEE .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

TOTAL REVENUE 38,336.47 435,160.19 420,440.00 (           14,720.19) 103.5

MISCELLANOUS REVENUE

51-36-900 MISCELLANEOUS .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

TOTAL MISCELLANOUS REVENUE .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

51-39-998 TRANSFERS IN FROM FUND BALANCE 16,133.33 193,599.96 193,600.00 .04 100.0

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 16,133.33 193,599.96 193,600.00 .04 100.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 54,469.80 628,760.15 615,540.00 (           13,220.15) 102.2



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

WATER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 34

WATER EXPENDITURES

51-40-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 10,356.33 111,780.05 120,084.00 8,303.95 93.1

51-40-105 OVERTIME 58.93 3,362.56 3,718.00 355.44 90.4

51-40-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2,813.03 32,908.66 42,839.00 9,930.34 76.8

51-40-271 TELEPHONE .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

51-40-280 INSURANCE 5,430.80 15,786.60 18,200.00 2,413.40 86.7

51-40-290 OFFICE SUPPLIES 282.18 1,666.18 2,000.00 333.82 83.3

51-40-300 PRINTING 156.35 478.84 1,000.00 521.16 47.9

51-40-340 UTILITIES 7,682.50 39,205.17 45,000.00 5,794.83 87.1

51-40-360 CONTRACT LABOR .00 .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .0

51-40-366 INMATE LABOR 662.83 4,701.45 3,500.00 (             1,201.45) 134.3

51-40-410 UNIFORMS & BOOTS 143.65 1,678.55 1,200.00 (                478.55) 139.9

51-40-440 POSTAGE .00 3,087.02 3,500.00 412.98 88.2

51-40-460 MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 11,427.12 18,769.23 11,000.00 (             7,769.23) 170.6

51-40-470 VEHICLE EXPENSE 15.95 4,268.84 10,000.00 5,731.16 42.7

51-40-472 METER REPLACEMENT .00 3,388.09 9,000.00 5,611.91 37.7

51-40-475 FUEL EXPENSE 106.56 2,168.97 5,200.00 3,031.03 41.7

51-40-476 DIESEL 973.18 3,333.14 5,000.00 1,666.86 66.7

51-40-480 SOFTWARE LICENSING - CASELLE 112.46 601.66 2,700.00 2,098.34 22.3

51-40-483 BANK FEES 864.72 7,566.16 1,000.00 (             6,566.16) 756.6

51-40-510 WATER TESTS 2,411.00 7,883.44 3,000.00 (             4,883.44) 262.8

51-40-516 ADEQ FEES .00 2,087.55 5,000.00 2,912.45 41.8

51-40-610 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 5,494.86 20,396.77 20,000.00 (                396.77) 102.0

51-40-640 MEMBERSHIP .00 650.00 1,200.00 550.00 54.2

51-40-650 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 5,005.34 64,533.32 45,000.00 (           19,533.32) 143.4

51-40-660 TRAVEL & TRAINING 247.87 247.87 1,500.00 1,252.13 16.5

51-40-680 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 6,333.33 75,999.96 76,000.00 .04 100.0

51-40-840 WATER CAPITAL OUTLAY .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

51-40-845 CONTINGENCY EXP .00 .00 21,999.00 21,999.00 .0

51-40-900 BAD DEBT EXPENSE .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

51-40-926 TRANSFERS OUT TO WATER INF SUS .00 .00 28,000.00 28,000.00 .0

51-40-927 TRANSFERS OUT TO MINDFUL METER .00 .00 89,600.00 89,600.00 .0

TOTAL WATER EXPENDITURES 60,578.99 426,550.08 615,540.00 188,989.92 69.3

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 60,578.99 426,550.08 615,540.00 188,989.92 69.3

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (               6,109.19) 202,210.07 .00 (         202,210.07) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

SEWER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 35

REVENUE

52-30-200 SEWER SERVICES 24,914.95 280,213.98 275,500.00 (             4,713.98) 101.7

52-30-300 CONNECTION FEES .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

TOTAL REVENUE 24,914.95 280,213.98 276,500.00 (             3,713.98) 101.3

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

52-36-900 MISCELLANEOUS .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

52-39-998 TRANSFERS IN FROM FUND BALANCE 3,833.33 45,999.96 46,000.00 .04 100.0

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 3,833.33 45,999.96 46,000.00 .04 100.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 28,748.28 326,213.94 323,000.00 (             3,213.94) 101.0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

SEWER FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 36

SEWER EXPENDITURES

52-40-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 5,238.43 61,624.76 64,720.00 3,095.24 95.2

52-40-105 OVERTIME 32.13 1,905.62 1,907.00 1.38 99.9

52-40-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,676.57 20,130.62 23,332.00 3,201.38 86.3

52-40-271 TELEPHONE .00 .00 200.00 200.00 .0

52-40-280 INSURANCE 5,430.80 15,786.60 18,200.00 2,413.40 86.7

52-40-300 PRINTING 156.35 340.68 1,000.00 659.32 34.1

52-40-340 UTILITIES 418.53 2,766.70 11,000.00 8,233.30 25.2

52-40-366 INMATE LABOR 662.81 4,670.72 7,500.00 2,829.28 62.3

52-40-410 UNIFORMS & BOOTS 143.65 1,678.55 1,200.00 (                478.55) 139.9

52-40-440 POSTAGE .00 3,087.02 3,500.00 412.98 88.2

52-40-460 MAINTENANCE AND SUPPLIES 303.01 1,298.96 2,800.00 1,501.04 46.4

52-40-470 VEHICLE EXPENSE 315.24 3,514.25 4,500.00 985.75 78.1

52-40-475 FUEL 177.00 3,547.10 8,000.00 4,452.90 44.3

52-40-476 DIESEL 973.18 3,333.11 4,000.00 666.89 83.3

52-40-480 SOFTWARE LICENSING - CASELLE 121.44 649.82 2,500.00 1,850.18 26.0

52-40-483 BANK FEES 564.40 4,953.30 1,000.00 (             3,953.30) 495.3

52-40-516 ADEQ FEES .00 3,670.00 3,000.00 (                670.00) 122.3

52-40-610 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 132.02 3,416.34 5,000.00 1,583.66 68.3

52-40-650 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4,557.83 44,077.02 33,700.00 (           10,377.02) 130.8

52-40-680 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 3,833.33 45,999.96 46,000.00 .04 100.0

52-40-702 SEWAGE POND COMPLIANCE .00 67.00 9,000.00 8,933.00 .7

52-40-846 CONTINGENCY EXP .00 .00 16,441.00 16,441.00 .0

52-40-900 BAD DEBT EXPENSE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

52-40-950 PAYMENT ON WIFA LOAN 44,617.75 54,257.04 54,000.00 (                257.04) 100.5

TOTAL SEWER EXPENDITURES 69,354.47 280,775.17 323,000.00 42,224.83 86.9

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 69,354.47 280,775.17 323,000.00 42,224.83 86.9

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (             40,606.19) 45,438.77 .00 (           45,438.77) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GARBAGE FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 37

REVENUE

54-30-200 SALES RECEIPTS 14,571.78 169,402.23 205,000.00 35,597.77 82.6

TOTAL REVENUE 14,571.78 169,402.23 205,000.00 35,597.77 82.6

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 14,571.78 169,402.23 205,000.00 35,597.77 82.6



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

GARBAGE FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 38

GARBAGE EXPENDITURES

54-40-360 CONTRACT 30,730.16 179,320.51 205,000.00 25,679.49 87.5

TOTAL GARBAGE EXPENDITURES 30,730.16 179,320.51 205,000.00 25,679.49 87.5

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 30,730.16 179,320.51 205,000.00 25,679.49 87.5

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (             16,158.38) (             9,918.28) .00 9,918.28 .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

LANDFILL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 39

REVENUE

55-30-200 SALES - LANDFILL 118,582.42 1,385,786.30 1,642,916.00 257,129.70 84.4

55-30-201 LATE PENALTIES .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

55-30-205 MISC.REVENUE 80.00 220.00 5,000.00 4,780.00 4.4

55-30-210 TIPPING FEES 20,867.94 255,972.09 209,300.00 (           46,672.09) 122.3

TOTAL REVENUE 139,530.36 1,641,978.39 1,857,716.00 215,737.61 88.4

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

55-36-400 SALE OF FIXED ASSETS .00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE .00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 139,530.36 1,641,978.39 1,872,716.00 230,737.61 87.7



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

LANDFILL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 40

LANDFILL EXPENDITURES

55-40-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 23,304.06 224,064.83 279,902.00 55,837.17 80.1

55-40-105 OVERTIME 4,480.42 33,394.05 29,313.00 (             4,081.05) 113.9

55-40-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 5,040.52 86,989.45 102,502.00 15,512.55 84.9

55-40-265 BANK COSTS/FEES .00 3,000.00 30,000.00 27,000.00 10.0

55-40-271 TELEPHONE .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

55-40-280 INSURANCE 5,430.80 15,786.60 18,200.00 2,413.40 86.7

55-40-290 OFFICE SUPPLIES 993.06 2,918.55 1,000.00 (             1,918.55) 291.9

55-40-300 PRINTING 445.62 2,361.71 2,850.00 488.29 82.9

55-40-337 PROPERTY LEASE 46,000.00 552,000.00 552,000.00 .00 100.0

55-40-340 UTILITIES 1,862.40 12,418.53 12,500.00 81.47 99.4

55-40-350 SAFETY EQUIPMENT .00 89.87 1,400.00 1,310.13 6.4

55-40-360 CONTRACT LABOR 190.00 3,420.00 9,000.00 5,580.00 38.0

55-40-366 INMATE LABOR 623.04 5,627.82 4,500.00 (             1,127.82) 125.1

55-40-410 UNIFORMS & BOOTS 748.44 7,931.38 9,500.00 1,568.62 83.5

55-40-440 POSTAGE .00 1,764.00 2,000.00 236.00 88.2

55-40-460 MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 1,144.78 11,959.99 16,000.00 4,040.01 74.8

55-40-470 VEHICLE EXPENSE 391.81 1,646.70 4,500.00 2,853.30 36.6

55-40-475 FUEL EXPENSE 256.11 4,866.88 6,000.00 1,133.12 81.1

55-40-476 DIESEL 6,716.38 91,695.60 135,000.00 43,304.40 67.9

55-40-480 SOFTWARE LICENSING - CASELLE 143.94 644.54 3,200.00 2,555.46 20.1

55-40-481 INTERNET 90.74 1,115.54 500.00 (                615.54) 223.1

55-40-483 BANK FEES 1,618.14 14,332.44 3,000.00 (           11,332.44) 477.8

55-40-510 LAB FEES 2,658.00 5,212.00 3,500.00 (             1,712.00) 148.9

55-40-511 WATER MONITORING .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

55-40-516 ADEQ FEES .00 10,261.20 15,000.00 4,738.80 68.4

55-40-610 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 55,191.10 256,511.36 170,000.00 (           86,511.36) 150.9

55-40-640 MEMBERSHIP .00 130.33 600.00 469.67 21.7

55-40-650 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 1,962.33 82,722.77 30,000.00 (           52,722.77) 275.7

55-40-660 TRAVEL - TRAVEL/TRAINING .00 5,132.73 2,000.00 (             3,132.73) 256.6

55-40-680 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 11,250.00 135,000.00 135,000.00 .00 100.0

55-40-705 CAPITAL LEASE 6,764.69 60,882.21 82,000.00 21,117.79 74.3

55-40-710 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT .00 .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

55-40-725 CHANGE IN POSTCLOSURE COSTS 49,320.14 232,653.51 100,000.00 (         132,653.51) 232.7

55-40-804 SOFTWARE LICENSING .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

55-40-846 CONTINGENCY EXP .00 90,512.79 78,249.00 (           12,263.79) 115.7

55-40-855 METHANE MONITORING .00 6,180.00 6,500.00 320.00 95.1

55-40-900 BAD DEBT EXPENSE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

TOTAL LANDFILL EXPENDITURES 226,626.52 1,963,227.38 1,872,716.00 (           90,511.38) 104.8

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 226,626.52 1,963,227.38 1,872,716.00 (           90,511.38) 104.8

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (             87,096.16) (         321,248.99) .00 321,248.99 .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

TRANSIT SERVICES FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 41

REVENUE

65-30-100 CONTRACT REVENUE 41,416.06 263,447.69 241,588.00 (           21,859.69) 109.1

TOTAL REVENUE 41,416.06 263,447.69 241,588.00 (           21,859.69) 109.1

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

65-39-998 TRANSFERS IN FROM FUND BALANCE 1,666.67 20,000.04 20,000.00 (                      .04) 100.0

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 1,666.67 20,000.04 20,000.00 (                      .04) 100.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 43,082.73 283,447.73 261,588.00 (           21,859.73) 108.4



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

TRANSIT SERVICES FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 42

EXPENDITURES

65-40-100 PERSONNEL SERVICES 9,011.66 130,119.33 129,612.00 (                507.33) 100.4

65-40-105 OVERTIME .00 .00 542.00 542.00 .0

65-40-130 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (                  173.50) 52,914.85 50,571.00 (             2,343.85) 104.6

65-40-280 INSURANCE 5,430.80 15,786.60 18,200.00 2,413.40 86.7

65-40-475 FUEL EXPENSE 1,731.66 11,239.12 13,500.00 2,260.88 83.3

65-40-480 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 399.91 17,394.39 16,573.00 (                821.39) 105.0

65-40-660 TRAVEL AND TRAINING .00 541.78 1,000.00 458.22 54.2

65-40-710 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 27.79 4,040.41 10,000.00 5,959.59 40.4

65-40-910 TRANSFER OUT GF-ADMIN % 1,799.17 21,590.04 21,590.00 (                      .04) 100.0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 18,227.49 253,626.52 261,588.00 7,961.48 97.0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 18,227.49 253,626.52 261,588.00 7,961.48 97.0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 24,855.24 29,821.21 .00 (           29,821.21) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

FORT HUACHUCA CONTRACTS

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:22AM       PAGE: 43

REVENUE

67-30-100 CONTRACT REVENUE 144,229.63 538,586.48 700,000.00 161,413.52 76.9

TOTAL REVENUE 144,229.63 538,586.48 700,000.00 161,413.52 76.9

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 144,229.63 538,586.48 700,000.00 161,413.52 76.9



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

FORT HUACHUCA CONTRACTS

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:23AM       PAGE: 44

EXPENDITURES

67-40-840 AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES 140,475.60 508,387.00 650,000.00 141,613.00 78.2

67-40-910 TRANSFERS OUT GF - ADMIN% 3,740.69 29,701.54 50,000.00 20,298.46 59.4

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 144,216.29 538,088.54 700,000.00 161,911.46 76.9

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 144,216.29 538,088.54 700,000.00 161,911.46 76.9

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 13.34 497.94 .00 (                497.94) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:23AM       PAGE: 45

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

80-39-910 TRANSFER IN FROM GENERAL FUND 110,629.19 442,507.76 440,000.00 (             2,507.76) 100.6

80-39-998 TRANSFERS IN FROM FUND BALANCE 13,333.33 159,999.96 160,000.00 .04 100.0

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 123,962.52 602,507.72 600,000.00 (             2,507.72) 100.4

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 123,962.52 602,507.72 600,000.00 (             2,507.72) 100.4



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:23AM       PAGE: 46

EXPENDITURES

80-40-805 PARK PROJECTS 239.59 1,765.33 50,000.00 48,234.67 3.5

80-40-806 BUILDING IMPROVEMENT PROJECT .00 10,250.00 10,000.00 (                250.00) 102.5

80-40-807 ROAD, STREET & SIDEWALK IMPROV .00 .00 69,777.00 69,777.00 .0

80-40-850 AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES 148,138.95 513,572.37 440,000.00 (           73,572.37) 116.7

80-40-928 TRANSFERS OUT TO SKYLINE PROJ .00 .00 30,223.00 30,223.00 .0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 148,378.54 525,587.70 600,000.00 74,412.30 87.6

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 148,378.54 525,587.70 600,000.00 74,412.30 87.6

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (             24,416.02) 76,920.02 .00 (           76,920.02) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

FIRE PROTECTION & PREVENTION G

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:23AM       PAGE: 47

GRANT REVENUE

82-30-800 GRANT REVENUE 412,382.92 412,382.92 336,000.00 (           76,382.92) 122.7

TOTAL GRANT REVENUE 412,382.92 412,382.92 336,000.00 (           76,382.92) 122.7

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

82-39-998 TRANSFERS IN FROM FUND BALANCE 9,343.75 112,000.00 112,125.00 125.00 99.9

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 9,343.75 112,000.00 112,125.00 125.00 99.9

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 421,726.67 524,382.92 448,125.00 (           76,257.92) 117.0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

FIRE PROTECTION & PREVENTION G

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:23AM       PAGE: 48

GRANT EXPENDITURES

82-40-840 AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES 81,526.92 412,382.92 448,125.00 35,742.08 92.0

TOTAL GRANT EXPENDITURES 81,526.92 412,382.92 448,125.00 35,742.08 92.0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 81,526.92 412,382.92 448,125.00 35,742.08 92.0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 340,199.75 112,000.00 .00 (         112,000.00) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

HOLIDAY FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:23AM       PAGE: 49

REVENUE

86-30-200 HOLIDAY FUND DONATION 200.00 7,360.82 4,000.00 (             3,360.82) 184.0

TOTAL REVENUE 200.00 7,360.82 4,000.00 (             3,360.82) 184.0

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

86-39-998 TRANSFERS IN FROM FUND BALANCE .00 10,802.00 16,203.00 5,401.00 66.7

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS .00 10,802.00 16,203.00 5,401.00 66.7

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 200.00 18,162.82 20,203.00 2,040.18 89.9



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

HOLIDAY FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:23AM       PAGE: 50

HOLIDAY FUND EXPENDITURES

86-40-100 CHILDREN'S FUND GIFTS/FOOD 296.62 1,887.45 20,203.00 18,315.55 9.3

TOTAL HOLIDAY FUND EXPENDITURES 296.62 1,887.45 20,203.00 18,315.55 9.3

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 296.62 1,887.45 20,203.00 18,315.55 9.3

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (                    96.62) 16,275.37 .00 (           16,275.37) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

BACK TO SCHOOL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:23AM       PAGE: 51

REVENUE

87-30-200 BACK TO SCHOOL PRGM DONATIONS .00 2,017.12 5,000.00 2,982.88 40.3

TOTAL REVENUE .00 2,017.12 5,000.00 2,982.88 40.3

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

87-39-998 TRANSFERS IN FROM FUND BALANCE 269.25 3,231.00 3,231.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 269.25 3,231.00 3,231.00 .00 100.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 269.25 5,248.12 8,231.00 2,982.88 63.8



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

BACK TO SCHOOL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:23AM       PAGE: 52

BACK TO SCHOOL EXPENDITURES

87-40-100 BACK TO SCHOOL PRGM EXPENSES .00 1,656.55 8,231.00 6,574.45 20.1

TOTAL BACK TO SCHOOL EXPENDITURES .00 1,656.55 8,231.00 6,574.45 20.1

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 1,656.55 8,231.00 6,574.45 20.1

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 269.25 3,591.57 .00 (             3,591.57) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

AMERICAN RELIEF PROGRAM ACT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:23AM       PAGE: 53

GRANT REVENUE

88-30-300 TRANSFER IN FROM FUND BALANCE 38,972.08 467,664.96 467,665.00 .04 100.0

TOTAL GRANT REVENUE 38,972.08 467,664.96 467,665.00 .04 100.0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 38,972.08 467,664.96 467,665.00 .04 100.0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

AMERICAN RELIEF PROGRAM ACT

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 09/19/2025     08:23AM       PAGE: 54

GRANT EXPENDITURES

88-40-100 AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES .00 392,869.02 467,665.00 74,795.98 84.0

88-40-982 TRANSFER OUT TO FIRE PROT/PREV .00 (                125.00) .00 125.00 .0

TOTAL GRANT EXPENDITURES .00 392,744.02 467,665.00 74,920.98 84.0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 392,744.02 467,665.00 74,920.98 84.0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 38,972.08 74,920.94 .00 (           74,920.94) .0



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY
FY25 Budget Amendments

6/30/2025 FY2025 FY2025 FY2025

Account Description
 Actual - 

Unaudited Budget
 Variance Over/ 

(Under) Amendment  Amended Budget 

COUNCIL
10-42-220 Attorney Fees 46,762                      45,000                      1,762                    1,762                  46,762                         
10-42-100 Personnel Services 10,896                      14,400                      (3,504)                  (1,762)                12,638                         

Council Totals 57,658                      59,400                      (1,742)                  -                       59,400                         

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
10-43-100 Personnel Services 114,650                   147,581                   (32,931)                (32,931)              114,650                      
10-43-465 Employment Testing/background 1,271                        1,300                        (29)                         (13)                       1,287                            
10-43-483 Bank Fees 7,318                        -                             7,318                    7,318                  7,318                            
10-43-660 Travel And Training 514                            4,500                        (3,986)                  (3,986)                514                                
10-43-705 Debt:cap Lease Exp (830 Az St) 63,712                      34,100                      29,612                 29,612               63,712                         

General Administration Totals 187,465                   187,481                   (16)                         -                       187,481                      

MAGISTRATE
10-45-120 Prosecution Fees 13,418                      12,000                      1,418                    1,418                  13,418                         
10-45-130 Employee Benefits 14,404                      13,843                      561                        561                      14,404                         
10-45-221 Court Appt Attorneys 3,370                        9,000                        (5,630)                  (1,979)                7,021                            

Magistrate Totals 31,192                      34,843                      (3,651)                  -                       34,843                         

IT
10-48-100 Personnel Services -                             5,760                        (5,760)                  (5,760)                -                                 
10-48-101 Contract Labor -                             7,000                        (7,000)                  (7,000)                -                                 
10-48-130 Employee Benefits -                             453                            (453)                       (453)                    -                                 
10-48-210 Subscriptions & Software Lic 47,058                      45,000                      2,058                    2,058                  47,058                         
10-48-275 Cell Phone 24,754                      20,000                      4,754                    4,754                  24,754                         
10-48-450 Equipment 10,587                      7,500                        3,087                    3,087                  10,587                         
10-48-481 Internet 14,792                      11,000                      3,792                    3,792                  14,792                         
10-48-804 Software Licensing 1,499                        1,500                        (1)                            (1)                          1,499                            

IT Totals 98,690                      98,213                      477                        477                      98,690                         
*Contigency

POLICE
10-51-105 Overtime 9,022                        15,444                      (6,422)                  (4,595)                10,849                         
10-51-110 Uniform Allowance 3,939                        6,000                        (2,061)                  (2,061)                3,939                            
10-51-230 Professional Services 384                            1,600                        (1,216)                  (1,216)                384                                
10-51-231 Psprs Attorney -                             2,000                        (2,000)                  (2,000)                -                                 
10-51-340 Utilities 5,841                        7,000                        (1,159)                  (1,159)                5,841                            
10-51-460 Maintenance And Supplies 490                            1,500                        (1,010)                  (1,010)                490                                
10-51-465 Employment Testing/background 2,210                        3,500                        (1,290)                  (1,290)                2,210                            
10-51-467 Sv Contract Payment -                             5,500                        (5,500)                  (5,500)                -                                 
10-51-660 Travel And Training 4,681                        7,500                        (2,819)                  (2,819)                4,681                            
10-51-810 Jail Fees -                             4,000                        (4,000)                  (4,000)                -                                 
10-51-841 Vehicle Lease 19,583                      26,994                      (7,411)                  (7,411)                19,583                         
10-51-470 Vehicle Expense 17,940                      10,000                      7,940                    7,940                  17,940                         
10-51-475 Police Fuel Expense 19,131                      13,500                      5,631                    5,631                  19,131                         
10-51-850 New Equipment 22,490                      3,000                        19,490                 19,490               22,490                         

Police Totals 105,711                   107,538                   (1,827)                  -                       107,538                      

Ver: 9/19/2025 8:07 AM Page: 1



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY
FY25 Budget Amendments

6/30/2025 FY2025 FY2025 FY2025

Account Description
 Actual - 

Unaudited Budget
 Variance Over/ 

(Under) Amendment  Amended Budget 

PARKS & RECREATION
10-60-100 Personnel Services -                             3,907                        (3,907)                  (431)                    3,476                            
10-60-130 Employee Benefits -                             491                            (491)                       (491)                    -                                 
10-60-340 Utilities 5,346                        6,000                        (654)                       (654)                    5,346                            
10-60-460 Supplies 5,226                        2,500                        2,726                    2,726                  5,226                            
10-60-530 Community Relations/july 4th 8,850                        10,000                      (1,150)                  (1,150)                8,850                            

Parks & Recreation Totals 19,422                      22,898                      (3,476)                  -                       22,898                         

LIBRARY AND COMMUNITY SERVICES
10-62-100 Personnel Services 109,696                   100,556                   9,140                    9,140                  109,696                      
10-62-130 Employee Benefits 21,704                      19,364                      2,340                    2,340                  21,704                         
10-62-271 Telephone 1,761                        1,500                        261                        261                      1,761                            
10-62-300 Printing 961                            800                            161                        161                      961                                
10-62-340 Utilities 7,330                        7,500                        (170)                       (170)                    7,330                            
10-62-366 Inmate Labor 2,769                        2,200                        569                        569                      2,769                            
10-62-460 Supplies 2,202                        2,850                        (648)                       (648)                    2,202                            
10-62-462 Pest Control 390                            450                            (60)                         (60)                       390                                
10-62-476 Fuel 183                            200                            (17)                         (17)                       183                                
10-62-481 Internet 1,660                        5,000                        (3,340)                  (3,340)                1,660                            
10-62-620 Vehicle Repair & Maint -                             350                            (350)                       (350)                    -                                 
10-62-640 Membership 105                            200                            (95)                         (95)                       105                                
10-62-650 Professional Services 1,250                        2,000                        (750)                       (750)                    1,250                            
10-62-660 Travel And Training 125                            500                            (375)                       (375)                    125                                
10-62-703 Community Relations 176                            200                            (24)                         (24)                       176                                
10-62-705 Capital Lease 829                            800                            29                           29                         829                                

Library Totals 151,141                   144,470                   6,671                    6,671                  151,141                      
*Contigency

CITY BUS
10-65-100 Personnel Services 12,813                      15,596                      (2,783)                  (2,783)                12,813                         
10-65-130 Employee Benefits 3,921                        1,967                        1,954                    1,954                  3,921                            
10-65-475 Fuel Expense 4,209                        4,000                        209                        209                      4,209                            
10-65-480 Vehicle Repair & Maintenance 9,634                        5,000                        4,634                    4,634                  9,634                            

City Bus Totals 30,577                      26,563                      4,014                    4,014                  30,577                         
*Contigency

Transfers Out
10-90-980 Transfers Out To Capital Proj 442,508                   440,000                   2,508                    2,508                  

Transfers Out Totals 442,508                   440,000                   2,508                    2,508                  -                                 
*Contigency

CONTINGENCY
10-70-990 Contingency 10,576                      22,494                      (11,918)                (13,193)              9,301                            

Contingency Totals 10,576                      22,494                      (11,918)                (13,193)             9,301                            

POLICE - STONE GARDEN GRANT
12-40-105 Stone Garden Overtime 6,708                        -                             6,708                    6,708                  6,708                            
12-40-130 Employee Benefits 6,483                        -                             6,483                    6,483                  6,483                            

Ver: 9/19/2025 8:07 AM Page: 2



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY
FY25 Budget Amendments

6/30/2025 FY2025 FY2025 FY2025

Account Description
 Actual - 

Unaudited Budget
 Variance Over/ 

(Under) Amendment  Amended Budget 

12-40-131 Overtime 956                            -                             956                        956                      956                                
12-40-135 Public Safety Retirement 10,141                      -                             10,141                 10,141               10,141                         
12-40-810 Authorized Expenses -                             243,660                   (243,660)             (46,175)              197,485                      
12-40-840 Mileage 28,227                      6,340                        21,887                 21,887               28,227                         

Stone Garden Grant Totals 52,515                      250,000                   (197,485)             -                       250,000                      

WATER FUND
51-40-366 Inmate Labor 4,701                        3,500                        1,201                    1,201                  4,701                            
51-40-410 Uniforms & Boots 1,679                        1,200                        479                        479                      1,679                            
51-40-460 Maintenance & Supplies 18,769                      11,000                      7,769                    7,769                  18,769                         
51-40-483 Bank Fees 7,566                        1,000                        6,566                    6,566                  7,566                            
51-40-510 Water Tests 7,883                        3,000                        4,883                    4,883                  7,883                            
51-40-650 Professional Services 64,533                      45,000                      19,533                 19,533               64,533                         
51-40-840 Water Capital Outlay -                             30,000                      (30,000)                (18,523)              11,477                         
51-40-845 Contingency Exp -                             21,999                      (21,999)                (21,908)              91                                  

Water Fund Totals 105,131                   116,699                   (11,568)                -                       116,699                      

SEWER FUND
52-40-410 Uniforms & Boots 1,679                        1,200                        479                        570                      1,770                            
52-40-483 Bank Fees 4,953                        1,000                        3,953                    3,953                  4,953                            
52-40-516 Adeq Fees 3,670                        3,000                        670                        670                      3,670                            
52-40-610 Equipment Maintenance 3,416                        5,000                        (1,584)                  5,000                            
52-40-650 Professional Services 44,077                      33,700                      10,377                 10,377               44,077                         
52-40-680 Depreciation Expense 46,000                      46,000                      -                         46,000                         
52-40-702 Sewage Pond Compliance 67                               9,000                        (8,933)                  9,000                            
52-40-846 Contingency Exp -                             16,441                      (16,441)                (15,824)              617                                
52-40-900 Bad Debt Expense -                             500                            (500)                       500                                
52-40-950 Payment On Wifa Loan 54,257                      54,000                      257                        254                      54,254                         

Sewer Fund Totals 158,119                   169,841                   (11,722)                -                       169,841                      

LANDFILL
55-40-100 Personnel Services 224,065                   279,902                   (55,837)                (55,837)              224,065                      
55-40-105 Overtime 33,394                      29,313                      4,081                    4,081                  33,394                         
55-40-130 Employee Benefits 86,989                      102,502                   (15,513)                15,513               118,015                      
55-40-265 Bank Costs/fees 3,000                        30,000                      (27,000)                27,000               57,000                         
55-40-271 Telephone -                             1,000                        (1,000)                  (1,000)                -                                 
55-40-280 Insurance 15,787                      18,200                      (2,413)                  (2,413)                15,787                         
55-40-290 Office Supplies 2,919                        1,000                        1,919                    1,919                  2,919                            
55-40-300 Printing 2,362                        2,850                        (488)                       (488)                    2,362                            
55-40-337 Property Lease 552,000                   552,000                   -                         -                       552,000                      
55-40-340 Utilities 12,419                      12,500                      (81)                         (81)                       12,419                         
55-40-350 Safety Equipment 90                               1,400                        (1,310)                  (1,310)                90                                  
55-40-360 Contract Labor 3,420                        9,000                        (5,580)                  (5,580)                3,420                            
55-40-366 Inmate Labor 5,628                        4,500                        1,128                    1,128                  5,628                            
55-40-410 Uniform & Boots 7,931                        9,500                        (1,569)                  (1,569)                7,931                            
55-40-440 Postage 1,764                        2,000                        (236)                       (236)                    1,764                            
55-40-460 Maintenance & Supplies 11,960                      16,000                      (4,040)                  (4,040)                11,960                         
55-40-470 Vehicle Expense 1,647                        4,500                        (2,853)                  (2,853)                1,647                            
55-40-475 Fuel Expense 4,867                        6,000                        (1,133)                  (1,133)                4,867                            
55-40-476 Diesel 91,696                      135,000                   (43,304)                (43,301)              91,699                         

Ver: 9/19/2025 8:07 AM Page: 3



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY
FY25 Budget Amendments

6/30/2025 FY2025 FY2025 FY2025

Account Description
 Actual - 

Unaudited Budget
 Variance Over/ 

(Under) Amendment  Amended Budget 

55-40-480 Software Licensing - Caselle 645                            3,200                        (2,555)                  (2,555)                645                                
55-40-481 Internet 1,116                        500                            616                        616                      1,116                            
55-40-483 Bank Fees 14,332                      3,000                        11,332                 11,332               14,332                         
55-40-510 Lab Fees 5,212                        3,500                        1,712                    1,712                  5,212                            
55-40-511 Water Monitoring -                             2,500                        (2,500)                  (2,500)                -                                 
55-40-516 Adeq Fees 10,261                      15,000                      (4,739)                  (4,739)                10,261                         
55-40-610 Equipment Maintenance 256,511                   170,000                   86,511                 86,511               256,511                      *
55-40-640 Membership 130                            600                            (470)                       (470)                    130                                
55-40-650 Professional Services 82,723                      30,000                      52,723                 52,723               82,723                         
55-40-660 Travel - Travel/training 5,133                        2,000                        3,133                    3,133                  5,133                            
55-40-680 Depreciation Expense 135,000                   135,000                   -                         -                       135,000                      
55-40-705 Capital Lease 60,882                      82,000                      (21,118)                (21,118)              60,882                         
55-40-710 Capital Equipment -                             20,000                      (20,000)                (20,000)              -                                 
55-40-725 Change In Postclosure Costs 232,654                   100,000                   132,654               100,000            200,000                      *
55-40-804 Software Licensing -                             3,000                        (3,000)                  (3,000)                -                                 
55-40-846 Contingency Exp 90,513                      78,249                      12,264                 12,264               90,513                         
55-40-855 Methane Monitoring 6,180                        6,500                        (320)                       (320)                    6,180                            
55-40-900 Bad Debt Expense -                             500                            (500)                       -                       500                                

Landfill Totals 1,963,230               1,872,716               90,514                 143,389            2,016,105                  

Prepared by: Ruben A Villa

Source: Caselle Accounting System and The VRA Group Software

ver: 09192025.1

Ver: 9/19/2025 8:07 AM Page: 4



Page 1 of 2 
 

Town of Huachuca City 
The Sunset City 

500 N Gonzales Blvd • Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 
Phone: (520) 456-1354 • TDD: (520) 456-1353 • Fax: (520) 456-2230 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-15 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA 
CITY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A GRANT 
AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF ARIZONA FOR GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF 
HIGHWAY SAFETY FUNDING FOR ENHANCED DUI/IMPAIRED DRIVING 
ENFORCEMENT THROUGHOUT THE TOWN; ACCEPTING ALL TERMS AND 
REQUIREMENTS OF THE GRANT AGREEMENT AND THE GRANT PROGRAM; AND 
AUTHORIZING ALL ACTS NECESSARY AND PROPER TO RECEIVE THE GRANT 
FUNDS AND COMPLY WITH THE GRANT PROGRAM. 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Huachuca City provides emergency response and other essential 
government services to the public; and 

WHEREAS, the Town has applied for grant funding to enhance impaired driving enforcement 
within the Town; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Arizona, through the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety, has 
approved the Town’s grant application for federal 405d funding [“Program”]; and 

WHEREAS, the State has prepared a Grant Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated herein by this reference, pursuant to which the Town may receive the grant funding 
under the Program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Huachuca City, Arizona, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The Police Chief and Town Manager are hereby authorized to execute for, and on 

behalf of the Town of Huachuca City, a municipality established under the laws 
of the State of Arizona, the Grant Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

 
Section 2. The Town of Huachuca City accepts and agrees to be bound by the terms of the 

Grant Agreement and the grant Program. 
 
Section 3. The Town’s staff is hereby authorized and directed to file all applications, reports 

and other necessary and proper documents with the appropriate state and federal 
authorities to receive the grant funds and to comply with the terms of the Grant 
Agreement and the grant Program.  

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, THIS 25TH DAY OF 
SEPTEMBER, 2025.  

 

       ________________________________ 
                                                                                 Johann Wallace, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:     

Approved as to Form: 

 

__________________________________  _________________________________ 
Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk    Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 
 

 

[Grant agreement must be attached.] 



Governor's Office of Highway Safety | www.gohs.az.gov  

PROJECT REFERENCE: 
Grant Agreement Number: 2026-405d-024 
Total Estimated Costs: $21,416.00 
Purpose of Project: DUI/Impaired Driving 
Enforcement Overtime, and Related Materials and 
Supplies (Blood Collection Kits, LED Penlights) 
 

1700 W Washington St, Exec. Tower Ste. 430 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

602.255.3216 

KATIE HOBBS  
GOVERNOR 

J.M. "JESSE" TORREZ  
DIRECTOR 

 

 

 
Chief Wyatt Berry 
Huachuca City Police Department 
500 N Gonzales Boulevard  
Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 
 
 
 
Dear Chief Berry: 
 
Attached is one copy of the referenced Highway Safety Grant Agreement for your review and signature.  This is 
not an authorization to proceed with the project. 
 
Please complete the following steps: 
 

1. Review the entire grant agreement as there have been significant changes throughout the agreement; 

2. GOHS requires one single-sided copy with an original signature.  

3. Have your fiscal staff complete the Reimbursement Instructions (page 25); 

4. As Project Director, sign and date the signature page;  

5. Obtain the signature of Suzanne Harvey, Town Manager, Town of Huachuca City as the Authorized 
Official of Governmental Unit;  

6. Return one completed and signed copy by mail to the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety, 1700 West 
Washington Street, Executive Tower, Suite 430, Phoenix, Arizona, 85007.   

 
Please do not incur any costs at this time as it would nullify the grant agreement.  Once the signed copy is 
received, I will approve and sign the agreement as the GOHS Director/Governor’s Highway Safety 
Representative and a copy of the original executed grant agreement with a letter of authorization to proceed will 
be emailed to you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
___________________________________    
J.M. “Jesse” Torrez, Director      
Governor’s Highway Safety Representative 

 

http://www.gohs.az.gov/


 

1 

 

GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF 

HIGHWAY SAFETY 

STATE OF ARIZONA 

HIGHWAY SAFETY GRANT AGREEMENT 

This page, the Project Director's Manual and attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, constitute the entire 

Grant between the parties hereto unless the Governor’s Highway Safety Representative authorizes deviation in writing. 

 FAIN: 69A3752630000405dAZM Assistance Listings: 20.616 

1. APPLICANT AGENCY GOHS GRANT NUMBER: 

 Huachuca City Police Department 2026-405d-024 

 ADDRESS PROGRAM AREA: 

 500 N Gonzales Boulevard, Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 405d 

2. GOVERNMENTAL UNIT AGENCY CONTACT: 

 Town of Huachuca City Kyle Arnett 

 ADDRESS 3. PROJECT TITLE: 

 500 N Gonzales Boulevard, Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement 

Overtime, and Related Materials and Supplies 

(Blood Collection Kits, LED Penlights) 

4. GUIDELINES: 

 405d 

5. BRIEFLY STATE PURPOSE OF PROJECT: 

Federal 405d funds will support Personnel Services (Overtime), Employee Related Expenses, and Materials 

and Supplies (Blood Collection Kits, LED Penlights) to enhance DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement 

throughout the Town of Huachuca City. 

6. BUDGET 

 COST CATEGORY 

Project Period 

FFY 2026 

I. Personnel Services $15,288.00 

II. Employee Related Expenses (34%) $5,198.00 

III. Professional and Outside Services $0.00 

IV. Travel In-State $0.00 

V. Travel Out-of-State $0.00 

VI. Materials and Supplies $930.00 

VII. Capital Outlay $0.00 

 TOTAL ESTIMATED COSTS $21,416.00 

PROJECT PERIOD 
FROM: Effective Date 

(Date of GOHS Director Signature) 
TO: 09-30-2026 

CURRENT GRANT PERIOD FROM: 10-01-2025 TO: 09-30-2026 

TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS OBLIGATED THIS FFY: $21,416.00 

 

A political subdivision or State agency that is mandated to provide a certified resolution or ordinance 

authorizing entry into this Grant agreement must do so prior to incurring any expenditures. Failure to do so 

may result in termination of the awarded Grant agreement. 

 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

2 

PROBLEM IDENTIFICATION AND RESOLUTION: 

 

Agency Background: 

 

Number of sworn officers: 7 

 

Total Population in city/town or county: 1,800 

 

Total Road Mileage: Highway: 2 Local: 15 Total: 17 

 

 
 

Agency Problem/Attempts to Solve Problem: 

 

As a main thoroughfare between the Southern Border and I10, State Route 90 is the preferred route for drivers 

traveling to and from southern Cochise County to the rest of the state. As a result, Huachuca City experiences 

much more traffic than what the population alone can create. Each day, thousands of drivers use State Route 

90, commuting to and from Tucson, visiting as tourists, or seeing family in Fort Huachuca and nearby areas. 

The Huachuca City Police Department receives numerous complaints throughout the year from residents of 

Huachuca City and other travelers about reckless drivers. Although Huachuca City its self does not have any 

bars in the City Limits, there are three establishments that sell alcohol. Areas to the north, east and south of 

Huachuca City have bars and more establishments that sell and server alcohol. The Huachuca City Police 

Department currently has three ARIDE Certified Officers and are working on sending at least one to an 

upcoming DRE School in 2025. DUI drivers are being identified during all hours of the day and night. Many 

of these drivers are traveling on State Route 90 to get to or leave Huachuca City.   

 

Agency Funding: 

 

Federal 405d funds will support Personnel Services (Overtime), Employee Related Expenses, and Materials 

and Supplies (Blood Collection Kits, LED Penlights) to enhance DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement 

throughout the Town of Huachuca City. 

 

How Agency Will Solve Problem with Funding: 

 

This project aims to provide additional over time funds and equipment to assist in apprehension of Alcohol and 

Drug Impaired Drivers throughout Cochise County. The grant funding requested will allow for Huachuca City 

Police Department to attend surrounding deployments. The equipment will allow for better detection and 

prosecution of suspected DUI Drivers.   



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

3 

PROGRAM MEASURES: 

 

Agency Goals: 

 

To decrease the number of impaired driving-related crashes 0% from 0 during calendar year 2024 to 0 by 

December 31, 2026. 

 

To decrease the number of serious injuries in impaired driving-related crashes 0% from 0 in calendar year 

2024 to 0 by December 31, 2026. 

 

To decrease the number of fatalities in impaired driving-related crashes 0 % from 0 in calendar year 2024 to 0 

by December 31, 2026. 

 

Grant Agreement Objectives: 

 

To participate in a minimum of 2 DUI saturation patrols per quarter during FFY 2026. 

 

To participate in a minimum of 2 DUI task force operations per quarter during FFY 2026. 

 

Additional Grant Agreement Objectives: 

 

1. The Huachuca City Police Department will send at least one officer to DRE School and get more officers 

HGN and ARIDE Certified.  

2. The Huachuca City Police Department will increase DUI arrests by 50% compared to the 2023 stats while 

participating in the surrounding Southern Arizona DUI Task Forces.   



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

4 

GOALS/OBJECTIVES: 

 

Federal 405d funds will support Personnel Services (Overtime), Employee Related Expenses, and Materials 

and Supplies (Blood Collection Kits, LED Penlights) to enhance DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement 

throughout the Town of Huachuca City. 

 

Expenditures of funding pertaining to Impaired Driving Enforcement including Personnel Services and ERE, 

Materials and Supplies, Capital Equipment, and/or Travel In and Out-of-State shall comply with the Impaired 

Driving Program goals provided by the Arizona Governor's Office of Highway Safety. The Impaired Driving 

Program goal is to reduce the incidences of alcohol and drug related driving fatalities and injuries through 

enforcement, education, and public awareness throughout the State of Arizona. Law enforcement personnel 

participating in Impaired Driving Enforcement/DUI activities including, DUI Task Force details under this 

program, shall be HGN/SFST certified. 

 

MEDIA RELEASE: 

 

To prepare complete press release information for media (television, radio, print, and on-line) during each 

campaign period including a main press release, schedule of events, departmental plans, and relevant data. 

The material will emphasize the campaign’s purpose, aggressive enforcement, and the high cost of 

DUI/Impaired Driving in terms of money, criminal, and human consequences. 

 

The Huachuca City Police Department will maintain responsibility for reporting sustained enforcement 

activity in a timely manner. Additionally, it is the responsibility of the Huachuca City Police Department to 

report all holiday task force enforcement statistics to GOHS on-line at the GOHS website no later than 10:00 

a.m. the morning following each day of the event. 

 

The holidays and special events include but not limited to:  Super Bowl Sunday, Valentine's Day, President’s 

Day, St. Patrick’s Day, Spring Break, Easter, Cinco de Mayo, Prom Night, Memorial Day, Graduation Day, 

Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Halloween, and the Thanksgiving through New Year’s details. 

 

PLEASE NOTE:  Failure to submit Statistics, Quarterly Reports, and/or Report of Costs Incurred 

(RCIs) timely and correctly may delay reimbursement for expenditures to your Agency. 

 

METHOD OF PROCEDURE: 

 

The Huachuca City Police Department will make expenditures, as follows, to meet the outlined Program 

Goals/Objectives: 

 

Personnel Services - To support Overtime for DUI/Impaired Driving Enforcement Activities 

 

Employee Related Expenses - To support Employee Related Expenses for Agency Overtime 

 

Materials and Supplies - To purchase/procure the following Materials and Supplies for DUI/Impaired Driving 

Enforcement Activities: Blood Collection Kits, LED Penlights 

 

PRESS RELEASE: 

 

Agencies are required to develop and distribute a press release announcing this grant award upon receipt of 

the executed Grant agreement. A copy of this press release shall be sent to the GOHS Director for approval 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

5 

prior to being sent to the media. This press release shall include the objective and specify that the funding is 

from the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety. 

 

BAC TESTING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: 

 

Alcohol impairment is a major contributing factor in fatality and serious injury motor vehicle collisions.  

Accurate data on alcohol involvement is essential to understanding the full extent of the role of alcohol and to 

assess progress toward reducing impaired driving. 

 

Each law enforcement agency that receives an enforcement-related grant is required to ensure that 

accurate data on all drivers involved is reported. Failure to comply may result in withholding funds and 

cancellation of the enforcement Grant agreement until this requirement is met. 

 

PURSUIT POLICY: 

 

All law enforcement agencies receiving Federal funds are encouraged to follow the guidelines established for 

vehicular pursuits issued by the International Association of Chiefs of Police (IACP) that are currently in effect. 

 

METHOD OF PROCUREMENT: 

 

The application of 2 CFR Part 200 "Procurement Standards" requires that: 

 

Grantees and sub-grantees will use their own procurement procedures which reflect applicable State and local 

laws and regulations, provided the procurement procedures conform to applicable Federal laws and standards. 

The most stringent purchasing requirement at each level must be met. If the Agency does not have a 

procurement process, the Agency may use the State procurement process. 

 

A clear audit trail must be established to determine costs charged against this Grant agreement.  Substantiation 

of costs shall, where possible, be made utilizing the Huachuca City Police Department documentation 

consisting of, but not limited to, copies of time sheets, purchase orders, copies of invoices, and proof of 

payment. 

 

The Agency shall retain copies of all documentation in the project file. 

 

State Contract: 

 

Procurement may be made using an open State contract award. Documents submitted to substantiate purchases 

using an open State contract must bear the contract number. 

 

PROJECT EVALUATION: 

 

This project shall be administratively evaluated to ensure the objectives have been met. 

 

Quarterly Report 

 

The purpose of the Quarterly Report is to provide information on grant activities conducted at the conclusion 

of each active quarter. The information provided is used to review progress of the funded project and the 

successfulness in meeting outlined goals and objectives. The information, photos, highlights, obstacles, and 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

6 

mandatory statistical data provided in this report are analyzed by the assigned Project Coordinator. It is critical 

the report contains the following information: 

 

  Original signatures on all Quarterly Reports and RCIs 

  All Quarterly Reports and RCIs shall include the signature of the Project 

Director unless prior authorization for another is on file with GOHS. 

 

Report Schedule 

 

Reporting Period Due Date 

1st Quarterly Report and RCI (October 1 to December 31, 2025) January 30, 2026 

2nd Quarterly Report and RCI (January 1 to March 31, 2026) April 20, 2026 

3rd Quarterly Report and RCI (April 1 to June 30, 2026) July 20, 2026 

4th Quarterly Report and RCI (July 1 to September 30, 2026) October 15, 2026 

Final Statement of Accomplishments October 15, 2026 

 

The Quarterly Report shall be completed on the form available on-line and can be submitted by email to 

the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety. 

 

NOTE: IT IS REQUIRED THAT ALL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES MUST ENTER 

STATISTICAL AND ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY INTO THE ON-LINE GOHS DUI REPORTING 

SYSTEM, IN ADDITION TO SUBMITTING THE QUARTERLY ENFORCEMENT REPORT. 

 

Final Statement of Accomplishments 

 

The Project Director shall submit a Final Statement of Accomplishments Report to the GOHS no later than 

fifteen (15) days after the conclusion of each Federal Fiscal Year (September 30th). All agencies receiving 

funding are required to submit a Final Statement of Accomplishments Report. 

 

Note: Failure to comply with the outlined GOHS reporting requirements may result in withholding of Federal 

funds or termination of the Grant agreement. 

 

PROFESSIONAL AND TECHNICAL PERSONNEL: 

 

Wyatt Berry, Chief, Huachuca City Police Department, shall serve as Project Director. 

 

Kyle Arnett, Corporal, Huachuca City Police Department, shall serve as Project Administrator. 

 

Andrea Martinez, Governor's Office of Highway Safety, shall serve as Project Coordinator. 

 

REPORT OF COSTS INCURRED (RCI): 

 

The Agency shall submit a Report of Costs Incurred (RCI), with supporting documentation attached, to the 

Governor’s Office of Highway Safety on a quarterly basis, for each active quarter, in conjunction with the 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

7 

required report. Agencies may submit additional RCI forms for expenditures when funds have been expended 

for which reimbursement is being requested. 

 

Accepted supporting documentation to submit with a Report of Cost Incurred (RCI) includes, but is not limited 

to; scanned copies of timesheets, payroll records, paid invoices/purchase orders, and other account records. 

 

RCIs shall be typed and submitted with appropriate supporting documentation to the Governor’s Office of 

Highway Safety. Electronically submitted RCIs will be accepted. Final RCIs will not be accepted fifteen 

(15) days after the conclusion of each Federal Fiscal Year (September 30th). Expenditures submitted after 

the expiration date may not be reimbursed and the Agency will accept fiscal responsibility. 

 

PROGRAM MONITORING: 

 

Highway safety grant program monitoring is used by GOHS project coordinators to track the progress of project 

objectives, performance measures, and compliance with applicable procedures, laws, and regulations. 

 

The process is used throughout the duration of the grant agreement and serves as a continuous management 

tool. Program monitoring also presents an opportunity to develop partnerships, share information, and provide 

assistance to granted agencies. Additionally, program monitoring outlines a set of procedures for grant review 

and documentation. 

 

Program monitoring serves as a management tool for: 

 

  Detecting and preventing problems 

  Helping to identify needed changes 

  Identifying training or assistance needed 

  Obtaining data necessary for planning and evaluation 

  Identifying exemplary projects 

 

Types of Monitoring 

 

Monitoring is formal and informal, financial and operational. The most common types of monitoring are: 

 

  Ongoing contact with the grantee through phone calls, e-mails, correspondence, and meetings 

  On-Site/In-House monitoring reviews of project operations, management, and financial records 

and systems 

  Review of project Quarterly Reports  

  Review and approval of Report of Costs Incurred (RCIs) 

  Desk review of other documents in the project grant files for timely submission and completeness 

 

Monitoring Schedule 

Total Awarded Amount: Type of Monitoring: 

Under $100,000 Desk Review/Phone Conference 

$100,000 and over May have an In-House GOHS Review 

$300,000+ May have an On-Site/In-House Review 

Capital Outlay Greater than $100,000 (combined) May have an On-Site/In-House Review 

Desk Review 

and Phone 

Conference 

Internal review of all written documentation related to grant agreement including, but not 

limited to the Grant Agreement, Quarterly Reports, enforcement data, financial data, e-mails, 

letters, notes, press releases, photographs, inventories, and other written correspondence. A 

phone conference call conducted during the course of the project which includes the date 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

8 

and time of the call, the person(s) contacted, and the results. It serves as an informational 

review to determine progress of programmatic/financial activities. Both the designated 

project administrator and fiscal contact should be present, if possible, during the phone 

conference. If identified financial or operational problems are present, GOHS reserves the 

right to bring the grantee in for an in-house meeting at GOHS. Monitoring form written by 

Project Coordinator, any findings, areas of improvement, concern, or recognition will be 

provided to the grantee. 

In-House 

Review 

Documents performance review results including project activities, reimbursement claims 

review, equipment purchases, approvals, and other information. Reviews applicable 

information related to the project(s) including, but not limited to the Grant agreement, 

Quarterly Reports, enforcement data, financial data, e-mails, letters, notes, press releases, 

photographs, inventories, and other written correspondence. Completed at GOHS in a 

meeting with appropriate operational and financial personnel. Monitoring form written by 

Project Coordinator, any findings, areas of improvement, concern, or recognition will be 

provided to the grantee. 

On-Site 

Monitoring 

Documents performance review results including project activities, reimbursement claims 

review, equipment purchases, and other information. Reviews applicable information related 

to the project(s) including, but not limited to the Grant agreement, Quarterly Reports, 

enforcement data, financial data, e-mails, letters, notes, press releases, photographs, 

inventories, and other written correspondence. Conducted on-site at the grantee’s Agency 

with monitoring form completed on-site by Project Coordinator.  Any findings, areas of 

improvement, concern, or recognition, will be provided to the grantee. 

 

On-site/In-house monitoring for grantees of designated projects with large Capital Outlay purchases, personnel 

services, and complex projects must be completed within the second or third quarter of the fiscal year. Granted 

projects displaying any problems may need on-site monitoring more than once during the fiscal year. 

 

On-site/In-house monitoring includes a review and discussion of all issues related to ensure the effective 

administration of the granted project. The following are the most important items to review: 

 

  Progress toward meeting goals/objectives and performance measures 

  Adherence to the grant agreement specifications, timely submission of complete and correct 

reports, including required documentation 

  Quarterly Reports 

  Status of expenditures related to the outlined budget 

  Accounting records and RCI's 

  Supporting documentation (training documentation, inventory sheets, photographs, press releases, 

etc.) 

 

In addition, the designated Agency will ensure that any equipment purchased will be available for inspection 

and is being used for the purpose for which it was bought under the outlined grant agreement. 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

9 

Documentation 

 

The Governor’s Office of Highway Safety will retain all findings documented on the GOHS Monitoring Form 

in the Agency's respective Federal file. Findings will be discussed with the designated grant agreement 

representative (Project Administrator, fiscal specialist) by phone and/or e-mail. All noted deficiencies will be 

provided to the grantee with guidance for improvement and solutions to problems. Grantees that exhibit 

significantly poor performance may be placed on a performance plan as outlined by the GOHS Director. 

Grantee monitoring information will additionally provide documentation for potential funding in subsequent 

fiscal year grant proposal review. 

 

PROJECT PERIOD: 

 

The project period shall commence on the date the GOHS Director signs the Highway Safety Grant Agreement 

and terminate on September 30th of that or subsequent year as indicated on the Highway Safety Grant 

Agreement. 

 

DURATION: 

 

Grants shall be effective on the date the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety Director signs the Grant 

Agreement and expire at the end of the project period. 

 

If the Agency is unable to expend the funds in the time specified, the Agency will submit notification on the 

Agency’s letterhead and hand deliver or submit via regular mail to the Director of the Governor's Office of 

Highway Safety a minimum of sixty days (60) prior to the end of the project period. 

 

The Agency shall address all requests to modify the Grant Agreement to the Director of the Governor’s Office 

of Highway Safety on Agency's official letterhead and either hand deliver or submit the request via regular 

mail. All requests for modification must bear the signature of the Project Director. 

 

Failure to comply may result in cancellation of the Grant Agreement. Any unexpended funds remaining at the 

termination of the Grant Agreement shall be released back to the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety. 

 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

10 

ESTIMATED COSTS: 

 

I. Personnel Services (overtime) 

 

$15,288.00 

II. Employee Related Expenses (ERE 34%) 

 

$5,198.00 

III. Professional and Outside Services 

 

$0.00 

IV. Travel In-State 

 

$0.00 

V. Travel Out-of-State 

 

$0.00 

VI. Materials and Supplies 

Blood Collection Kits, LED Penlights 

 

$930.00 

VII. Capital Outlay 

 

$0.00 

 TOTAL ESTIMATED COSTS *$21,416.00 

 

*Includes all applicable training, tax, freight, and advertising costs. The GOHS reserves the right to limit 

reimbursement of Employee Related Expenses from zero (0) to a maximum rate of forty (40) percent. This is 

the maximum ERE amount to be reimbursed. It is agreed and understood that the Huachuca City Police 

Department shall absorb any and all expenditures in excess of $21,416.00. 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

11 

QUARTERLY ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

(Submitted to GOHS) 

 

         

Reporting Period 

 

DESCRIPTION 

GRANT 

AGREEMENT 

ACTIVITY 

AGENCY 

ACTIVITY 

Total Contacts (Traffic Stops)   

Total Sober Designated Drivers Contacted   

Total Know Your Limit Contacts   

TOTAL DUI ARRESTS   

  Total DUI Aggravated   

  Total DUI Misdemeanor   

Total DUI Extreme (.15 or Above)   

Under 21 DUI Citations   

Average BAC   

Distracted Driving Citations   

Total DUI Drug Arrests   

30-Day Vehicle Impounds   

Seat Belt Citations   

Child Restraint Citations   

Criminal Speed Citations   

Reckless Driving Citations   

Civil Speed Citations   

Other Citations   

Other Arrests   

Participating Officer/Deputies (Cumulative)   

 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

12 

CERTIFICATIONS AND AGREEMENTS 

 

This GRANT AGREEMENT, is made and entered into by and between the STATE OF ARIZONA, by and 

through the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety (GOHS) hereinafter referred to as "STATE", and the agency 

named in this Grant Agreement, hereinafter referred to as "AGENCY". 

 

WHEREAS, the National Highway Safety Act of 1966, as amended (23 USC §§401-404), provides Federal 

funds to STATE for approved highway safety projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, STATE may make said funds available to various state, county, tribal, or municipal agencies, 

governments, or political subdivisions upon application and approval by STATE and the United States 

Department of Transportation (USDOT); and 

 

WHEREAS, AGENCY must comply with the requirements listed herein to be eligible for Federal funds for 

approved highway safety projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, AGENCY has submitted an application for Federal funds for highway safety projects; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF MUTUAL PROMISES AND OTHER GOODS AND 

VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, it is mutually agreed that AGENCY will strictly comply with the following 

terms and conditions and the following Federal and State Statutes, Rules, and Regulations: 

 

I. Project Monitoring, Reports, and Inspections 

 

 A. AGENCY agrees to fully cooperate with representatives of STATE monitoring the project, either 

on-site or by telephone, during the life of the Grant Agreement. 

 

 B. AGENCY will submit Quarterly Reports (one for each three-month period of the project year) to 

STATE in the form and manner prescribed by STATE. Notice of the specific requirements for each 

  report will be given in this Grant Agreement or at any time thereafter by giving thirty (30) days 

written notice to AGENCY by ordinary mail at the address listed on the Grant Agreement. Failure 

  to comply with Quarterly Report requirements may result in withholding of Federal funds or 

termination of this Grant Agreement. 

 

 C. AGENCY will submit a Final Report/Statement of Accomplishment at completion of the Grant 

Agreement to include all financial, performance, and other reports required as a condition of the 

grant to STATE within thirty (30) days of the completion of the Grant Agreement. 

 

 D. Representatives authorized by STATE and the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 

(NHTSA) will have the right to visit the site and inspect the work under this Grant Agreement 

whenever such representatives may determine such inspection is necessary. 

 

II. Reimbursement of Eligible Expenses 

 

A. AGENCY's Project Director, or Finance Personnel, will submit a Report of Costs Incurred Form 

(RCI) to STATE each time there have been funds expended for which reimbursement is being 

requested. Failure to meet this requirement may be cause to terminate the project under Section 

XX herein, "Termination and Abandonment". 

 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

13 

 B. AGENCY will reimburse STATE for any ineligible or unauthorized expenses for which Federal 

funds have been claimed and reimbursement received, as may have been determined by a State or 

Federal audit. 

 

 C. STATE will have the right to withhold any installments equal to the reimbursement received by 

AGENCY for prior installments which have been subsequently determined to be ineligible or 

unauthorized. 

 

III. Property Agreement 

 

A. AGENCY will immediately notify STATE if any equipment purchased under this Grant 

Agreement ceases to be used in the manner as set forth by this Grant Agreement. In such event, 

AGENCY further agrees to either give credit to the project cost or to another active highway safety 

project for the residual value of such equipment in an amount to be determined by STATE or to 

transfer or otherwise dispose of such equipment as directed by STATE. 

 

 B. No equipment will be conveyed, sold, salvaged, transferred, etc., without the express written 

approval of STATE, or unless otherwise provided elsewhere in this Grant Agreement. 

 

 C. AGENCY will maintain or cause to be maintained for its useful life, any equipment purchased 

under this Grant Agreement. 

 

 D. AGENCY will incorporate any equipment purchased under this Grant Agreement into its inventory 

records. 

 

 E. AGENCY will insure any equipment purchased under this Grant Agreement for the duration of its 

useful life. Self-insurance meets the requirements of this section. 

 

IV. Travel 

 

 In-State and Out-of-State Travel 

 

 In state and out-of-state travel claims will be reimbursed at rates provided by AGENCY's regulations, 

provided that such regulations are as restrictive as those of STATE. Where they are less restrictive, 

ARS §38-624 will apply. 

 

 The State must approve all out-of-state travel in writing and in advance. 

 

V. Standard of Performance 

 

 AGENCY hereby agrees to perform all work and services herein required or set forth, and to furnish 

all labor, materials, and equipment, except that labor, material, and equipment as STATE agrees to 

furnish pursuant to this Grant Agreement. 

 

VI. Hold Harmless Agreement 

 

 Neither party to this agreement agrees to indemnify the other party or hold harmless the other party 

from liability hereunder.  However, if the common law or a statute provides for either a right to 

 indemnify and/or a right to contribution to any party to this agreement then the right to pursue one or 

both of these remedies is preserved. 

 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

14 

VII. Non-Assignment and Sub-Contracts 

 

 This Grant Agreement is not assignable nor may any portion of the work to be performed be 

subcontracted unless specifically agreed to in writing by STATE. No equipment purchased hereunder 

may be assigned or operated by other than AGENCY unless agreed to in writing by STATE. 

 

VIII. Work Products and Title to Commodities and Equipment 

 

A. The work product and results of the project are the property of STATE, unless otherwise specified 

elsewhere in this Grant Agreement. All property, instruments, non-consumable materials, supplies, 

and the like, which are furnished or paid for by STATE under the terms of this Grant Agreement, 

unless otherwise provided for elsewhere in this Grant Agreement, are and remain the property of 

STATE and will be returned at the completion of this project upon request of STATE. The work 

product and results of the project will be furnished to STATE upon request, if no provision is 

otherwise made by this Grant Agreement. 

 

 B. The provisions of subparagraph A apply whether or not the project granted for herein is completed. 

 

IX. Copyrights and Patents 

 

 Any copyrightable materials, patentable discovery, or invention produced in the course of this project 

may be claimed by STATE and a copyright or patent obtained by it at its expense. In the event STATE 

 does not wish to obtain such copyright or patent, AGENCY may do so, but in any event, provision will 

be made by AGENCY for royalty-free, nonexclusive, nontransferable, and irrevocable licenses to be 

 given the United States Government and STATE and its political subdivisions to use such copyrightable 

material, patented discoveries, or inventions in any manner they see fit. The STATE reserves the right 

 to impose such other terms and conditions upon the use of such copyrights or patents as may be deemed 

in the best interest of STATE in the event AGENCY is allowed to obtain a copyright or patent. 

 

X. Uniform Administrative Requirements 

 

 (2 CFR Part 1201): Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 

for Federal Awards: 

 

 The application of 2 CFR Part 200 "Procurement Standards" Requires that: 

 

 AGENCY and sub-grantees will use their own procurement procedures, which reflect applicable State 

and local laws and regulations, provided that the procurements conform to applicable Federal law. The 

most stringent purchasing requirement at each level must be met. 

 

 The Arizona Procurement Code (ARS §41-2501, et. seq.) and promulgated rules (A.A.C. Title 2, 

Chapter 7) are a part of this Grant Agreement as if fully set forth herein and AGENCY agrees to fully 

comply with these requirements for any procurement using grant monies from this Grant Agreement. 

 

XI. Non-Discrimination 

 

 The AGENCY and the STATE will comply with all Federal statues and implementing regulations 

relating to nondiscrimination ("Federal Nondiscrimination Authorities"). These include but are not 

limited to: 

 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 200d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of race, color national origin); 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

15 

 49 CFR part 21 (entitled Non-discrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of 

Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964); 

 28 CFR 50.3 (U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title VI of the Civil Rights 

Act of 1964); 

 The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. 

4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired 

because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects); 

 Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. 324 et seq.), and Title IX of the Education 

Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. 1681-1683 and 1685-1686) (prohibit discrimination 

on the basis of sex); 

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of disability) and 49 CFR part 27; 

 The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.), (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of age); 

 The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (Pub. L. 100-209), (broadens scope, coverage, and 

applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the term "programs 

Or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal aid recipients, subrecipients 

and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally-funded or not); 

 Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12131-12189) (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private 

transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing) and 49 CFR parts 37 

and 38. 

 

 During the performance of this contract/grant agreement, the contractor/grant recipient agrees— 

 

 A. To comply with all Federal nondiscrimination laws and regulations, as may be amended from time 

to time; 

 

 B. Not to participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by any Federal non-

discrimination law or regulation, as set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 2l and herein; 

 

 C. To permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as 

required by the State highway safety office, US DOT or NHTSA; 

 

 D. That, in event a contractor/grant recipient fails to comply with any nondiscrimination provisions in 

this contract/grant agreement, the State highway safety agency will have the right to impose such 

 contract/grant agreement sanctions as it or NHTSA determine are appropriate, including, but not 

limited to, withholding payments to the contractor/grant recipient under the contract/grant agreement 

 until the contractor/grant recipient complies; and/or cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract 

or grant agreement, in whole or in part; and 

 

 E. To insert this clause, including paragraphs A through E, in every subcontract and subagreement 

and in every solicitation for a subcontract or sub-agreement, that receives Federal funds under this 

program. 

 

XII. Executive Order 2023-01 

 

 It is mutually agreed that AGENCY will comply with the terms and conditions of Executive Order 

2023-01, Non-Discrimination in Employment by Government Contractors and Subcontractors. 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

16 

XIII. Political Activity (HATCH ACT) 

 

 The AGENCY will comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. 1501-1508), which limits the 

political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part 

with Federal funds. 

 

XIV. Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) Policy and Obligation 

 

A. Policy:  It is the policy of the USDOT that minority business enterprises as defined in 49 CFR Part 

23, will have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts financed in 

whole or in part with Federal funds under this Grant Agreement. Consequently, the minority 

business enterprises requirements of 49 CFR Part 23 apply to this Grant Agreement. 

 

B. Obligation:  The recipient or its contractor agrees to ensure that minority business enterprises, as 

defined in 49 CFR Part 23, have the subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds 

provided under this Grant Agreement. In this regard, all recipients or contractors will take all 

necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with 49 CFR, Part 23 to ensure that minority business 

enterprises have the maximum opportunity to compete for and perform contracts. Recipients and 

their contractors will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, creed, sex, or national origin in 

the award and performance of USDOT-assigned Grant Agreements. 

 

XV. Arbitration Clause, ARS §12-1518 

 

 Pursuant to ARS §12-1518, the parties agree to use arbitration, after exhausting applicable 

administrative reviews, to resolve disputes arising out of this agreement where the provisions of 

mandatory arbitration apply. 

 

XVI. Inspection and Audit, ARS §35-214 

 

 Pursuant to ARS §35-214, all books, accounts, reports, files, and other records relating to this 

Agreement will be subject at all reasonable times to inspection and audit by STATE for five (5) years 

 after completion of this Agreement. The records will be produced at the Governor’s Office of Highway 

Safety. 

 

XVII. Appropriation of Funds by U.S. Congress 

 

 It is agreed that in no event will this Grant Agreement be binding on any party hereto unless and until 

such time as funds are appropriated and authorized by the U.S. Congress and specifically allocated to 

 the project submitted herein and then only for the fiscal year for which such allocation is made. In the 

event no funds are appropriated by the U.S. Congress or no funds are allocated for the project proposed 

 herein for subsequent fiscal years, this Grant Agreement will be null and void, except as to that portion 

for which funds have then been appropriated or allocated to this project, and no right of action or 

 damages will accrue to the benefit of the parties hereto as to that portion of the Contract or Grant 

Agreement that may so become null and void. 

 

XVIII. Continuation of Highway Safety Program 

 

 It is the intention of AGENCY to continue the Highway Safety Program identified in this Grant 

Agreement once Federal funding is completed. This intended continuation will be based upon cost 

effectiveness and an evaluation by AGENCY of the program's impact on highway safety. 

 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

17 

XIX. E-Verify 

 

 Both parties acknowledge that immigration laws require them to register and participate with the E-

Verify Program (employment verification program administered by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security and the Social Security Administration or any successor program) as they both 

 employ one or more employees in this State. Both parties warrant that they have registered with and 

participate with E-Verify. If either party later determines that the other non-compliant party has not 

 complied with E-Verify, it will notify the non-compliant party by certified mail of the determination 

and of the right to appeal the determination. 

 

XX. Termination and Abandonment 

 

 A. The STATE and AGENCY hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants contained herein, 

except that STATE reserves the right, at its discretion, to terminate or abandon any portion of the 

project for which services have not been already performed by AGENCY. 

 

 B. In the event STATE abandons the services or any part of the services as herein provided, STATE 

will notify AGENCY in writing and within twenty-four (24) hours after receiving such notice, 

  AGENCY will discontinue advancing the work under this Grant Agreement and proceed to close 

said operations under the Grant Agreement. 

 

 C. The appraisal value of work performed by AGENCY to the date of such termination or 

abandonment shall be made by STATE on a basis equitable to STATE and AGENCY and a final 

reimbursement made to AGENCY on the basis of costs incurred. Upon termination or 

  abandonment, AGENCY will deliver to STATE all documents, completely or partially completed, 

together with all unused materials supplied by STATE. 

 

 D. AGENCY may terminate or abandon this Grant Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to 

STATE, provided there is subsequent concurrence by STATE. Termination or abandonment by 

  AGENCY will provide that costs can be incurred against the project up to and including sixty (60) 

days after notice is given to STATE. 

 

 E. Any equipment or commodities which have been purchased as a part of this Grant Agreement and 

which have not been consumed or reached the end of its useful life will be returned to STATE upon 

its written request. 

 

XXI. Cancellation Statute 

 

 All parties are hereby put on notice that this Contract/Grant Agreement is subject to cancellation 

pursuant to ARS §38-511, the provisions of which are stated below. 

 

 In accordance with ARS §38-511, this Contract/Grant Agreement may be cancelled without penalty or 

further obligation if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting, or 

creating the Contract/Grant Agreement on behalf of the STATE, its political subdivisions or any 

 department or agency of either, is at any time while the Contract/Grant Agreement or any extension of 

the Contract/Grant Agreement is in effect, an employee of any other party to the Contract/Grant 

 Agreement in any capacity or a consultant to any other party of the Contract/Grant Agreement with 

respect to the subject matter or the Contract/Grant Agreement. 

 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

18 

 The cancellation shall be effective when written notice from the Governor or Chief Executive Officer 

or governing body of the political subdivision is received by all other parties to the Contract/Grant 

Agreement unless the notice specifies a later time. 

 

AGREEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING AND CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 

 

Acceptance of Condition 

 

 It is understood and agreed by the undersigned that a grant received as a result of this Grant Agreement 

is subject to the Highway Safety Act of 1966, as amended (23 U.S.C.A. §§401-404), ARS §28-602, 

and all administrative regulations governing grants established by the USDOT and STATE. It is 

expressly agreed that this Highway Safety Project constitutes an official part of the STATE's Highway 

Safety Program and that AGENCY will meet the requirements as set forth in the accompanying Project 

Director's Manual, which are incorporated herein and made a part of this Grant Agreement. All State 

and Federal Statutes, Rules, Regulations, and Circulars referenced in this Grant Agreement are a part 

of this document as if fully set forth herein. It is also agreed that no work will be performed nor any 

obligation incurred until AGENCY is notified in writing that this project has been approved by the 

Governor's Highway Safety Representative. 

 

Certificate of Compliance 

 

 This is to certify that AGENCY will comply with all of the State and Federal Statutes, Rules and 

Regulations identified in this Grant Agreement. 

 

Certification of Non-Duplication of Grant Funds Expenditure 

 

 This is to certify that AGENCY has no ongoing nor completed projects under Grant Agreement with 

other Federal fund sources which duplicate or overlap any work contemplated or described in this Grant 

Agreement. It is further certified that any pending or proposed request for other Federal grant funds 

which would duplicate or overlap work described in the Grant Agreement will be revised to exclude 

any such duplication of grant fund expenditures. It is understood that any such duplication of Federal 

funds expenditures subsequently determined by audit will be subject to recovery by STATE. 

 

Single Audit Act 

 

 If your political subdivision has had an independent audit meeting the requirements of the Single Audit 

Act of 1984, (31 U.S.C.A. §7501 et. seq.), please forward a copy to GOHS, Attention: Finance Dept., 

within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Grant Agreement. If such audit has not been 

performed, please advise when it is being scheduled. 

 

Buy America Act 

 

 The State and each subrecipient will comply with the Buy America requirement (23 U.S.C. 313) when 

purchasing items using Federal funds. Buy America requires a State, or subrecipient, to purchase with 

Federal funds only steel, iron, and manufactured products produced in the United States, unless the 

Secretary of Transportation determines that such domestically produced items would be inconsistent 

with the public interest, that such materials are not reasonably available and of a satisfactory quality, 

or that inclusion of domestic materials will increase the cost of the overall project contract by more 

than twenty-five (25) percent. In order to use Federal funds to purchase foreign produced items, the 

State must submit a waiver request that provides an adequate basis and justification to and approved 

by the Secretary of Transportation. 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

19 

 

Certification on Conflict of Interest 

 

General Requirements 

 

 No employee, officer or agent of a State or its subrecipient who is authorized in an official capacity To 

negotiate, make, accept Or approve, Or To take part In negotiating, making, accepting or approving 

any subaward, including contracts or subcontracts, in connection with this grant shall have, directly Or 

indirectly, any financial Or personal interest in any such subaward. Such a financial or personal interest 

would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, any member Of his Or her immediate family, his Or 

her partner, Or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, 

has a financial or personal interest in Or a tangible personal benefit from an entity considered for a 

subaward. Based on this policy: 

 

 1. The recipient shall maintain a written code or standards of conduct that provide for disciplinary 

actions To be applied For violations Of such standards by officers, employees, Or agents. 

 

  a. The code or standards shall provide that the recipient's officers, employees, or agents may 

neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, Or anything Of monetary value from present or potential 

subawardees, including contractors or parties to subcontracts. 

 

  b. The code or standards shall establish penalties, sanctions or other disciplinary actions for 

violations, as permitted by State or local law or regulations. 

 

 2. The recipient shall maintain responsibility to enforce the requirements of the written code or 

standards of conduct. 

 

Disclosure Requirements 

 

 No State or its subrecipient, including its officers, employees or agents, shall perform or continue to 

perform under a grant Or cooperative agreement, whose objectivity may be impaired because of any 

related past, present, or currently planned interest, financial or otherwise, in organizations regulated by 

NHTSA or in organizations whose interests may be substantially affected by NHTSA activities. Based 

on this policy: 

 

 1. The recipient shall disclose any conflict of interest identified as soon as reasonably possible, 

making an immediate And full disclosure In writing To NHTSA. The disclosure shall include a 

description of the action which the recipient has taken or proposes to take to avoid or mitigate such 

conflict. 

 

 2. NHTSA will review the disclosure and may require additional relevant information from the 

recipient. If a conflict of interest is found to exist, NHTSA may 

 

  (a) terminate the award, or 

 

  (b) determine that it is otherwise in the best interest of NHTSA to continue the award and include 

appropriate provisions to mitigate or avoid such conflict. 

 

 3. Conflicts of interest that require disclosure include all past, present or currently planned 

organizational, financial, contractual Or other interest(s) With an organization regulated by NHTSA or 

with an organization whose interests may be substantially affected by NHTSA activities, And which 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

20 

are related to this award. The interest(s) that require disclosure include those of any recipient, affiliate, 

proposed consultant, proposed subcontractor and key personnel of any of the above. Past interest shall 

be limited to within one year of the date of award. Key personnel shall include any person owning more 

than a 20 percent interest in a recipient, And the officers, employees Or agents of a recipient who are 

responsible for making a decision or taking an action under an award where the decision or Action can 

have an economic Or other impact on the interests of a regulated Or affected organization 

 

Prohibition on Using Grant Funds to Check for Helmet Usage 

 

 The State and each subrecipient will not use 23 U.S.C. Chapter 4 grant funds for programs to check 

helmet usage or to create checkpoints that specifically target motorcyclists. 

 

Certification Regarding Debarment and Suspension 

 

 A. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective primary tier participant is providing the 

certification set out below and agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 

1200. 

 

 B. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in 

denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective primary tier participant shall 

submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or 

explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination 

whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary tier participant 

to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this 

transaction. 

 

 C. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 

when the department or agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined 

that the prospective primary tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in 

addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may 

terminate this transaction for cause or default or may pursue suspension or debarment. 

 

 D. The prospective primary tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department 

or agency to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective primary tier participant 

learns its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of 

changed circumstances. 

 

 E. The terms covered transaction, civil judgment, debarment, suspension, ineligible, participant, 

person, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR parts 180 

and 1200. You may contact the department or agency to which this proposal is being submitted for 

assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 

 

 F. The prospective primary tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the 

proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 

covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, 

debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 

transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction. 

 

 G. The prospective primary tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will 

include the clause titled Instructions for Lower Tier Certification including the Certification 

Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion—Lower Tier Covered 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

21 

Transaction, provided by the department or agency entering into this covered transaction, without 

modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered 

transactions and will require lower tier participants to comply with 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200. 

 

 H. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in 

a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 

9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless 

it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its 

principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered 

transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any prospective 

lower tier participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the System for Award 

Management Exclusions website (https://www.sam.gov). 

 

 I. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of 

records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent 

person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

 

 J. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a 

covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 

proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available 

to the Federal government, the department or agency may terminate the transaction for cause of 

default. 

 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matter 

A. The prospective primary tier participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its 

principal: 

 

  1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or 

agency; 

 

  2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil 

judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection 

   with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction 

or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or 

   commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of record, 

making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 

  3. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 

entity (Federal, State or Local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 

paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 

 

  4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public 

transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

 

B. Where the prospective primary tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 

certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

22 

Instructions for Lower Tier Certification 

 

 A. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the 

certification set out below and agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 

1200. 

 

 B. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 

when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier 

participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available 

to the Federal government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may 

pursue available remedies, including suspension or debarment. 

 

 C. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which 

this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its 

certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 

circumstances. 

 

 D. The terms covered transaction, debarment, suspension, ineligible, lower tier, participant, person, 

primary tier, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR parts 

180 and 1200. You may contact the person to whom this proposal is submitted for assistance in 

obtaining a copy of those regulations. 

 

 E. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed 

covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 

transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, 

debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 

transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated. 

 

 F. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include 

the clause titled "Instructions for Lower Tier Participant Certification" including the "Certification 

Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion- Lower Tier Covered 

Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for 

lower tier covered transactions and will require lower tier participants to comply with 2 CFR parts 

180 and 1200. 

 

 G. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in 

a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 

9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless 

it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its 

principals are not suspended, debarred or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. 

To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any prospective lower tier 

participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the System for Award Management 

Exclusions Website (https://www.sam.gov). 

 

 H. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of 

records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent 

person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

 

 I. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a 

covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

23 

proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available 

to the Federal government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may 

pursue available remedies, including suspension or debarment. 

 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier 

Covered Transactions 

 

 A. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor 

its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or 

agency. 

 

 B. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 

certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

24 

Restriction on State Lobbying 

 

  None of the funds under this program will be used for any activity specifically designed to urge or 

influence a State or local legislator to favor or oppose the adoption of any specific legislative 

proposal pending before any State or local legislative body. Such activities include both direct and 

indirect (e.g., "grassroots") lobbying activities, with one exception. This does not preclude a State 

official whose salary is supported with NHTSA funds from engaging in direct communications 

with State or local legislative officials, in accordance with customary State practice, even if such 

communications urge legislative officials to favor or oppose the adoption of a specific pending 

legislative proposal. 

 

Certification for Contracts, Grant, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements (Federal Lobbying) 

 

 The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

 

 A. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, 

to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 

Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 

Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, 

the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 

continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or 

cooperative agreement. 

 

 B. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 

Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 

connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall 

complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance 

with its instructions. 

 

 C. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 

documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 

grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose 

accordingly. 

 

  This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 

transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 

or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails 

to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not 

more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

 

 Signature of Project Director:  Signature of Authorized Official of 

   Governmental Unit: 

 

 Wyatt Berry, Chief  Suzanne Harvey, Town Manager 

 Huachuca City Police Department  Town of Huachuca City 

 

     

 

     

 Date Telephone Date Telephone 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

25 

REIMBURSEMENT INSTRUCTIONS 

 

1. Agency Official preparing the Report of Costs Incurred: 

 

 Name:    

 

 Title:    

 

 Telephone Number:  Fax Number:  

 

 E-mail Address:    

 

2. Agency's Fiscal Contact: 

 

 Name:    

 

 Title:    

 

 Telephone Number:  Fax Number:  

 

 E-mail Address:    

 

 Federal Identification Number:    

 

3. REIMBURSEMENT INFORMATION: 

 

 Warrant/Check to be made payable to: 

 

     

 

 Warrant/Check to be mailed to: 

 

     

 (Agency) 

 

     

 (Address) 

 

     

 (City, State, Zip Code) 

 

4. Unique Entity Identifier: 

 

     

 (Unique Entity Identifier #) 

 

     

 (Registered Address & Zip Code) 

 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-405d-024 

 

26 

AUTHORITY & FUNDS 

 

1. This Project is authorized by 23 U.S.C. §405 and regulations promulgated there under, more particularly 

Volume 102, and if State funds are involved, this project is authorized by ARS §28-602. 

 

 The funds authorized for this Project have been appropriated and budgeted by the U.S. Department of 

Transportation. The expenses are reimbursable under Arizona's Highway Safety Plan Program Area 405d, 

as approved for by the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration. 

 

 

2.  A. EFFECTIVE DATE: B. FEDERAL FUNDS: 

 

   Authorization to Proceed Date  $21,416.00 

 

3.  AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED 

  by State Official responsible to Governor for the 

  administration of the State Highway Safety Agency 

 

 

 

 

     

 J.M. "Jesse" Torrez, Director  Approval Date 

 Governor's Office of Highway Safety 

 Governor's Highway Safety Representative 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

Town of Huachuca City 
The Sunset City 

500 N Gonzales Blvd • Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 
Phone: (520) 456-1354 • TDD: (520) 456-1353 • Fax: (520) 456-2230 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-16 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA 
CITY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A GRANT 
AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF ARIZONA FOR GOVERNOR’S OFFICE OF 
HIGHWAY SAFETY FUNDING FOR ENHANCED TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT ON 
HIGHWAY 90 WITHIN THE TOWN; ACCEPTING ALL TERMS AND REQUIREMENTS 
OF THE GRANT AGREEMENT AND THE GRANT PROGRAM; AND AUTHORIZING 
ALL ACTS NECESSARY AND PROPER TO RECEIVE THE GRANT FUNDS AND 
COMPLY WITH THE GRANT PROGRAM. 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Huachuca City provides emergency response and other essential 
government services to the public; and 

WHEREAS, the Town has applied for grant funding to enhance traffic enforcement on Highway 
90 within the Town; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Arizona, through the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety, has 
approved the Town’s grant application for federal 402 funding [“Program”]; and 

WHEREAS, the State has prepared a Grant Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated herein by this reference, pursuant to which the Town may receive the grant funding 
under the Program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Huachuca City, Arizona, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The Police Chief and Town Manager are hereby authorized to execute for, and on 

behalf of the Town of Huachuca City, a municipality established under the laws 
of the State of Arizona, the Grant Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

 
Section 2. The Town of Huachuca City accepts and agrees to be bound by the terms of the 

Grant Agreement and the grant Program. 
 
Section 3. The Town’s staff is hereby authorized and directed to file all applications, reports 

and other necessary and proper documents with the appropriate state and federal 
authorities to receive the grant funds and to comply with the terms of the Grant 
Agreement and the grant Program.  

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, THIS 25TH DAY OF 
SEPTEMBER, 2025.  

 

       ________________________________ 
                                                                                 Johann Wallace, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:     

Approved as to Form: 

 

__________________________________  _________________________________ 
Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk    Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 
 

 

[Grant agreement must be attached.] 



Governor's Office of Highway Safety | www.gohs.az.gov  

PROJECT REFERENCE: 
Grant Agreement Number: 2026-PTS-032 
Total Estimated Costs: $44,764.00 
Purpose of Project: STEP Enforcement Overtime, 
and Related Materials and Supplies (LIDARs & 
RADARs) 
 

1700 W Washington St, Exec. Tower Ste. 430 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 

602.255.3216 

KATIE HOBBS  
GOVERNOR 

J.M. "JESSE" TORREZ  
DIRECTOR 

 

 

 
Chief Wyatt Berry 
Huachuca City Police Department 
500 N Gonzales Boulevard  
Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 
 
 
 
Dear Chief Berry: 
 
Attached is one copy of the referenced Highway Safety Grant Agreement for your review and signature.  This is 
not an authorization to proceed with the project. 
 
Please complete the following steps: 
 

1. Review the entire grant agreement as there have been significant changes throughout the agreement; 

2. GOHS requires one single-sided copy with an original signature.  

3. Have your fiscal staff complete the Reimbursement Instructions (page 25); 

4. As Project Director, sign and date the signature page;  

5. Obtain the signature of Suzanne Harvey, Town Manager, Town of Huachuca City as the Authorized 
Official of Governmental Unit;  

6. Return one completed and signed copy by mail to the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety, 1700 West 
Washington Street, Executive Tower, Suite 430, Phoenix, Arizona, 85007.   

 
Please do not incur any costs at this time as it would nullify the grant agreement.  Once the signed copy is 
received, I will approve and sign the agreement as the GOHS Director/Governor’s Highway Safety 
Representative and a copy of the original executed grant agreement with a letter of authorization to proceed will 
be emailed to you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
___________________________________    
J.M. “Jesse” Torrez, Director      
Governor’s Highway Safety Representative 

 

http://www.gohs.az.gov/


 

1 

 

GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF 

HIGHWAY SAFETY 

STATE OF ARIZONA 

HIGHWAY SAFETY GRANT AGREEMENT 

This page, the Project Director's Manual and attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, constitute the entire 

Grant between the parties hereto unless the Governor’s Highway Safety Representative authorizes deviation in writing. 

 FAIN: 69A37526300004020AZ0 Assistance Listings: 20.600 

1. APPLICANT AGENCY GOHS GRANT NUMBER: 

 Huachuca City Police Department 2026-PTS-032 

 ADDRESS PROGRAM AREA: 

 500 N Gonzales Boulevard, Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 402-PTS 

2. GOVERNMENTAL UNIT AGENCY CONTACT: 

 Town of Huachuca City Kyle Arnett 

 ADDRESS 3. PROJECT TITLE: 

 500 N Gonzales Boulevard, Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 STEP Enforcement Overtime, and Related 

Materials and Supplies (LIDARs & 

RADARs) 

4. GUIDELINES: 

 402–Police Traffic Services (PTS) 

5. BRIEFLY STATE PURPOSE OF PROJECT: 

Federal 402 funds will support Personnel Services (Overtime), Employee Related Expenses, and Materials and 

Supplies (LIDARs & RADARs) to enhance STEP Enforcement throughout the Town of Huachuca City. 

6. BUDGET 

 COST CATEGORY 

Project Period 

FFY 2026 

I. Personnel Services $22,388.00 

II. Employee Related Expenses (34%) $7,612.00 

III. Professional and Outside Services $0.00 

IV. Travel In-State $0.00 

V. Travel Out-of-State $0.00 

VI. Materials and Supplies $14,764.00 

VII. Capital Outlay $0.00 

 TOTAL ESTIMATED COSTS $44,764.00 

PROJECT PERIOD 
FROM: Effective Date 

(Date of GOHS Director Signature) 
TO: 09-30-2026 

CURRENT GRANT PERIOD FROM: 10-01-2025 TO: 09-30-2026 

TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS OBLIGATED THIS FFY: $44,764.00 

 

A political subdivision or State agency that is mandated to provide a certified resolution or ordinance 

authorizing entry into this Grant agreement must do so prior to incurring any expenditures. Failure to do so 

may result in termination of the awarded Grant agreement. 

 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

2 

PROBLEM IDENTIFICATION AND RESOLUTION: 

 

Agency Background: 

 

Number of sworn officers: 7 

 

Total Population in city/town or county: 1,800 

 

Total Road Mileage: Highway: 2 Local: 15 Total: 17 

 

 
 

Agency Problem/Attempts to Solve Problem: 

 

As a main thoroughfare between the Southern Border and I10, State Route 90 is the preferred route for drivers 

traveling to and from southern Cochise County to the rest of the state. As a result, Huachuca City experiences 

much more traffic than what the population alone can create. Each day, thousands of drivers use State Route 

90, commuting to and from Tucson, visiting as tourists, or seeing family in Fort Huachuca and nearby areas. 

With the thousands of vehicles traveling Highway 90, many of them travel above the posted speed limit of 45 

MPH. The Huachuca City Police Department receives numerous complaints throughout the year from residents 

of Huachuca City and other travelers about speeding vehicles, reckless drivers and other aggressive driving 

behaviors. The Huachuca City Police Department's enforcement has had a direct effect on the number of severe 

injury and fatality accidents along State Route 90 in Huachuca City. 

 

Agency Funding: 

 

Federal 402 funds will support Personnel Services (Overtime), Employee Related Expenses, and Materials and 

Supplies (LIDARs & RADARs) to enhance STEP Enforcement throughout the Town of Huachuca City. 

 

How Agency Will Solve Problem with Funding: 

 

This project aims to provide additional over time funding and equipment to help identify violations and enforce 

laws against aggressive and reckless driving. Huachuca City has a two-mile stretch of State Route 90 that goes 

directly through the town. The Huachuca City Police Department has received numerous complaints of 

aggressive drivers traveling on State Route 90 through town. The posted speed limit is 45 MPH, many of the 

driver's that are stopped are traveling well above the posted speed limit. 

 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

3 

PROGRAM MEASURES: 

 

Agency Goals: 

 

To decrease the number of speeding-related crashes 0% from 0 during calendar year 2024 to 0 by December 

31, 2026. 

 

To decrease the number of serious injuries in speeding-related crashes 0% from 0 in calendar year 2024 to 0 by 

December 31, 2026. 

 

To decrease the number of fatalities in speeding-related crashes 0% from 0 in calendar year 2024 to 0 by 

December 31, 2026. 

 

Grant Agreement Objectives: 

 

Conduct targeted speed enforcement efforts a minimum of 12 times per month during FFY 2026. 

 

Additional Grant Agreement Objectives: 

 

1. The Huachuca City Police Department will have Officers work three aggressive driver details per week  

2. The Huachuca City Police Department will continue to keep serious injury and fatality accidents at zero by 

the end of FFY 2026  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

4 

GOALS/OBJECTIVES: 

 

Federal 402 funds will support Personnel Services (Overtime), Employee Related Expenses, and Materials and 

Supplies (LIDARs & RADARs) to enhance STEP Enforcement throughout the Town of Huachuca City. 

 

Expenditures of funding pertaining to the PTS/Selective Traffic Enforcement Program including Personnel 

Services and ERE, Materials and Supplies, Capital Equipment, and/or Travel In and Out-of-State shall comply 

with the PTS/Selective Traffic Enforcement Program goals provided by the Arizona Governor’s Office of 

Highway Safety. The PTS/Selective Traffic Enforcement Program goal is to reduce the incidences of traffic 

fatalities and injuries resulting from speeding, aggressive driving, red light running, and other forms of risky 

driving behavior through enforcement, education, and public awareness throughout the State of Arizona. 

 

MEDIA RELEASE: 

 

To prepare complete press release information for media (television, radio, print, and on-line) during each 

campaign period including a main press release, schedule of events, departmental plans, and relevant data. 

The material will emphasize the campaign’s purpose, aggressive enforcement, and the high cost of 

Speeding in terms of money, criminal, and human consequences. 

 

The Huachuca City Police Department will maintain responsibility for reporting sustained enforcement 

activity in a timely manner. Additionally, it is the responsibility of the Huachuca City Police Department to 

report all holiday task force enforcement statistics to GOHS on-line at the GOHS website no later than 10:00 

a.m. the morning following each day of the event. 

 

The holidays and special events include but not limited to:  Super Bowl Sunday, Valentine's Day, President’s 

Day, St. Patrick’s Day, Spring Break, Easter, Cinco de Mayo, Prom Night, Memorial Day, Graduation Day, 

Independence Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Halloween, and the Thanksgiving through New Year’s details. 

 

PLEASE NOTE:  Failure to submit Statistics, Quarterly Reports, and/or Report of Costs Incurred 

(RCIs) timely and correctly may delay reimbursement for expenditures to your Agency. 

 

METHOD OF PROCEDURE: 

 

The Huachuca City Police Department will make expenditures, as follows, to meet the outlined Program 

Goals/Objectives: 

 

Personnel Services - To support Overtime for STEP/Speed Enforcement Activities 

 

Employee Related Expenses - To support Employee Related Expenses for Agency Overtime 

 

Materials and Supplies - To purchase/procure the following Materials and Supplies for STEP/Speed 

Enforcement Activities: LIDARs & RADARs 

 

PRESS RELEASE: 

 

Agencies are required to develop and distribute a press release announcing this grant award upon receipt of 

the executed Grant agreement. A copy of this press release shall be sent to the GOHS Director for approval 

prior to being sent to the media. This press release shall include the objective and specify that the funding is 

from the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety. 

 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

5 

BAC TESTING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: 

 

Alcohol impairment is a major contributing factor in fatality and serious injury motor vehicle collisions.  

Accurate data on alcohol involvement is essential to understanding the full extent of the role of alcohol and to 

assess progress toward reducing impaired driving. 

 

Each law enforcement agency that receives an enforcement-related grant is required to ensure that 

accurate data on all drivers involved is reported. Failure to comply may result in withholding funds and 

cancellation of the enforcement Grant agreement until this requirement is met. 

 

PURSUIT POLICY: 

 

All law enforcement agencies receiving Federal funds are encouraged to follow the guidelines established for 

vehicular pursuits issued by the International Association of Chiefs of Police (IACP) that are currently in effect. 

 

SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS: 

 

SPEED DETECTION EQUIPMENT –  

 

Requirements for Speed Detection Devices: 

The Huachuca City Police Department will be responsible for providing all personnel the appropriate training 

for using the speed detection devices purchased under this Grant agreement implementing a National Highway 

Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) approved training course. 

 

The Huachuca City Police Department will maintain written documentation (copy of the training certificates) 

which will be available for review by GOHS. 

 

 

METHOD OF PROCUREMENT: 

 

The application of 2 CFR Part 200 "Procurement Standards" requires that: 

 

Grantees and sub-grantees will use their own procurement procedures which reflect applicable State and local 

laws and regulations, provided the procurement procedures conform to applicable Federal laws and standards. 

 

The most stringent purchasing requirement at each level must be met. If the Agency does not have a 

procurement process, the Agency may use the State procurement process. 

 

A clear audit trail must be established to determine costs charged against this Grant agreement.  Substantiation 

of costs shall, where possible, be made utilizing the Huachuca City Police Department documentation 

consisting of, but not limited to, copies of time sheets, purchase orders, copies of invoices, and proof of payment  

 

The Agency shall retain copies of all documentation in the project file. 

 

State Contract: 

 

Procurement may be made using an open State contract award. Documents submitted to substantiate purchases 

using an open State contract must bear the contract number. 

 

 

 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

6 

PROJECT EVALUATION: 

 

This project shall be administratively evaluated to ensure the objectives have been met. 

 

Quarterly Report 

 

The purpose of the Quarterly Report is to provide information on grant activities conducted at the conclusion 

of each active quarter. The information provided is used to review progress of the funded project and the 

successfulness in meeting outlined goals and objectives. The information, photos, highlights, obstacles, and 

mandatory statistical data provided in this report are analyzed by the assigned Project Coordinator. It is critical 

the report contains the following information: 

 

  Original signatures on all Quarterly Reports and RCIs 

  All Quarterly Reports and RCIs shall include the signature of the Project 

Director unless prior authorization for another is on file with GOHS. 

 

Report Schedule 

 

Reporting Period Due Date 

1st Quarterly Report and RCI (October 1 to December 31, 2025) January 30, 2026 

2nd Quarterly Report and RCI (January 1 to March 31, 2026) April 20, 2026 

3rd Quarterly Report and RCI (April 1 to June 30, 2026) July 20, 2026 

4th Quarterly Report and RCI (July 1 to September 30, 2026) October 15, 2026 

Final Statement of Accomplishments October 15, 2026 

 

The Quarterly Report shall be completed on the form available on-line and can be submitted by email to 

the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety. 

 

NOTE: IT IS REQUIRED THAT ALL LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES MUST ENTER 

STATISTICAL AND ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY INTO THE ON-LINE GOHS DUI REPORTING 

SYSTEM, IN ADDITION TO SUBMITTING THE QUARTERLY ENFORCEMENT REPORT. 

 

Final Statement of Accomplishments 

 

The Project Director shall submit a Final Statement of Accomplishments Report to the GOHS no later than 

fifteen (15) days after the conclusion of each Federal Fiscal Year (September 30th). All agencies receiving 

funding are required to submit a Final Statement of Accomplishments Report. 

 

Note: Failure to comply with the outlined GOHS reporting requirements may result in withholding of Federal 

funds or termination of the Grant agreement. 

 

PROFESSIONAL AND TECHNICAL PERSONNEL: 

 

Wyatt Berry, Chief, Huachuca City Police Department, shall serve as Project Director. 

 

Kyle Arnett, Corporal, Huachuca City Police Department, shall serve as Project Administrator. 

 

Andrea Martinez, Governor's Office of Highway Safety, shall serve as Project Coordinator. 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

7 

REPORT OF COSTS INCURRED (RCI): 

 

The Agency shall submit a Report of Costs Incurred (RCI), with supporting documentation attached, to the 

Governor’s Office of Highway Safety on a quarterly basis, for each active quarter, in conjunction with the 

required report. Agencies may submit additional RCI forms for expenditures when funds have been expended 

for which reimbursement is being requested. 

 

Accepted supporting documentation to submit with a Report of Cost Incurred (RCI) includes, but is not limited 

to; scanned copies of timesheets, payroll records, paid invoices/purchase orders, and other account records. 

 

RCIs shall be typed and submitted with appropriate supporting documentation to the Governor’s Office of 

Highway Safety. Electronically submitted RCIs will be accepted. Final RCIs will not be accepted fifteen 

(15) days after the conclusion of each Federal Fiscal Year (September 30th). Expenditures submitted after 

the expiration date may not be reimbursed and the Agency will accept fiscal responsibility. 

 

PROGRAM MONITORING: 

 

Highway safety grant program monitoring is used by GOHS project coordinators to track the progress of project 

objectives, performance measures, and compliance with applicable procedures, laws, and regulations. 

 

The process is used throughout the duration of the grant agreement and serves as a continuous management 

tool. Program monitoring also presents an opportunity to develop partnerships, share information, and provide 

assistance to granted agencies. Additionally, program monitoring outlines a set of procedures for grant review 

and documentation. 

 

Program monitoring serves as a management tool for: 

 

  Detecting and preventing problems 

  Helping to identify needed changes 

  Identifying training or assistance needed 

  Obtaining data necessary for planning and evaluation 

  Identifying exemplary projects 

 

Types of Monitoring 

 

Monitoring is formal and informal, financial and operational. The most common types of monitoring are: 

 

  Ongoing contact with the grantee through phone calls, e-mails, correspondence, and meetings 

  On-Site/In-House monitoring reviews of project operations, management, and financial records 

and systems 

  Review of project Quarterly Reports  

  Review and approval of Report of Costs Incurred (RCIs) 

  Desk review of other documents in the project grant files for timely submission and completeness 

 

Monitoring Schedule 

Total Awarded Amount: Type of Monitoring: 

Under $100,000 Desk Review/Phone Conference 

$100,000 and over May have an In-House GOHS Review 

$300,000+ May have an On-Site/In-House Review 

Capital Outlay Greater than $100,000 (combined) May have an On-Site/In-House Review 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

8 

Desk Review 

and Phone 

Conference 

Internal review of all written documentation related to grant agreement including, but not 

limited to the Grant Agreement, Quarterly Reports, enforcement data, financial data, e-mails, 

letters, notes, press releases, photographs, inventories, and other written correspondence. A 

phone conference call conducted during the course of the project which includes the date 

and time of the call, the person(s) contacted, and the results. It serves as an informational 

review to determine progress of programmatic/financial activities. Both the designated 

project administrator and fiscal contact should be present, if possible, during the phone 

conference. If identified financial or operational problems are present, GOHS reserves the 

right to bring the grantee in for an in-house meeting at GOHS. Monitoring form written by 

Project Coordinator, any findings, areas of improvement, concern, or recognition will be 

provided to the grantee. 

In-House 

Review 

Documents performance review results including project activities, reimbursement claims 

review, equipment purchases, approvals, and other information. Reviews applicable 

information related to the project(s) including, but not limited to the Grant agreement, 

Quarterly Reports, enforcement data, financial data, e-mails, letters, notes, press releases, 

photographs, inventories, and other written correspondence. Completed at GOHS in a 

meeting with appropriate operational and financial personnel. Monitoring form written by 

Project Coordinator, any findings, areas of improvement, concern, or recognition will be 

provided to the grantee. 

On-Site 

Monitoring 

Documents performance review results including project activities, reimbursement claims 

review, equipment purchases, and other information. Reviews applicable information related 

to the project(s) including, but not limited to the Grant agreement, Quarterly Reports, 

enforcement data, financial data, e-mails, letters, notes, press releases, photographs, 

inventories, and other written correspondence. Conducted on-site at the grantee’s Agency 

with monitoring form completed on-site by Project Coordinator.  Any findings, areas of 

improvement, concern, or recognition, will be provided to the grantee. 

 

On-site/In-house monitoring for grantees of designated projects with large Capital Outlay purchases, personnel 

services, and complex projects must be completed within the second or third quarter of the fiscal year. Granted 

projects displaying any problems may need on-site monitoring more than once during the fiscal year. 

 

On-site/In-house monitoring includes a review and discussion of all issues related to ensure the effective 

administration of the granted project. The following are the most important items to review: 

 

  Progress toward meeting goals/objectives and performance measures 

  Adherence to the grant agreement specifications, timely submission of complete and correct 

reports, including required documentation 

  Quarterly Reports 

  Status of expenditures related to the outlined budget 

  Accounting records and RCI's 

  Supporting documentation (training documentation, inventory sheets, photographs, press releases, 

etc.) 

 

In addition, the designated Agency will ensure that any equipment purchased will be available for inspection 

and is being used for the purpose for which it was bought under the outlined grant agreement. 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

9 

Documentation 

 

The Governor’s Office of Highway Safety will retain all findings documented on the GOHS Monitoring Form 

in the Agency's respective Federal file. Findings will be discussed with the designated grant agreement 

representative (Project Administrator, fiscal specialist) by phone and/or e-mail. All noted deficiencies will be 

provided to the grantee with guidance for improvement and solutions to problems. Grantees that exhibit 

significantly poor performance may be placed on a performance plan as outlined by the GOHS Director. 

Grantee monitoring information will additionally provide documentation for potential funding in subsequent 

fiscal year grant proposal review. 

 

PROJECT PERIOD: 

 

The project period shall commence on the date the GOHS Director signs the Highway Safety Grant Agreement 

and terminate on September 30th of that or subsequent year as indicated on the Highway Safety Grant 

Agreement. 

 

DURATION: 

 

Grants shall be effective on the date the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety Director signs the Grant 

Agreement and expire at the end of the project period. 

 

If the Agency is unable to expend the funds in the time specified, the Agency will submit notification on the 

Agency’s letterhead and hand deliver or submit via regular mail to the Director of the Governor's Office of 

Highway Safety a minimum of sixty days (60) prior to the end of the project period. 

 

The Agency shall address all requests to modify the Grant Agreement to the Director of the Governor’s Office 

of Highway Safety on Agency's official letterhead and either hand deliver or submit the request via regular 

mail. All requests for modification must bear the signature of the Project Director. 

 

Failure to comply may result in cancellation of the Grant Agreement. Any unexpended funds remaining at the 

termination of the Grant Agreement shall be released back to the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety. 

 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

10 

ESTIMATED COSTS: 

 

I. Personnel Services (overtime) 

 

$22,388.00 

II. Employee Related Expenses (ERE 34%) 

 

$7,612.00 

III. Professional and Outside Services 

 

$0.00 

IV. Travel In-State 

 

$0.00 

V. Travel Out-of-State 

 

$0.00 

VI. Materials and Supplies 

LIDARs & RADARs 

 

$14,764.00 

VII. Capital Outlay 

 

$0.00 

 TOTAL ESTIMATED COSTS *$44,764.00 

 

*Includes all applicable training, tax, freight, and advertising costs. The GOHS reserves the right to limit 

reimbursement of Employee Related Expenses from zero (0) to a maximum rate of forty (40) percent. This is 

the maximum ERE amount to be reimbursed. It is agreed and understood that the Huachuca City Police 

Department shall absorb any and all expenditures in excess of $44,764.00. 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

11 

QUARTERLY ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

(Submitted to GOHS) 

 

         

Reporting Period 

 

DESCRIPTION 

GRANT 

AGREEMENT 

ACTIVITY 

AGENCY 

ACTIVITY 

Total Contacts (Traffic Stops)   

Total Sober Designated Drivers Contacted   

Total Know Your Limit Contacts   

TOTAL DUI ARRESTS   

  Total DUI Aggravated   

  Total DUI Misdemeanor   

Total DUI Extreme (.15 or Above)   

Under 21 DUI Citations   

Average BAC   

Distracted Driving Citations   

Total DUI Drug Arrests   

30-Day Vehicle Impounds   

Seat Belt Citations   

Child Restraint Citations   

Criminal Speed Citations   

Reckless Driving Citations   

Civil Speed Citations   

Other Citations   

Other Arrests   

Participating Officer/Deputies (Cumulative)   

 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

12 

CERTIFICATIONS AND AGREEMENTS 

 

CERTIFICATIONS AND AGREEMENTS 

 

This GRANT AGREEMENT, is made and entered into by and between the STATE OF ARIZONA, by and 

through the Governor’s Office of Highway Safety (GOHS) hereinafter referred to as "STATE", and the agency 

named in this Grant Agreement, hereinafter referred to as "AGENCY". 

 

WHEREAS, the National Highway Safety Act of 1966, as amended (23 USC §§401-404), provides Federal 

funds to STATE for approved highway safety projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, STATE may make said funds available to various state, county, tribal, or municipal agencies, 

governments, or political subdivisions upon application and approval by STATE and the United States 

Department of Transportation (USDOT); and 

 

WHEREAS, AGENCY must comply with the requirements listed herein to be eligible for Federal funds for 

approved highway safety projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, AGENCY has submitted an application for Federal funds for highway safety projects; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF MUTUAL PROMISES AND OTHER GOODS AND 

VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, it is mutually agreed that AGENCY will strictly comply with the following 

terms and conditions and the following Federal and State Statutes, Rules, and Regulations: 

 

I. Project Monitoring, Reports, and Inspections 

 

 A. AGENCY agrees to fully cooperate with representatives of STATE monitoring the project, either 

on-site or by telephone, during the life of the Grant Agreement. 

 

 B. AGENCY will submit Quarterly Reports (one for each three-month period of the project year) to 

STATE in the form and manner prescribed by STATE. Notice of the specific requirements for each 

  report will be given in this Grant Agreement or at any time thereafter by giving thirty (30) days 

written notice to AGENCY by ordinary mail at the address listed on the Grant Agreement. Failure 

  to comply with Quarterly Report requirements may result in withholding of Federal funds or 

termination of this Grant Agreement. 

 

 C. AGENCY will submit a Final Report/Statement of Accomplishment at completion of the Grant 

Agreement to include all financial, performance, and other reports required as a condition of the 

grant to STATE within thirty (30) days of the completion of the Grant Agreement. 

 

 D. Representatives authorized by STATE and the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 

(NHTSA) will have the right to visit the site and inspect the work under this Grant Agreement 

whenever such representatives may determine such inspection is necessary. 

 

II. Reimbursement of Eligible Expenses 

 

A. AGENCY's Project Director, or Finance Personnel, will submit a Report of Costs Incurred Form 

(RCI) to STATE each time there have been funds expended for which reimbursement is being 

requested. Failure to meet this requirement may be cause to terminate the project under Section 

XX herein, "Termination and Abandonment". 

 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

13 

 B. AGENCY will reimburse STATE for any ineligible or unauthorized expenses for which Federal 

funds have been claimed and reimbursement received, as may have been determined by a State or 

Federal audit. 

 

 C. STATE will have the right to withhold any installments equal to the reimbursement received by 

AGENCY for prior installments which have been subsequently determined to be ineligible or 

unauthorized. 

 

III. Property Agreement 

 

A. AGENCY will immediately notify STATE if any equipment purchased under this Grant 

Agreement ceases to be used in the manner as set forth by this Grant Agreement. In such event, 

AGENCY further agrees to either give credit to the project cost or to another active highway safety 

project for the residual value of such equipment in an amount to be determined by STATE or to 

transfer or otherwise dispose of such equipment as directed by STATE. 

 

 B. No equipment will be conveyed, sold, salvaged, transferred, etc., without the express written 

approval of STATE, or unless otherwise provided elsewhere in this Grant Agreement. 

 

 C. AGENCY will maintain or cause to be maintained for its useful life, any equipment purchased 

under this Grant Agreement. 

 

 D. AGENCY will incorporate any equipment purchased under this Grant Agreement into its inventory 

records. 

 

 E. AGENCY will insure any equipment purchased under this Grant Agreement for the duration of its 

useful life. Self-insurance meets the requirements of this section. 

 

IV. Travel 

 

 In-State and Out-of-State Travel 

 

 In state and out-of-state travel claims will be reimbursed at rates provided by AGENCY's regulations, 

provided that such regulations are as restrictive as those of STATE. Where they are less restrictive, 

ARS §38-624 will apply. 

 

 The State must approve all out-of-state travel in writing and in advance. 

 

V. Standard of Performance 

 

 AGENCY hereby agrees to perform all work and services herein required or set forth, and to furnish 

all labor, materials, and equipment, except that labor, material, and equipment as STATE agrees to 

furnish pursuant to this Grant Agreement. 

 

VI. Hold Harmless Agreement 

 

 Neither party to this agreement agrees to indemnify the other party or hold harmless the other party 

from liability hereunder.  However, if the common law or a statute provides for either a right to 

 indemnify and/or a right to contribution to any party to this agreement then the right to pursue one or 

both of these remedies is preserved. 

 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

14 

VII. Non-Assignment and Sub-Contracts 

 

 This Grant Agreement is not assignable nor may any portion of the work to be performed be 

subcontracted unless specifically agreed to in writing by STATE. No equipment purchased hereunder 

may be assigned or operated by other than AGENCY unless agreed to in writing by STATE. 

 

VIII. Work Products and Title to Commodities and Equipment 

 

A. The work product and results of the project are the property of STATE, unless otherwise specified 

elsewhere in this Grant Agreement. All property, instruments, non-consumable materials, supplies, 

and the like, which are furnished or paid for by STATE under the terms of this Grant Agreement, 

unless otherwise provided for elsewhere in this Grant Agreement, are and remain the property of 

STATE and will be returned at the completion of this project upon request of STATE. The work 

product and results of the project will be furnished to STATE upon request, if no provision is 

otherwise made by this Grant Agreement. 

 

 B. The provisions of subparagraph A apply whether or not the project granted for herein is completed. 

 

IX. Copyrights and Patents 

 

 Any copyrightable materials, patentable discovery, or invention produced in the course of this project 

may be claimed by STATE and a copyright or patent obtained by it at its expense. In the event STATE 

 does not wish to obtain such copyright or patent, AGENCY may do so, but in any event, provision will 

be made by AGENCY for royalty-free, nonexclusive, nontransferable, and irrevocable licenses to be 

 given the United States Government and STATE and its political subdivisions to use such copyrightable 

material, patented discoveries, or inventions in any manner they see fit. The STATE reserves the right 

 to impose such other terms and conditions upon the use of such copyrights or patents as may be deemed 

in the best interest of STATE in the event AGENCY is allowed to obtain a copyright or patent. 

 

X. Uniform Administrative Requirements 

 

 (2 CFR Part 1201): Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 

for Federal Awards: 

 

 The application of 2 CFR Part 200 "Procurement Standards" Requires that: 

 

 AGENCY and sub-grantees will use their own procurement procedures, which reflect applicable State 

and local laws and regulations, provided that the procurements conform to applicable Federal law. The 

most stringent purchasing requirement at each level must be met. 

 

 The Arizona Procurement Code (ARS §41-2501, et. seq.) and promulgated rules (A.A.C. Title 2, 

Chapter 7) are a part of this Grant Agreement as if fully set forth herein and AGENCY agrees to fully 

comply with these requirements for any procurement using grant monies from this Grant Agreement. 

 

XI. Non-Discrimination 

 

 The AGENCY and the STATE will comply with all Federal statues and implementing regulations 

relating to nondiscrimination ("Federal Nondiscrimination Authorities"). These include but are not 

limited to: 

 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 200d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of race, color national origin); 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

15 

 49 CFR part 21 (entitled Non-discrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of 

Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964); 

 28 CFR 50.3 (U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title VI of the Civil Rights 

Act of 1964); 

 The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. 

4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired 

because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects); 

 Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. 324 et seq.), and Title IX of the Education 

Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. 1681-1683 and 1685-1686) (prohibit discrimination 

on the basis of sex); 

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of disability) and 49 CFR part 27; 

 The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.), (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of age); 

 The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (Pub. L. 100-209), (broadens scope, coverage, and 

applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the term "programs 

Or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal aid recipients, subrecipients 

and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally-funded or not); 

 Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12131-12189) (prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private 

transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing) and 49 CFR parts 37 

and 38. 

 

 During the performance of this contract/grant agreement, the contractor/grant recipient agrees— 

 

 A. To comply with all Federal nondiscrimination laws and regulations, as may be amended from time 

to time; 

 

 B. Not to participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by any Federal non-

discrimination law or regulation, as set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR part 2l and herein; 

 

 C. To permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as 

required by the State highway safety office, US DOT or NHTSA; 

 

 D. That, in event a contractor/grant recipient fails to comply with any nondiscrimination provisions in 

this contract/grant agreement, the State highway safety agency will have the right to impose such 

 contract/grant agreement sanctions as it or NHTSA determine are appropriate, including, but not 

limited to, withholding payments to the contractor/grant recipient under the contract/grant agreement 

 until the contractor/grant recipient complies; and/or cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract 

or grant agreement, in whole or in part; and 

 

 E. To insert this clause, including paragraphs A through E, in every subcontract and subagreement 

and in every solicitation for a subcontract or sub-agreement, that receives Federal funds under this 

program. 

 

XII. Executive Order 2023-01 

 

 It is mutually agreed that AGENCY will comply with the terms and conditions of Executive Order 

2023-01, Non-Discrimination in Employment by Government Contractors and Subcontractors. 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

16 

XIII. Political Activity (HATCH ACT) 

 

 The AGENCY will comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. 1501-1508), which limits the 

political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part 

with Federal funds. 

 

XIV. Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) Policy and Obligation 

 

A. Policy:  It is the policy of the USDOT that minority business enterprises as defined in 49 CFR Part 

23, will have the maximum opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts financed in 

whole or in part with Federal funds under this Grant Agreement. Consequently, the minority 

business enterprises requirements of 49 CFR Part 23 apply to this Grant Agreement. 

 

B. Obligation:  The recipient or its contractor agrees to ensure that minority business enterprises, as 

defined in 49 CFR Part 23, have the subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds 

provided under this Grant Agreement. In this regard, all recipients or contractors will take all 

necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with 49 CFR, Part 23 to ensure that minority business 

enterprises have the maximum opportunity to compete for and perform contracts. Recipients and 

their contractors will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, creed, sex, or national origin in 

the award and performance of USDOT-assigned Grant Agreements. 

 

XV. Arbitration Clause, ARS §12-1518 

 

 Pursuant to ARS §12-1518, the parties agree to use arbitration, after exhausting applicable 

administrative reviews, to resolve disputes arising out of this agreement where the provisions of 

mandatory arbitration apply. 

 

XVI. Inspection and Audit, ARS §35-214 

 

 Pursuant to ARS §35-214, all books, accounts, reports, files, and other records relating to this 

Agreement will be subject at all reasonable times to inspection and audit by STATE for five (5) years 

 after completion of this Agreement. The records will be produced at the Governor’s Office of Highway 

Safety. 

 

XVII. Appropriation of Funds by U.S. Congress 

 

 It is agreed that in no event will this Grant Agreement be binding on any party hereto unless and until 

such time as funds are appropriated and authorized by the U.S. Congress and specifically allocated to 

 the project submitted herein and then only for the fiscal year for which such allocation is made. In the 

event no funds are appropriated by the U.S. Congress or no funds are allocated for the project proposed 

 herein for subsequent fiscal years, this Grant Agreement will be null and void, except as to that portion 

for which funds have then been appropriated or allocated to this project, and no right of action or 

 damages will accrue to the benefit of the parties hereto as to that portion of the Contract or Grant 

Agreement that may so become null and void. 

 

XVIII. Continuation of Highway Safety Program 

 

 It is the intention of AGENCY to continue the Highway Safety Program identified in this Grant 

Agreement once Federal funding is completed. This intended continuation will be based upon cost 

effectiveness and an evaluation by AGENCY of the program's impact on highway safety. 

 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

17 

XIX. E-Verify 

 

 Both parties acknowledge that immigration laws require them to register and participate with the E-

Verify Program (employment verification program administered by the United States Department of 

Homeland Security and the Social Security Administration or any successor program) as they both 

 employ one or more employees in this State. Both parties warrant that they have registered with and 

participate with E-Verify. If either party later determines that the other non-compliant party has not 

 complied with E-Verify, it will notify the non-compliant party by certified mail of the determination 

and of the right to appeal the determination. 

 

XX. Termination and Abandonment 

 

 A. The STATE and AGENCY hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants contained herein, 

except that STATE reserves the right, at its discretion, to terminate or abandon any portion of the 

project for which services have not been already performed by AGENCY. 

 

 B. In the event STATE abandons the services or any part of the services as herein provided, STATE 

will notify AGENCY in writing and within twenty-four (24) hours after receiving such notice, 

  AGENCY will discontinue advancing the work under this Grant Agreement and proceed to close 

said operations under the Grant Agreement. 

 

 C. The appraisal value of work performed by AGENCY to the date of such termination or 

abandonment shall be made by STATE on a basis equitable to STATE and AGENCY and a final 

reimbursement made to AGENCY on the basis of costs incurred. Upon termination or 

  abandonment, AGENCY will deliver to STATE all documents, completely or partially completed, 

together with all unused materials supplied by STATE. 

 

 D. AGENCY may terminate or abandon this Grant Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to 

STATE, provided there is subsequent concurrence by STATE. Termination or abandonment by 

  AGENCY will provide that costs can be incurred against the project up to and including sixty (60) 

days after notice is given to STATE. 

 

 E. Any equipment or commodities which have been purchased as a part of this Grant Agreement and 

which have not been consumed or reached the end of its useful life will be returned to STATE upon 

its written request. 

 

XXI. Cancellation Statute 

 

 All parties are hereby put on notice that this Contract/Grant Agreement is subject to cancellation 

pursuant to ARS §38-511, the provisions of which are stated below. 

 

 In accordance with ARS §38-511, this Contract/Grant Agreement may be cancelled without penalty or 

further obligation if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting, or 

creating the Contract/Grant Agreement on behalf of the STATE, its political subdivisions or any 

 department or agency of either, is at any time while the Contract/Grant Agreement or any extension of 

the Contract/Grant Agreement is in effect, an employee of any other party to the Contract/Grant 

 Agreement in any capacity or a consultant to any other party of the Contract/Grant Agreement with 

respect to the subject matter or the Contract/Grant Agreement. 

 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

18 

 The cancellation shall be effective when written notice from the Governor or Chief Executive Officer 

or governing body of the political subdivision is received by all other parties to the Contract/Grant 

Agreement unless the notice specifies a later time. 

 

AGREEMENT OF UNDERSTANDING AND CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE 

 

Acceptance of Condition 

 

 It is understood and agreed by the undersigned that a grant received as a result of this Grant Agreement 

is subject to the Highway Safety Act of 1966, as amended (23 U.S.C.A. §§401-404), ARS §28-602, 

and all administrative regulations governing grants established by the USDOT and STATE. It is 

expressly agreed that this Highway Safety Project constitutes an official part of the STATE's Highway 

Safety Program and that AGENCY will meet the requirements as set forth in the accompanying Project 

Director's Manual, which are incorporated herein and made a part of this Grant Agreement. All State 

and Federal Statutes, Rules, Regulations, and Circulars referenced in this Grant Agreement are a part 

of this document as if fully set forth herein. It is also agreed that no work will be performed nor any 

obligation incurred until AGENCY is notified in writing that this project has been approved by the 

Governor's Highway Safety Representative. 

 

Certificate of Compliance 

 

 This is to certify that AGENCY will comply with all of the State and Federal Statutes, Rules and 

Regulations identified in this Grant Agreement. 

 

Certification of Non-Duplication of Grant Funds Expenditure 

 

 This is to certify that AGENCY has no ongoing nor completed projects under Grant Agreement with 

other Federal fund sources which duplicate or overlap any work contemplated or described in this Grant 

Agreement. It is further certified that any pending or proposed request for other Federal grant funds 

which would duplicate or overlap work described in the Grant Agreement will be revised to exclude 

any such duplication of grant fund expenditures. It is understood that any such duplication of Federal 

funds expenditures subsequently determined by audit will be subject to recovery by STATE. 

 

Single Audit Act 

 

 If your political subdivision has had an independent audit meeting the requirements of the Single Audit 

Act of 1984, (31 U.S.C.A. §7501 et. seq.), please forward a copy to GOHS, Attention: Finance Dept., 

within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Grant Agreement. If such audit has not been 

performed, please advise when it is being scheduled. 

 

Buy America Act 

 

 The State and each subrecipient will comply with the Buy America requirement (23 U.S.C. 313) when 

purchasing items using Federal funds. Buy America requires a State, or subrecipient, to purchase with 

Federal funds only steel, iron, and manufactured products produced in the United States, unless the 

Secretary of Transportation determines that such domestically produced items would be inconsistent 

with the public interest, that such materials are not reasonably available and of a satisfactory quality, 

or that inclusion of domestic materials will increase the cost of the overall project contract by more 

than twenty-five (25) percent. In order to use Federal funds to purchase foreign produced items, the 

State must submit a waiver request that provides an adequate basis and justification to and approved 

by the Secretary of Transportation. 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

19 

 

Certification on Conflict of Interest 

 

General Requirements 

 

 No employee, officer or agent of a State or its subrecipient who is authorized in an official capacity To 

negotiate, make, accept Or approve, Or To take part In negotiating, making, accepting or approving 

any subaward, including contracts or subcontracts, in connection with this grant shall have, directly Or 

indirectly, any financial Or personal interest in any such subaward. Such a financial or personal interest 

would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, any member Of his Or her immediate family, his Or 

her partner, Or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, 

has a financial or personal interest in Or a tangible personal benefit from an entity considered for a 

subaward. Based on this policy: 

 

 1. The recipient shall maintain a written code or standards of conduct that provide for disciplinary 

actions To be applied For violations Of such standards by officers, employees, Or agents. 

 

  a. The code or standards shall provide that the recipient's officers, employees, or agents may 

neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, Or anything Of monetary value from present or potential 

subawardees, including contractors or parties to subcontracts. 

 

  b. The code or standards shall establish penalties, sanctions or other disciplinary actions for 

violations, as permitted by State or local law or regulations. 

 

 2. The recipient shall maintain responsibility to enforce the requirements of the written code or 

standards of conduct. 

 

Disclosure Requirements 

 

 No State or its subrecipient, including its officers, employees or agents, shall perform or continue to 

perform under a grant Or cooperative agreement, whose objectivity may be impaired because of any 

related past, present, or currently planned interest, financial or otherwise, in organizations regulated by 

NHTSA or in organizations whose interests may be substantially affected by NHTSA activities. Based 

on this policy: 

 

 1. The recipient shall disclose any conflict of interest identified as soon as reasonably possible, 

making an immediate And full disclosure In writing To NHTSA. The disclosure shall include a 

description of the action which the recipient has taken or proposes to take to avoid or mitigate such 

conflict. 

 

 2. NHTSA will review the disclosure and may require additional relevant information from the 

recipient. If a conflict of interest is found to exist, NHTSA may 

 

  (a) terminate the award, or 

 

  (b) determine that it is otherwise in the best interest of NHTSA to continue the award and include 

appropriate provisions to mitigate or avoid such conflict. 

 

 3. Conflicts of interest that require disclosure include all past, present or currently planned 

organizational, financial, contractual Or other interest(s) With an organization regulated by NHTSA or 

with an organization whose interests may be substantially affected by NHTSA activities, And which 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

20 

are related to this award. The interest(s) that require disclosure include those of any recipient, affiliate, 

proposed consultant, proposed subcontractor and key personnel of any of the above. Past interest shall 

be limited to within one year of the date of award. Key personnel shall include any person owning more 

than a 20 percent interest in a recipient, And the officers, employees Or agents of a recipient who are 

responsible for making a decision or taking an action under an award where the decision or Action can 

have an economic Or other impact on the interests of a regulated Or affected organization 

 

Prohibition on Using Grant Funds to Check for Helmet Usage 

 

 The State and each subrecipient will not use 23 U.S.C. Chapter 4 grant funds for programs to check 

helmet usage or to create checkpoints that specifically target motorcyclists. 

 

Certification Regarding Debarment and Suspension 

 

 A. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective primary tier participant is providing the 

certification set out below and agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 

1200. 

 

 B. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in 

denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective primary tier participant shall 

submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or 

explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination 

whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary tier participant 

to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this 

transaction. 

 

 C. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 

when the department or agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined 

that the prospective primary tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in 

addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may 

terminate this transaction for cause or default or may pursue suspension or debarment. 

 

 D. The prospective primary tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the department 

or agency to which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective primary tier participant 

learns its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of 

changed circumstances. 

 

 E. The terms covered transaction, civil judgment, debarment, suspension, ineligible, participant, 

person, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR parts 180 

and 1200. You may contact the department or agency to which this proposal is being submitted for 

assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 

 

 F. The prospective primary tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the 

proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 

covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, 

debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 

transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency entering into this transaction. 

 

 G. The prospective primary tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will 

include the clause titled Instructions for Lower Tier Certification including the Certification 

Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion—Lower Tier Covered 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

21 

Transaction, provided by the department or agency entering into this covered transaction, without 

modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered 

transactions and will require lower tier participants to comply with 2 CFR parts 180 and 1200. 

 

 H. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in 

a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 

9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless 

it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its 

principals are not suspended, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered 

transactions. To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any prospective 

lower tier participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the System for Award 

Management Exclusions website (https://www.sam.gov). 

 

 I. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of 

records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent 

person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

 

 J. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a 

covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 

proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available 

to the Federal government, the department or agency may terminate the transaction for cause of 

default. 

 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matter 

A. The prospective primary tier participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its 

principal: 

 

  1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or 

agency; 

 

  2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil 

judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection 

   with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction 

or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or 

   commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of record, 

making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 

  3. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 

entity (Federal, State or Local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 

paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 

 

  4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public 

transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

 

B. Where the prospective primary tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 

certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

22 

Instructions for Lower Tier Certification 

 

 A. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the 

certification set out below and agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 CFR parts 180 and 

1200. 

 

 B. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 

when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier 

participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available 

to the Federal government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may 

pursue available remedies, including suspension or debarment. 

 

 C. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which 

this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its 

certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 

circumstances. 

 

 D. The terms covered transaction, debarment, suspension, ineligible, lower tier, participant, person, 

primary tier, principal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, are defined in 2 CFR parts 

180 and 1200. You may contact the person to whom this proposal is submitted for assistance in 

obtaining a copy of those regulations. 

 

 E. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the proposed 

covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered 

transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, 

debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered 

transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated. 

 

 F. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include 

the clause titled "Instructions for Lower Tier Participant Certification" including the "Certification 

Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion- Lower Tier Covered 

Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for 

lower tier covered transactions and will require lower tier participants to comply with 2 CFR parts 

180 and 1200. 

 

 G. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in 

a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 

9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless 

it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its 

principals are not suspended, debarred or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions. 

To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as the eligibility of any prospective lower tier 

participants, each participant may, but is not required to, check the System for Award Management 

Exclusions Website (https://www.sam.gov). 

 

 H. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of 

records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and 

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent 

person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

 

 I. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a 

covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

23 

proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available 

to the Federal government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may 

pursue available remedies, including suspension or debarment. 

 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier 

Covered Transactions 

 

 A. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor 

its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 

voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or 

agency. 

 

 B. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 

certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 

 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

24 

Restriction on State Lobbying 

 

  None of the funds under this program will be used for any activity specifically designed to urge or 

influence a State or local legislator to favor or oppose the adoption of any specific legislative 

proposal pending before any State or local legislative body. Such activities include both direct and 

indirect (e.g., "grassroots") lobbying activities, with one exception. This does not preclude a State 

official whose salary is supported with NHTSA funds from engaging in direct communications 

with State or local legislative officials, in accordance with customary State practice, even if such 

communications urge legislative officials to favor or oppose the adoption of a specific pending 

legislative proposal. 

 

Certification for Contracts, Grant, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements (Federal Lobbying) 

 

 The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

 

 A. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, 

to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 

Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 

Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, 

the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 

continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or 

cooperative agreement. 

 

 B. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 

influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 

Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 

connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall 

complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance 

with its instructions. 

 

 C. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 

documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 

grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose 

accordingly. 

 

  This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 

transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 

or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails 

to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not 

more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

 

 Signature of Project Director:  Signature of Authorized Official of 

   Governmental Unit: 

 

 Wyatt Berry, Chief  Suzanne Harvey, Town Manager 

 Huachuca City Police Department  Town of Huachuca City 

 

     

 

     

 Date Telephone Date Telephone 



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

25 

REIMBURSEMENT INSTRUCTIONS 

 

1. Agency Official preparing the Report of Costs Incurred: 

 

 Name:    

 

 Title:    

 

 Telephone Number:  Fax Number:  

 

 E-mail Address:    

 

2. Agency's Fiscal Contact: 

 

 Name:    

 

 Title:    

 

 Telephone Number:  Fax Number:  

 

 E-mail Address:    

 

 Federal Identification Number:    

 

3. REIMBURSEMENT INFORMATION: 

 

 Warrant/Check to be made payable to: 

 

     

 

 Warrant/Check to be mailed to: 

 

     

 (Agency) 

 

     

 (Address) 

 

     

 (City, State, Zip Code) 

 

4. Unique Entity Identifier: 

 

     

 (Unique Entity Identifier #) 

 

     

 (Registered Address & Zip Code) 

 

  



Huachuca City Police 

Department 

GOHS HIGHWAY 

SAFETY GRANT 2026-PTS-032 

 

26 

AUTHORITY & FUNDS 

 

1. This Project is authorized by 23 U.S.C. §402 and regulations promulgated there under, more particularly 

Volume 102, and if State funds are involved, this project is authorized by ARS §28-602. 

 

 The funds authorized for this Project have been appropriated and budgeted by the U.S. Department of 

Transportation. The expenses are reimbursable under Arizona's Highway Safety Plan Program Area 402-

PTS, as approved for by the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration. 

 

 

2.  A. EFFECTIVE DATE: B. FEDERAL FUNDS: 

 

   Authorization to Proceed Date  $44,764.00 

 

3.  AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED 

  by State Official responsible to Governor for the 

  administration of the State Highway Safety Agency 

 

 

 

 

     

 J.M. "Jesse" Torrez, Director  Approval Date 

 Governor's Office of Highway Safety 

 Governor's Highway Safety Representative 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

Town of Huachuca City 
The Sunset City 

500 N Gonzales Blvd • Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 
Phone: (520) 456-1354 • TDD: (520) 456-1353 • Fax: (520) 456-2230 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-17 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE FEE 
SCHEDULE FOR BUILDING PERMITS AND PLAN REVIEWS. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Huachuca City has adopted by 
Resolution No. 84-002 a code known as the Town Code of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona 
[the “Code”], and has amended and republished the Code from time to time, as authorized by 
A.R.S. 9-240 (B) (28) and Town Ordinance No. 15-02; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. 9-467, the Town is authorized to require building 

permits and to charge applicants to recover the reasonable costs associated with reviewing plans 
and issuing permits; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Code section 15.65.010, the Town Council, by resolution, 

may amend its schedule of fees for costs associated with building permits and plan reviews; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. section 9-499.15, the Town Council published notice on 

its website, sixty days in advance, of its intent to consider amending the fee schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Building Official has reviewed the costs of reviewing plans and issuing 

building permits, and has determined that the fee schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated herein by this reference, is necessary and appropriate to recover those costs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that it would be in the best interests of 

the Town and its residents to adopt the fee schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Huachuca City, as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. The Fee Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted.   
 
SECTION 2.  All ordinances, parts of ordinances, resolutions, parts of resolutions, 

policies, and parts of policies in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution, or any part 
hereof, are hereby repealed.   

 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, THIS 25th DAY OF 
SEPTEMBER, 2025. 

     

       ________________________________ 
                                                                                 Johann Wallace, Mayor 
ATTEST:        

Approved as to Form: 

 

__________________________________  _________________________________ 
Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk    Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

[Fee schedule for building permits and plan review must be attached] 
 



BUILDING PERMIT FEES 

TOTAL VALUATION FEE $ INCREASE/DECREASE 

$1 - $1,000 $50.00 None 

$1,001 - $2,000 $50 for first $1,000 plus $3.80 for each additional $100, or 
fraction thereof. 

None 

$2,001 - $25,000 $88 for first $2,000 plus $17.65 for each additional $1,000, or 
fraction thereof. 

-$.05 for full $25,000 
valuation 

$25,001 - $40,000 $493.95 for first $25,000 plus $12.75 for each additional 
$1,000, or fraction thereof. 

+$.20 for full $40,000 
valuation 

$40,001 - $100,000 $685.20 for first $40,000 plus $9.50 for each additional $1,000, 
or fraction thereof. 

+$2.20 for full 
$100,000 valuation 

$100,001 - $500,000 $1,255.20 for first $100,000 plus $7.10 for each additional 
$1,000, or fraction thereof. 

+$2.20 for full 
$500,000 valuation 

$500,001 - $1,000,000 $4,095.20 for first $500,000 plus $6 for each additional $1,000, 
or fraction thereof. 

+$1.20 for full $1M 
valuation 

$1,000,001 – 5M $7,095.20 for first $1M plus $4.52 for each additional $1,000, 
or fraction thereof. 

-$19.80 for $5M 
valuation 

$5,000,001 and over $25,175.20 for first 5M plus $1 for each additional $1,000, or 
fraction thereof. 

New valuation line 

 

NON-SPECIFIC BUILDING FEES FEE $ INCREASE 

Required Plan Review 65% of Building Permit Fee None 

Additional Plan Review, required for applicant changes, 
additions, or revisions.  (Hourly rate, 1-Hour minimum) 

$70 per hour $11 per hour 

Inspections outside normal business hours (Hourly Rate, 2-
hour minimum) 

$70 per hour $11 per hour 

Re-Inspection $70 per visit $11 per visit 

Special Request Inspection (such as Investigative) $70 per hour New Fee 

HOMEOWNER:  Work without a permit (higher value) Minimum $75 or 2X Permit 
Fee 

New Fee 

CONTRACTOR:  Work without a permit (higher value) Minimum $150 or 2X 
Permit Fee 

New Fee 

Board of Adjustments Appeal $300 New Fee 

TRADE PERMITS AND FLAT RATE FEES FEE $ INCREASE 

Gas Pressure Checks only (with no other plumbing work 
done) 

$50.00 New Fee 

Residential Water Heater Replacement  
(changing like-for-like) 

$50.00 New Fee 

Residential Service Entry Replacement/Upgrade $50.00 New Fee 

Demolition $50.00 New Fee 

Manufactured Home Anchoring and Skirting (in addition to 
State Mandated Installation Fee) 

$350.00 New Fee 

Right of Way Permit $100 New Fee 

Sewer Tap (Residential) $200 None 

Sewer Tap (Commercial) $300 None 

 



HUACHUCA CITY UPDATED BUILDING PERMIT AND ASSOCIATED FEES 

 

Since the Huachuca City Building Department fees have not been amended in 10+ years, a 

review of the fees was requested.  After a review of the area jurisdictions, it was determined that 

the basic fee chart is in line with the other jurisdictions; however, it needed to be simplified.  The 

proposed chart provides for precise fees at all incremental valuations, with negligible changes to 

the overall fees.  Also, to simplify the fees several flat rates are being introduced.  These fees 

will not be dependent upon valuation, but simply on the work to be completed. 

Several new fees are also being introduced. The current fee schedule does not provide for these 

fees, so the Town has not been able to charge for the work noted.  For example, when Cox Cable 

updated the cabling within the Town a few years ago the Town issued several Right-of-Way 

permits for the proposed work; however, no fees could be collected as there was not a fee 

associated with this type of permit.  Also, on occasion the Building Official encounters work 

being completed without a permit.  The current fee schedule does not provide any penalty 

associated with this.  The new schedule provides for a reasonable penalty depending on whether 

it was a Homeowner or Contractor who did not obtain the permit.   

These proposed Building Department fees will be considered by the Huachuca City Town 

Council on Thursday September 25, 2025 at 6:00 pm, at Town Hall located at 500 N. Gonzales 

Blvd, Huachuca City, Az. 

If approved these changes will go into effect on January 1, 2026.  



Page 1 of 2 
 

Town of Huachuca City 
The Sunset City 

500 N Gonzales Blvd • Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 
Phone: (520) 456-1354 • TDD: (520) 456-1353 • Fax: (520) 456-2230 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN CODE 
TITLE 15 “BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION,” CHAPTER 15.65 “BUILDING 
PERMIT FEES,” TO ELIMINATE THE ALTERNATIVE BUILDING VALUATION FEE 
SCHEDULE.   
  

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Huachuca City has adopted by Resolution 
No. 84-002 a code known as the Town Code of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona [the “Code”], 
and has amended and republished the Code from time to time, as authorized by A.R.S. 9-240 (B) 
(28) and Town Ordinance No. 15-02; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Code, Title 15 “BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION” establishes the 

Building Code for the Town; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. 9-467, the Town is authorized to require building permits 

and to charge applicants to recover the reasonable costs associated with reviewing plans and 
issuing permits; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that it would be in the interest of public 

health and safety to adopt certain amendments to the Building Code regarding building permit and 
plans review fees; and 

 
WHEREAS, as required by the Code, section 2.25.040, this Ordinance was first read at a 

public meeting of the Town Council on September 25, 2025, and at a subsequent meeting on 
October 9. 2025.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 
Huachuca City, as follows: 

 
SECTION 1. The Code, Title 15 “BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION,” Chapter 15.65 

“BUILDING PERMIT FEES,” is amended by deleting section 15.65.020 “Alternate building 
valuation fee schedule,” in its entirety.  

 
SECTION 2.  All ordinances, parts of ordinances, resolutions, parts of resolutions, 

policies, and parts of policies in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, or any part hereof, 
are hereby repealed.   
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

SECTION 3. If any section, subsection or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held 
to be invalid or unenforceable by the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 
shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions hereof. 
    

SECTION 4. The Town Clerk is hereby directed, pursuant to the Code, sections 2.25.080 
and 2.25.090, to post this Ordinance in three or more public places within the town and on the 
town's website, and to publish this Ordinance as required by A.R.S. 9-812; 9-813 and 39-204 
(C)(3). 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, THIS 9th DAY OF OCTOBER, 
2025. 
 
       ________________________________ 
                                                                                Johann Wallace, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
___________________________________ 
Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 



RECIPIENT:

Town of Huachuca City
502 Gonzales Boulevard
Huachuca City, Arizona 85616
Phone: 520-249-5504

Estimate #3822

Sent on 09/19/2025

SW Desert
Images LLC
140113

SW Desert Images LLC 140113
_________________________
__________Date___________

______

Total $2,427.00

Product/Service Description Qty.

Landscape
Maintenance/200 Pima

1. Weedeat all weeds around obstacles on properties. 
2. Equipment Required
a. D/R Trimmer
b. JD Mower

1

Herbicide Spray Spray Approximately 10,000 sq ft which includes around the buildings
and electric boxes

1

Subtotal $2,427.00

Tax Exempt (0.0%) $0.00

Total $2,427.00

This quote is valid for the next 30 days, after which values may be subject to change.  If the quote and attached contract
provisions are to your satisfaction please sign it and return to Southwest Desert Images, LLC.

CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

1.  All work will be completed in a professional manner for the amount priced above.  Contractor reserves the right to
withdraw the proposal if not accepted within 30 days.   

2.  Changes to this contract will be documented and completed via written change order.  SDI reserves the right to administer
a fee of a minimum of $25 for any changes or change orders.  Cost differentials, either plus or minus, will be specifically
annotated on the change order.   

3.  Customer agrees to provide an initial down payment of 50%.  Weekly progress payments in proportion to work completed
will also be requested for larger projects when appropriate.  Final payment will be due upon project completion. 

4.  The Contract description of work along with associated plan(s), detail(s) and/ or drawing(s) represent the contractual
scope of work.  Please review these documents in detail to ensure all components are addressed and accurate.  Any
components not specifically addressed are not included in the estimate.   

5.  For your safety please understand and observe a 50 foot buffer around all equipment and Construction processes.   

6.  Not all planted designed or selected will be available from Arizona vendors.  If a plant is available out of area the customer
will be given an option to purchase with added costs.  This can result in construction delays or returning to job once plant is

1 of 2 pages

Southwest Desert Images, LLC
4938 East Buffalo Soldier Trail  |  Sierra Vista, AZ 85650  |
520-803-0063  |  barbhsouthwestdesert@gmail.com  |
License#-Landscape ROC140113-- Pool ROC 327443-- Herbicide QA31961



available.  Plant substitutions in this instance are recommended 

7.  Payment in full is due upon job completion.  A 2% per month late payment fee will be assessed on any unpaid balances
remaining after 30 days.  

8.  The project start date and completion date are estimated, being subject to crew availability, material availability, weather
conditions, and acts of God

CONTRACT WARRANTY PROVISIONS 

1. Irrigation/ LV Lighting   One (1) year parts and labor for complete system installations.  For partial system installations the
warranty is defined per project at the discretion of Southwest Desert Images (SDI).  Any irrigation components that have a
manufacturers warranty for longer than one year carry the manufacturers warranty for the component only. This warranty
does not cover replacement of bulbs for LV lights unless it is demonstrated to have been caused by an electrical issue. 

2.  Trees and Plants   1. Southwest Desert Images (SDI) will warranty most sizes of plants for three (3) months if the following
conditions are present: A. The plant was supplied and installed by SDI. B. The plant is located in a position appropriate for
the health of the plant(s). C. And the plant (excluding cactus or other plants requiring ‘no water’) is irrigated  ‘properly.’   

3. SDI will not warranty plant(s) under the following conditions: A. Natural situations or other ‘Acts of God’ (i.e. unseasonably
cold temperatures, excessive winds, etc.), which affect the health of the plant. B. Animals who come into contact with the
plant, causing damage or ill health to the plant. 

4. Unless specified in this contract, no plant or planting comes with staking.  Plants damaged due to not having staking will
not be warranted. 

5.  In the event a plant is lost, or thought to be dying, proceed with the following: 

A. For a 15 gallon or larger box size plant, SDI will verify the plant health on site (where planted) and replace (including labor)
if above conditions are met. B. For a 5 gallon or smaller plant, the Owner is responsible for bringing the plant in to the Nursery
on Buffalo Soldier Trail.  SDI will replace the plant if covered under this warranty (does NOT include planting cost). 

6.  Artificial Turf   Artificial turf is warrantied for two years for against installation defect.  This primarily includes lifting of turf
(rolls) and seam separation.  The turf is further warrantied against manufacturing defect under manufacturer’s written
warranty.   .  The manufacturers warranty covers manufacturing defects, UV degradation, and fading.  Reference
manufacturers warranty for terms, conditions and limitations. 

7.   Precast Concrete Pavers   Pavers are warrantied for two years.  The warranty includes the following: 1.  Settling.  SDI will
repair any settling that occurs as long the settling occurs in the course of normal use and is not due to an act of God (flooding,
etc) 2.   Soldier and sailor course borders.  These borders are covered against stone separation or any other defect. 

Signature____________________________Date_______________

Signature: _____________________      Date: _____________

2 of 2 pages

Southwest Desert Images, LLC
4938 East Buffalo Soldier Trail  |  Sierra Vista, AZ 85650  |
520-803-0063  |  barbhsouthwestdesert@gmail.com  |
License#-Landscape ROC140113-- Pool ROC 327443-- Herbicide QA31961



RECIPIENT:

Town of Huachuca City
502 Gonzales Boulevard
Huachuca City, Arizona 85616
Phone: 520-249-5504

Estimate #3821

Sent on 09/19/2025

SW Desert
Images LLC
140113

SW Desert Images LLC 140113
_________________________
__________Date___________

______

Total $397.50

Product/Service Description Qty.

Landscape
Maintenance/303 Apache

1. Weedeat property
2. Equipment Required
a. Riding Mow
3.Backpack Spray

1

Subtotal $397.50

Tax Exempt (0.0%) $0.00

Total $397.50

This quote is valid for the next 30 days, after which values may be subject to change.  If the quote and attached contract
provisions are to your satisfaction please sign it and return to Southwest Desert Images, LLC.

CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

1.  All work will be completed in a professional manner for the amount priced above.  Contractor reserves the right to
withdraw the proposal if not accepted within 30 days.   

2.  Changes to this contract will be documented and completed via written change order.  SDI reserves the right to administer
a fee of a minimum of $25 for any changes or change orders.  Cost differentials, either plus or minus, will be specifically
annotated on the change order.   

3.  Customer agrees to provide an initial down payment of 50%.  Weekly progress payments in proportion to work completed
will also be requested for larger projects when appropriate.  Final payment will be due upon project completion. 

4.  The Contract description of work along with associated plan(s), detail(s) and/ or drawing(s) represent the contractual
scope of work.  Please review these documents in detail to ensure all components are addressed and accurate.  Any
components not specifically addressed are not included in the estimate.   

5.  For your safety please understand and observe a 50 foot buffer around all equipment and Construction processes.   

6.  Not all planted designed or selected will be available from Arizona vendors.  If a plant is available out of area the customer
will be given an option to purchase with added costs.  This can result in construction delays or returning to job once plant is
available.  Plant substitutions in this instance are recommended 

7.  Payment in full is due upon job completion.  A 2% per month late payment fee will be assessed on any unpaid balances
remaining after 30 days.  

8.  The project start date and completion date are estimated, being subject to crew availability, material availability, weather

1 of 2 pages

Southwest Desert Images, LLC
4938 East Buffalo Soldier Trail  |  Sierra Vista, AZ 85650  |
520-803-0063  |  barbhsouthwestdesert@gmail.com  |
License#-Landscape ROC140113-- Pool ROC 327443-- Herbicide QA31961



conditions, and acts of God

CONTRACT WARRANTY PROVISIONS 

1. Irrigation/ LV Lighting   One (1) year parts and labor for complete system installations.  For partial system installations the
warranty is defined per project at the discretion of Southwest Desert Images (SDI).  Any irrigation components that have a
manufacturers warranty for longer than one year carry the manufacturers warranty for the component only. This warranty
does not cover replacement of bulbs for LV lights unless it is demonstrated to have been caused by an electrical issue. 

2.  Trees and Plants   1. Southwest Desert Images (SDI) will warranty most sizes of plants for three (3) months if the following
conditions are present: A. The plant was supplied and installed by SDI. B. The plant is located in a position appropriate for
the health of the plant(s). C. And the plant (excluding cactus or other plants requiring ‘no water’) is irrigated  ‘properly.’   

3. SDI will not warranty plant(s) under the following conditions: A. Natural situations or other ‘Acts of God’ (i.e. unseasonably
cold temperatures, excessive winds, etc.), which affect the health of the plant. B. Animals who come into contact with the
plant, causing damage or ill health to the plant. 

4. Unless specified in this contract, no plant or planting comes with staking.  Plants damaged due to not having staking will
not be warranted. 

5.  In the event a plant is lost, or thought to be dying, proceed with the following: 

A. For a 15 gallon or larger box size plant, SDI will verify the plant health on site (where planted) and replace (including labor)
if above conditions are met. B. For a 5 gallon or smaller plant, the Owner is responsible for bringing the plant in to the Nursery
on Buffalo Soldier Trail.  SDI will replace the plant if covered under this warranty (does NOT include planting cost). 

6.  Artificial Turf   Artificial turf is warrantied for two years for against installation defect.  This primarily includes lifting of turf
(rolls) and seam separation.  The turf is further warrantied against manufacturing defect under manufacturer’s written
warranty.   .  The manufacturers warranty covers manufacturing defects, UV degradation, and fading.  Reference
manufacturers warranty for terms, conditions and limitations. 

7.   Precast Concrete Pavers   Pavers are warrantied for two years.  The warranty includes the following: 1.  Settling.  SDI will
repair any settling that occurs as long the settling occurs in the course of normal use and is not due to an act of God (flooding,
etc) 2.   Soldier and sailor course borders.  These borders are covered against stone separation or any other defect. 

Signature____________________________Date_______________

Signature: _____________________      Date: _____________

2 of 2 pages

Southwest Desert Images, LLC
4938 East Buffalo Soldier Trail  |  Sierra Vista, AZ 85650  |
520-803-0063  |  barbhsouthwestdesert@gmail.com  |
License#-Landscape ROC140113-- Pool ROC 327443-- Herbicide QA31961



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Town of Huachuca City 

FIRE PREVENTION WEEK, 2025 

PROCLAMATION NO. 2025-16 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, DECLARING OCTOBER 5 THROUGH 11, AS FIRE PREVENTION WEEK 
IN THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY. 

WHEREAS, fire is a serious public safety concern both locally and nationally, and homes are the 
locations where people are at greatest risk from fire; and 
 
WHEREAS, home fires caused 2,285 civilian deaths in the United States in 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, lithium-ion batteries store a lot of energy in a small place, and these batteries can overheat, 
start a fire, or explode, if overcharged or damaged; and 
 
WHEREAS, by learning how to BUY, CHARGE, and RECYCLE these batteries safely, we can help 
prevent fires in our homes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Town residents should familiarize themselves with the recommendations of the National 
Fire Protection Association for buying, charging and recycling lithium-ion batteries; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2025 Fire Prevention Week theme, “Charge into Fire Safety: Lithium-Ion Batteries in 
Your Home,” serves to remind us of the need to learn best practices for buying, charging and recycling 
lithium-ion batteries.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Johann R. Wallace, Mayor of the Town of Huachuca City, by the authority 
vested in me by the laws of the State of Arizona and Town Code, and by this Proclamation, do: 
 

1. Hereby proclaim October 5 through 11, 2025, as Fire Prevention Week in the Town of Huachuca 
City; and   

2. Encourage all residents of the Town to learn best practices for buying, charging and recycling 
lithium-ion batteries, and support the many public safety activities and efforts of the Town’s 
first responders.  

 
PROCLAIMED by the Mayor of the Town of Huachuca City, Cochise County, Arizona, this 25th day 
of September, 2025.  
         _________________________________ 
         Johann R. Wallace, Mayor 
ATTEST:  
_________________________________    _________________________________ 
Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk      Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Town of Huachuca City 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH, 2025 

PROCLAMATION NO. 2025-17 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, DECLARING OCTOBER, 2025, AS DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS 
MONTH IN THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY. 

WHEREAS, domestic violence is an issue affecting Arizonans in all communities, regardless of age, 
gender, economic status, race, religion, nationality, or educational background; and 
 
WHEREAS, one in four women and one in ten men have experienced sexual violence, physical 
violence, and/or stalking by an intimate partner during their lifetime; and 
 
WHEREAS, victims of domestic violence are more likely to experience long-term mental and physical 
health concerns including a higher risk of chronic disease, substance abuse, post-traumatic stress 
disorder, depression and anxiety; and 
 
WHEREAS, Domestic Violence Awareness Month provides important opportunities to enhance 
education, prevention and intervention efforts concerning domestic violence and support 
organizations and individuals who provide advocacy efforts, services and assistance to victims. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Johann R. Wallace, Mayor of the Town of Huachuca City, by the authority 
vested in me by the laws of the State of Arizona and Town Code, and by this Proclamation, do: 
 

1. Hereby proclaim October, 2025, as Domestic Violence Awareness Month in the Town of 
Huachuca City; and 
  

2. Encourage all residents of the Town to support the Huachuca City Police Department and 
domestic violence survivors, by taking a stand against all forms of violence and abuse in 
relationships.  

 
PROCLAIMED by the Mayor of the Town of Huachuca City, Cochise County, Arizona, this 25th day 
of September, 2025.  
         _________________________________ 
         Johann R. Wallace, Mayor 
ATTEST:  
 
_________________________________    _________________________________ 
Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk      Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 


	Town of Huachuca City, AZ - EA Renewal - 9.24.2025.pdf
	Template

	09-25-25 Council Packet.pdf
	9-25-25 Regular Meeting Agenda ver 5.pdf
	9-11-25 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Payment Approval Report 9.10.25 through 9.30.25.pdf
	Memo - Financial Report -  2025-06 Year-end.pdf
	TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY
	Overview
	Fund Summary – FY25
	Highlights – Key Budget Items (>$5,000)
	Notable Variances / Anomalies


	FS14-06302025.09192025.1.pdf
	Budget Amendments at year-end FY25 v09192025.1.pdf
	Sheet1

	2025-15 GOHS Grant Agreement - Enhanced DUI Enforcement.pdf
	Huachuca PD_2026-405d-024_Signature Letter.pdf
	Huachuca PD_2026-405d-024_Grant Agreement.pdf
	2025-16 GOHS Grant Agreement - Enhanced Traffic Enforcement.pdf
	Huachuca PD_2026-PTS-032_Signature Letter.pdf
	Huachuca PD_2026-PTS-032_Grant Agreement.pdf
	2025-17 Bulding Permit Fees.pdf
	HC BUILDING DEPT 2025 NEW FEE TABLE.pdf
	2025-03 BUILDING Permit Fees.pdf
	Johann Wallace, Mayor

	estimate_3822.pdf
	estimate_3821.pdf
	2025-16 Proclamation Fire Prevention Week.pdf
	2025-17 Proclamation Domestic Violence Month.pdf




